Ser Supto.

tockport conference of the Wesleyan Methodist Church of America

Annual Journal 1965

> Houghton New York July 27 - 30, 1965

MINUTES

of the

One Hundred and Fourth Annual Session

of the

LOCKPORT ANNUAL CONFERENCE Incorporated

of the

Wesleyan Methodist Church of America

July 27 - 30, 1965

Edited by the Secretary

held at

Houghton Camp Grounds
Houghton, New York

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Church Directory	12
Conference Officers	5
Conference Roll	8
District Organization	24
Ex-Officio Committees	7
General Information	3
Journal of Daily Proceedings	25
Official Boards	6
Our Honored Dead	18
Religious Services	25
Reports:	
Auditing Committee	51
Blue Cross Plan	48
Board of Trustees	46
Budget Apportionment	72
Camp Meeting Board	48
Committee on Itineracy and Elders Orders	45
Committee on Ministerial Character	35
Committee on Religious Services	34
Conference Board of Church Extension and Evangelism	55
Conference Treasurer	41
"Itinerator"	41
Pastoral Relations Committee	52
Pioneer Missionary	57
President	36
Resolutions	44
Statistics	60
Sunday School Secretary	44
Temporary Organization	35
Tithing Secretary	54
Treasurer Board of Trustees	42
Woman's Missionary Society	58
Standing Committees	7
Standing Rules	19
Wesleyan Youth	96
Woman's Missionary Society	78

The One Hundred Fifth session of the Lockport Annual Conference will be called to order on July 26, 1966 at Houghton, New York, D.V.

INFORMATION GENERAL

Denominational Information

International Headquarters

Box 2000, Marion, Indiana 46955

Denominational Officials General Superintendents

Dr. B. H. Phaup Dr. Harold K. Sheets Dr. V. A. Mitchell (Area Superintendent) Dr. George E. Failing Rev. E. L. Kierstead

Editor, WESLEYAN METHODIST Gen. Mgr., Publishing Ass'n. Executive Secretaries: World Missions Church Extension-Evangelism Sunday Schools President, W.M.S.

Dr. Alton E. Liddick Rev. C. Wesley Lovin Dr. Paul L. Kindschi Mrs. Helen Stark Rev. Robert W. McIntire

Conference Information

Conference President's Office

Executive Secretary, W.Y.

Rev. Daniel A. Heinz Houghton, N.Y. 14744

Conference Church's Mailing Addresses

Note: The listing is as follows (1) city (2) Church Name, if different (3) Pastor (4) Mailing Address

New York Churches

Appleton, Hess Road - Fred J. Moore, 2514 Hess Rd., Appleton, New York 14008

Batavia, First - A. Gordon Wolfe, 34 Woodrow Road, Batavia. New York 14020

Batavia, North Pembroke - Richard Lofgren (student pastor) Roberts Wesleyan College, North Chili, New York 14514 Buffalo Suburban

Angola - Richard G. Kaylor, Old Lake Shore Road, Angola, New York 14006

Blasdell, Big Tree - Theodore R. Pagett, 32 W. Fairview Parkway, Blasdell, New York 14219

Cheektowaga, Cleveland Drive - Robert J. McCarthy, 1259

Cleveland Drive, Cheektowaga, New York 14225 East Aurora, Michael F. Schell, 27 Maple Road, East Aurora, New York 14052

Elma, Blossom - O. Glenn McKinley, 1281 Seneca Creek Rd., Buffalo, New York 14224

Hamburg, Duane H. Janssen, 110 Sharon Avenue, Hamburg, New York 14075

Orchard Park, Ellicott - Paul F. Markell, 7295 Ellicott Rd., Orchard Park, New York 14127

Caneadea, Bellville - Arthur J. Taylor, Rushford, New York 14777

Cattaraugus, First - Paul S. Lawrence, 43 South Street. Cattaraugus, New York 14719

- Cattaraugus, East Leon Marvin McDuffee, R. R. 2, Cattaraugus, New York 14719
- Cuba Harold McIntire, 11 North Park St., Cuba, New York 14727
- Falconer, Levant Willard G. Steele, Linquist Drive, Falconer, New York 14733
- Fillmore David Shannon, 22 E. Main Street, Fillmore, New York 14735
- Freedom, Higgins Milton R. Putnam, R. R., Freedom, New York 14065 Forestville - Robert Shannon, Prospect Road, R.R. 3, Forest-
- ville, New York 14062

 Houghton Edward D Angell Poy 127 Houghton Very York
- Houghton Edward D. Angell, Box 127, Houghton, New York 14744
- Leon Geneva Pritchard, Leon, New York 14751
- Little Valley George N. Osgood, 704 Erie St., Little Valley, New York 14755
- Lockport John W. Colley, 7417 Chestnut Ridge, Lockport,
 New York 14094
 Lyndonyille Ashwood Rolph R. Spood Platter Roll Ashwood
- Lyndonville, Ashwood Ralph F. Speas, Platten Road, Lyndonville, New York 14098
- Machias Clair A. Day, 31 Park Dr., Houghton, New York 14744
- Nunda, Oakland Thomas B. Black, R. R. 1, Nunda, New York 14517
- Olean, Hillside H. N. Robinson, 760 Grandview Ave., Olean, New York 14760
- Silver Creek Oliver J. Dongell, 43 Adams St., Silver Creek, New York 14136
- Wellsville, First Alton J. Shea, Box 589, Wellsville, New York 14895
- Wellsville, Hallsport Associate, Arthur Fish, R.R., Wellsville, New York 14895

Pennsylvania Churches

- Bradford David Buck, 51 Hobson Place, Bradford, Pa. 16701 Driftwood, Castle Garden - Robert Wolcott, R.R. 1, Driftwood, Pa. 15832
- Eldred, McRae Brook Robert Stone, R.R., Eldred, Pa. 16731 Emporium, Rich Valley - Nelson G. Owen, R.R. 1, Emporium, Pa. 15834
- Weedville, Medix Run Robert Wolcott, R.R. 1, Driftwood, Pa. 15832

Financial Information: (Where to send funds)

- Rev. George Osgood, 904 Erie St., Little Valley, N.Y. 14755
 All Budgets (Conf. & Den.), Pioneer, Camp, Conf. funds
- Mr. B. C. Nelson, Box 183, Bradford, Pa. 16701
 All Bally Day Offerings, Trustee funds.
- Mrs. Nellie Stickle, R.R. 1, Freedom, N.Y. 14065
 All W.M.W. money.
- Mrs. Evelyn Kaylor, Old Lakeshore Rd., Angola, N.Y. 14006 All W.Y. money.
- Miss Harriet Ingrahm, 13 Newton St., Silver Creek, N.Y.14136
 All Y.M.W.B. money

THE LOCKPORT CONFERENCE OFFICERS

Rev. Daniel A. Heinz, Houghton, N.Y. 14744 President:

Tel. 567-8414 (or 567-8153) Area 716

Vice President: Rev. Alton J. Shea, Box 589, Wellsville, N.Y.

Tel. 1910 Area 716

Rev. Duane H. Janssen, 110 Sharon Avenue, Secretary:

Hamburg, N.Y. Tel. 649-6335 Area 716

Rev. George N. Osgood, 704 Erie Street, Treasurer:

Little Valley, N.Y. Tel. 938-6190 Area 716

Sunday School Secretary:

Tithing Secretary:

Statistician: Ass't. Statistician:

Education Secretary:

Conf. Extension Secretary: Rev. Paul F. Markell

Card Call Secretary: Treas. Blue Cross Plan:

Secretary, Wesleyan Men:

World Missions Secretary:

Rev. Gerald A. Wolter

Rev. Robert Wolcott

Rev. Harold McIntire

Rev. Thomas Black

Rev. Ralph Speas

Rev. Clarence Barnett

Rev. Michael F. Schell

Mr. Lawrence Olson

Rev. A. Gordon Wolfe

DELEGATES TO GENERAL CONFERENCE

First Ministerial Second Ministerial

Third Ministerial First Lav

Second Lay Third Lav

Rev. Daniel A. Heinz Rev. Alton J. Shea

Rev. Paul F. Markell

Dr. Stephen W. Paine Mr. Edward Willett

Mr. Lawrence Olson

-Alternates-

First Ministerial Second Ministerial

Third Ministerial

First Lay Second Lay

Third Lav

Rev. Willard G. Steele Rev. Oliver J. Dongell

Rev. Edward D. Angell

Mr. Robert Fiegl

Mr. Clarence Blackwell

Dr. Willard Smith

(The Special Session of the General Conference will convene on June 14, 1966 at Houghton, New York.)

OFFICIAL BOARDS

Board of Trustees

Terms to expire in 1968
Rev. Paul F. Markell, 7305 Ellicott Rd., Orchard Park, N.Y.
Mr. Rudolph Nelson, (Tr.) 28 S. Kendall Ave., Bradford, Pa.

Mr. Lawrence Olson, South Dayton, N.Y.

Terms to expire in 1967

Rev. George N. Osgood, 704 Erie St., Little Valley, N.Y.

Rev. Alton J. Shea, Box 589, Wellsville, N.Y.

Dr. Stephen W. Paine, (Sec.), Houghton, N.Y.

Terms to expire in 1966

Rev. Daniel A. Heinz, (Ch.) Houghton, N.Y.

Rev. Oliver J. Dongell, 43 Adams St., Silver Creek, N.Y.

Dr. Robert R. Luckey, Houghton, N.Y.

Committee on Itineracy and Elder's Orders

First Year Studies

Term expires 1969 Rev. David Shannon

Second Year Studies
Rev. Willard G. Steele (Ch.) Term expires 1966

Third Year Studies

Term expires 1968 Rev. Daniel A. Heinz

Fourth Year Studies
Rev. George N. Osgood (Sec.) Term expires 1967

Houghton College Local Board of Trustees

Term expires 1966 Rev. Daniel A. Heinz Rev. Alton J. Shea (alternate) Term expires 1966

Term expires 1968 Mr. Elmer Hudson

Dr. Homer J. Fero (alternate) Term expires 1968

Board of Superannuate Minister's Aid

Term expires 1968 Rev. Robert Wolcott (ch.) Term expires 1967 Mr. Glenn W. Day

Term expires 1966 Rev. Milton Putnam

Conference Board of Church Extension and Evangelism

Ex-officio

Rev. Daniel A. Heinz, Conference President (chairman)

Rev. Paul F. Markell, Conference Church Extension Secretary

Ministers

Rev. Willard G. Steele Term expires 1968 Rev. Duane H. Janssen

Term expires 1967 Term expires 1966 Rev. Oliver J. Dongell

Lay Members

Term expires 1968 Mr. Merwin Ludeman Term expires 1967

Mr. Robert Fiegl Term expires 1966 Mr. Donald Meyer

Sunday School Board

Rev.	Gerald A. Wolter (Ch.)	Term expires	1966
	David Shannon	Term expires	
Mr.	Allen Smith	Term expires 1	L966
Rev.	Mary E. Bennett	Term expires 1	1967
Rev.	Fred Moore	Term expires 1	1967

Camp Meeting Board

Lay Members			
Mr. Clarence Blackwell	Term	expires	1969
Dr. Willard Smith	ηerm	expires	1968
Mr. Robert Barnett			
		expires	
Mr. Robert Fiegl	Term	expires	1966
The Opposite		. -	•

Ex-Officio

Rev. Alton Shea (Ch.) Rev. David Shannon Rev. Daniel A. Heinz Rev. Ralph Speas Rev. George N. Osgood (Tr.)	Camp President Camp Vice Pres. Conf. President Conf. W.Y. Pres. Conf. Treasurer
--	---

EX-OFFICIO COMMITTEES

Educational Committee: Conference Educational Secretary, Ch.; Conference President, Conference W.Y. President, Conference W.M.S. President; Conference Y.M.W.B. Superintendent; Conference Representatives on Local Board of Trustees of Houghton College

Credentials: Secretary of the Conference

Board of Parsonage and Church Location: Conf. Bd. of Trustees

Committee on Religious Services: Conference President and
his Advisory Board

Committee on Ministerial Character: Appointed by the Conference President and his Advisory Board

STANDING COMMITTEES

<u>President's</u> Advisory Board: Rev. Oliver J. Dongell, Merwin Ludeman. Alternates: Rev. George N. Osgood, Rudolph Nelson

Judiciary Committee: Rev. Paul Markell, Rev. H. N. Robinson, Rev. A. Gordon Wolfe, Rev. David Shannon.

Committee on Vacancies: Elders: Rev. Oliver J. Dongell, Rev. Philip J. Birchall, Rev. Milton Putnam. Laymen: Clarence Blackwell, Robert Barnett

Auditor of Statistical Reports: Rev. Richard G. Kaylor
Chairman, Budget Apportionment Comm.: Rev. Theodore Pagett
Chairman, Auditing Committee: Dr. Robert Luckey
Committee, Conference Entertainment: Camp Meeting Board
Committee on "Itinerator": Appointed by the President
Conference Opening Sermon: The Denominational Representative

CONFERENCE ROLL

Stationed List

Elders Serving Pastoral	Appointments		
Name	Address	Tel. Ro	11
1. Angell, Edward D.	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-8339 567-8153*	0
2. Buck, David	51 Hobson Pl., Bradford, Pa. 16701	368-7654 368-7865*	7
3. Colley, John W.	7417 Chestnut Ridge Lockport, N.Y. 14094	433-5418	6
4. Day, Clair A.	31 Park Drive Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-2445	2
5. Dongell, Oliver J.	43 Adams St. Silver Creek, N.Y.14136	934-3725	7
6. Janssen, Duane H.	110 Sharon Ave. Hamburg, N.Y. 14075	649-6335	7
7. Kaylor, Richard G.	Old Lake Shore Rd. Angola, N.Y. 14006	549-3494 549-0443*	7
8. Lawrence, Paul S.	43 South St. Cattaraugus, N.Y. 14719	257-9961	4
9. McIntire, Harold	11 N. Park St. Cuba, N.Y. 14727	697	7
10. McKinley, O. Glenn	1281 Seneca Creek Rd. Buffalo, N.Y. 14224	674-7245	7
11. Markell, Paul F.	7305 Ellicott Rd. Orchard Park, N.Y.14127	662-5792 662 - 4766*	7
12. Osgood, George N.	704 Erie St. Little Valley, N.Y. 14755	938-6190	7
13. Owen, Nelson G.	R. R. 1 Emporium, Pa. 15834	486-4946	5
14. Pagett, Theodore R.	32 W. Fairview Pkwy. Blasdell, N.Y. 14219	823-4555	5
15. Pritchard, Geneva M.	Leon, N.Y. 14751	296-5209	1
16. Putnam, Milton	R. R. Freedom, N.Y. 14065	567-8204	7
17. Robinson, H. N.	760 Grandview Ave. Olean, N.Y. 14760	372-5677	7
18. Schell, Michael F.	27 Maple Rd. East Aurora, N.Y.14052	652-0392	1
19. Shannon, David	22 East Main St. Fillmore, N.Y. 14735	567-2414	7
20. Shannon, Robert	R. R. 3, Prospect Rd. Forestville, N.Y. 14062	988-3619	7
*Church phone			

21.	Shea, Alton J.	188 West State St. Wellsville, N.Y. 14895	1910	7
22.	Steele, Willard G.	Linquist Dr. Falconer, N.Y. 14733	456-1377 456-1225*	7
23.	Wolfe, A. Gordon	34 Woodrow Rd. Batavia, N.Y. 14020	343-3778 343-2771*	7
24.	Wolcott, Robert	R. R. 1, Box 3 Driftwood, Pa. 15832	546-2863	7
25.	Wolter, Gerald A.	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-2775	7
Elde	ers Serving Other App	ointments		
1.	Barnett, Glenn W.	Petit Goave, Haiti, W.I.		0
2.	Bennett, Mary E.	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-8433	1
3.	Birch, Marion	Bendembu via Makeni Sierre Leone, W. Afr.		0
4.	Birchall, Philip J.	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-8757	5
5.	Crowell, Nelson	R. R. 3, Dye Rd. Forestville, N.Y. 14062	988-3613	5
6.	Hall, Bert	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-8776	1
7.	Heinz, Daniel A.	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-8414	7
8.	Hess, Hudson	Radio Station 4 VEH Box 1, Cape Haitian Haiti, W. I.		0
9•	Knowlton, Robert	U.S. Chaplain's School Ft. Hamilton, N.Y.11252		7
10.	Lytle, Robert N.	3904 S. Landess St. Marion, Ind. 46955		0
11.	McMillen, Alice	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-2285	5
12.	McMillen, S. I.	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-2285	0
13.	Miller, Peter D.	Aligandi,San Blas Republic de Panama		0
14.	Redstone, James R.	R. R. 2 Gouverneur, N.Y. 13642		6
15.	Schultz, Carl	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-2682	0
16.	Simons, Eldyn B.	Dalton, N.Y. 14836		0
17.	Smith, Joyce M.	4222 Buffalo Rd. Rochester, N.Y. 14624	594-9027	4
18.	Stark, Helen F.	3516 S. Boots St. Marion, Ind. 46955		0
19•	Stark, Price P.	3516 S. Boots St. Marion, Ind. 46955		0
20.	Strong, Gordon	P. O. Box 127 Zamboanga City, Philippin	es	0

21. Wilson, Charles	Shamrock Lake Estates B. 1, Hartford City, Ind.	. 0
22. Woolsey, Warren	Sierra Leone Bible Colleg Box 890, Freetown, W. Afr	ge r. 0
Elders on the Superannua	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
1. Armstrong, C. I.	401 Maxey St. Wilmore, Ky.	0
2. Barnett, C. H.	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-8282 0
3. Bullock, Harry J.	R.R. Cattaraugus, N.Y.	0
4. Gibbs, Maurice A.	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-8269 0
5. Hickok, A. A.	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-8462 0
6. Taylor, Arthur J.	Rushford, N.Y. 14777	5115 7
7. Taylor, Frank C.	Rushford, N.Y. 14777	3853 0
Elders on the Unstatione	d List	
1. Lutz, Larry	c/o Carl Lutz 2832 Wadsworth Rd. Norton Village, Ohio	0
2. Russell, Cecil	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-8373 7
3. Parks, Howard	Houghton, N.Y. 14744	567-8182 0
4. Thurber, Gordon L.	5065 Griswold St. Middleport, N.Y.	0
5. Wilson, Loretta	Shamrock Lake Estates R. 1, Hartford City, Ind.	. 0
Annual Conference Preach	ers	
1. Black, Thomas B.	R. R. 1 Nunda, N.Y. 14517	468-2324 6
2. Fish, Arthur	R. Wellsville, N.Y.14895	
3. McDuffee, Marvin	R. R. 2 Cattaraugus, N.Y. 14719	257-3977 7
4. Moore, Fred J.	2514 Hess Rd. Appleton, N.Y. 14008	778-9045 6
5. Speas, Ralph F.	Platten Rd. Lyndonville, N.Y. 14098	765-9093 5
6. Stone, Robert	R. R., Eldred, Pa. 16731	225-4818
Supply Pastors		
1. Lofgren, Richard	c/o Roberts Wes. College North Chili, N.Y.14514	594-9470
2. McCarthy, Robert	1259 Cleveland Drive Cheektowaga, N.Y. 14225	634-2578
Deaconness		
1. Stoddard, Clara	18 Franklin St. Cattaraugus, N.Y.	

Church & Delegate	<u>Roll</u>	Church & Delegate	Roll
Appleton, Hess Rd. Lynford Strong	2	Robert Luckey Edward J. Willett	5
Batavia, First Lawrence Ross	7	Dorothea Doan Mildred Fero Mildred Woolsey	7 2 6
Blasdell, Big Tree Wilma Moore	4	Stephen W. Paine Allen R. Smith	567266667
Cheektowaga, Clev. Dr. Forence Compo	0	Willard G. Smith Isabelle Fancher	6 7
East Aurora Russell Smith	1	Leon Patricia Ray	2
Elma, Blossom Hazel DeGraff	4	Little Valley Edward Fuss	7
Hamburg Clifford Garrison	7	Lockport Nancy Ann Jesson	4
Orchard Park, Ellicott Clarence Blackwell Grant Booth	6 7	Lyndonville, Ashwood Robert Nice Donald Yaxley, Sr.	7 3
Caneadea, Belleville Jessie Taylor	6	Machias Pauline White	7
Rhetta Luce Cattaraugus, First Willard Houghton	0	Nunda, Oakland Melvin V. Hulin Pearl Hulin	6 4
Cattaraugus, East Leon Muriel Waite	6	Olean Richard George Mary Robinson	2 6
Cuba Norva Ross	4	Silver Creek Robert Barnett	7
Falconer, Levant Bertha Jacobson Lloyd Powell	? 6	Wellsville, First Lee M. Martin Margaret Barnett	4 1
Fillmore Belle Parks Alta Armison	6 6	Bradford Bessie Cornelius	6
Janice Gillette Freedom, Higgins Robert Fiegl	3 7	Driftwood, Castle Garden Clyde Smith Faye Whitcomb	6 5
Forestville Lawrence Olson	4	Eldred, McCrae Brook Ray Goodman	1
Jennie Wolfe	5	Weedville, Medix Run Blanche Turley	0
Houghton Bess Fancher Mrs. Alfred Campbell Howard Eyler Anne Finney Calla Babcock	7 6 6 7 6		-

CHURCH DIRECTORY

New York Churches

Telephone Area Code 716

Appleton (Hess Road)

Church: 2510 Hess Rd., Appleton, N.Y. 14008

Fred J. Moore, 2514 Hess Rd., Appleton, N.Y. Pastor:

Phone: 778-9045

Midweek: Wednesday 7:30 p.m.

Edna Dempsey, 147 Davison Rd., Lockport, N.Y. Treasurer:

Sup't.: James Strong, Bishop Rd., Appleton, N.Y.

Batavia (First)

315 West Main St., Batavia, N.Y. 14020 Church:

Pastor: A. Gordon Wolfe, 34 Woodrow Rd., Batavia, N.Y. Roger Crassi, 317 W. Main, St., Batavia, N.Y. Assistant:

Church: 343-2771; Parsonage: 343-3778 Phone:

Midweek: Wednesday

Lawrence Ross, Genesee St., Corfu, N.Y. Treasurer:

Sup!t.: Roger Cade, S. Main Street Road, Batavia, N.Y.

Batavia (North Pembroke)

Church: North Pembroke Rd., Batavia, N.Y. 14020 Pastor:

Richard Lofgren, Roberts Wesleyan College,

North Chili, N.Y. 14514

Richard Lofgren, Roberts Wesleyan College, Treasurer:

North Chili, N.Y. 14514

Sup't.: Sharon Thayer, Cleveland Rd., Batavia, N.Y.

Buffalo Suburban Churches (Angola through Orchard Park)

Angola

Church: Herr Road, Angola, N.Y. 14006

Pastor: Richard G. Kaylor, Old Lake Shore Rd., Angola,

N.Y. 14006

Phone: Church: 549-0443; Parsonage: 549-3494

Midweek: Wednesday 7:30 p.m.

Treasurer: Elton Alguire, Church Rd., Angola, N.Y.

Sup't.: Paul Tate, Grant St., Angola, N.Y.

Blasdell (Big Tree)

32 W. Fairview Pkwy., Blasdell, N.Y. 14219 Church: Pastor:

Theodore R. Pagett, 32 W. Fairview Pkwy., Blasdell, N.Y. 14219

Phones 823-4555 Midweekı Wednesday

Wilma Moore, 163 Dartmouth Rd., Hamburg, N.Y. Treasurer:

Sup't.: Myrtle Friend, 288 Salisbury Ave., Blasdell, N.Y.

Checktowaga (Cleveland Drive)

1259 Cleveland Drive, Cheektowaga, N.Y. 14225 Robert J. McCarthy, 1259 Cleveland Drive, Church:

Pastor:

Cheektowaga, N.Y. 14225

Phone: 634-2578 Midweek: Wednesday

Treasurer: Oliver Bolduc, 89 Isabelle Dr., Cheektowaga, N.Y. Gayle Klinect, 141 Louis St., Cheektowaga, N.Y. Sup't.:

East Aurora

Church: Main and Maple, East Aurora, N.Y. 14052 Pastor: Michael F. Schell, 27 Maple Rd., East

Phone: 652-0392

Midweek: Wednesday 7:30 p.m.

Russell Smith, Ostrander Rd., East Aurora, N.Y. Treasurer: Sup't.: Lillian R. Williams, 364 Prospect St., East

Aurora, N.Y.

Elma (Blossom)

Main Street (Blossom), Elma, N.Y. Church:

O. Glenn McKinley, 1281 Seneca Creek Road, Pastor:

Buffalo, N.Y. 14224

Phone: 674-7245

Midweek: Wednesday

Treasurer: Mrs. Sally Davis, 51 Garfield, St., Lancaster,

N.Y.

Sup't.: Harvey H. Hughes, 3132 Transit Rd., West

Seneca, N.Y.

Hamburg

Church: 110 Sharon Ave., Hamburg, N.Y. 14075

Pastor: Duane H. Janssen, 110 Sharon Ave., Hamburg,

N.Y. 14075

Phone: 649-6335 Midweek: Wednesday

Walter E. Goers, 128 Maple Ave., Hamburg, N.Y. Treasurer: Sup't.: Clifford Garrison, 213 E. Prospect, Hamburg,

N.Y.

Orchard Park (Ellicott)

7295 Ellicott Rd., Orchard Park, N.Y. 14127 Church: Paul F. Markell, 7305 Ellicott Rd., Orchard Pastor:

Park, N.Y. 14127

Phone: Church: 662-4766; Parsonage: 662-5792

Midweek:

Wednesday 7:45 p.m. Francis Burch, Ward Rd., Orchard Park, N.Y. Treasurer

Carl Nieman, Knapp Rd., West Falls, N.Y. Sup't.:

(end of Buffalo Suburban churches)

Caneadea (Bellville)

Church: R.R. 1, Caneadea, N.Y.

Pastor: Arthur J. Taylor, Rushford, N.Y. 14777

Phone: 5115 Midweek: Thursday

Treasurer: Duane Luce, Caneadea, N.Y.

Mrs. Rhetta Luce, Caneadea, N.Y. Sup't.:

Cattaraugus (First)

45 South St., Cattaraugus, N.Y. 14719 Churchi

Paul S. Lawrence, 43 South St., Cattaraugus, Pastori

N.Y. 14719

257-9961 Phone:

Wednesday 8:00 p.m. Midweek

Willard Houghton, 20 N. Franklin St., Cattar-Treasurer:

augus, N.Y.

Ethel Fiebelkorn, 84 South St., Cattaraugus, Sup't.:

N.Y.

Cattaraugus (South Leon)

R.R. 2, Cattaraugus, N.Y. 14719 Church

Pastor: Marvin McDuffee, R.R. 2, Cattaraugus, N.Y.

Phone: 257-3977 Midweek: Wednesday

Arthur Pritchard, R.R. 2, Cattaraugus, N.Y. Treasurer:

Mrs. Elizabeth Mosher, R.R. 1, South Dayton, Sup't.:

N.Y.

Cuba (North Park)

13 North Park St., Cuba, N.Y. 14727 Church:

Harold McIntire, 11 North Park St., Cuba, N.Y. Pastor:

697 Phone:

Thursday Midweek:

Peggy McIntire, 11 North Park St., Cuba, N.Y. Treasurer:

William Roeske, Houghton, N.Y. Sup't.:

Falconer (Levant)

Lindquist Drive, Falconer, N.Y. 14733 Church:

Pastor: Willard G. Steele, Lindquist Drive, Falconer,

N.Y.

Phone: Church: 456-1225; Parsonage: 456-1377

Midweek: Thursday

Elizabeth Roach, 136 E. Elmwood Ave., Falconer, Treasurer:

N.Y.

Harold Crist, R.R. 1, Bemus Point, N.Y. Sup't.:

Fillmore

20 E. Main St., Fillmore, N.Y. 14735 Church:

David Shannon, 22 E. Main St., Fillmore, N.Y. Pastor:

567-2414 Phone:

Midweek: Wednesday 7:45 p.m.

Anna Turnstrom, Fillmore, N.Y. Treasurer: Carl Aylor, Fillmore, N.Y. Sup't.:

Freedom (Higgins)

R.R., Freedom, N.Y. 14065 Church:

Milton R. Putnam, R.R., Freedom, N.Y. 567-8204 (Fillmore Exchange) Pastor:

Phone:

Wednesday Midweek:

Mrs. Ellen Cooley, R.R., Freedom, N.Y. Treasurer: Harmon Miller, R.R. 2, Fillmore, N.Y. Sup!t.:

Forestville

Church: Prospect Rd., R.R. 3, Forestville, N.Y. 14062

Pastor: Robert Shannon, Prospect Rd., Forestville,

N.Y.

Phone: 988-3619 (South Dayton Exchange)

Midweek: Wednesday

Treasurer:

Miles R. Wolfe, R.R. 3, Forestville, N.Y. Mrs. Lawrence Olson, R.R. 1, South Dayton, N.Y. Sup!t.:

Houghton

Church: Houghton, N.Y. 14744

Pastor: Edward D. Angell, Box 127, Houghton, N.Y.

Assistant:

Gerald A. Wolter, Houghton, N.Y. Church: 567-8153; Parsonage: 567-8339 Phone:

Midweek: Tuesday

John S. Babbitt, Wesley Farm, Houghton, N.Y. Treasurer:

Sup't.: Dr. Stephen Calhoon, Houghton, N.Y.

Leon

Church: Leon, N.Y. 14751

Pastor: Geneva Pritchard, Leon, N.Y. 14751

Phone: 296-5209

Midweek: Wednesday

Treasurer: Floyd Harmon, Cattaraugus, N.Y. Sup't.: Geneva Pritchard, Leon, N.Y.

Little Valley

Church 704 Erie St., Little Valley, N.Y. 14755

Pastor: George N. Osgood, 704 Erie St., Little Valley,

N.Y.

Phone: 938-6190 Midweek: Wednesday

Mrs. Emily Mettler, Erie St., Little Valley, N.Y Treasurer:

Sup't.: Edward Fuss, 530 Fair Oak St., Little Valley.

N.Y.

Lockport

Church: 7417 Chestnut Ridge, Lockport, N.Y. 14094

Pastor: John W. Colley, Chestnut Ridge, Lockport, N.Y.

Phone: 433-5418

Wednesday Midweek:

Treasurer: John R. Jesson, 340 Washburn St., Lockport,

N.Y.

Sup't.: John R. Jesson, 340 Washburn St., Lockport,

N.Y.

Lyndonville (Ashwood)

Church: Platten and Townline Rds., Lyndonville, N.Y.

14098

Pastor: Balph F. Speas, Platten Rd., Lyndonville, N.Y.

Phone: 765-9093

Thursday 7:30 p.m. Midweek:

Treasurer: Walter Eckler, Platten Rd., Lyndonville, N.Y. Donald Yaxley, Sr., W. Center St., Medina, N.Y. Sup't.:

Machias

Church: School St., Machias, N.Y. 14101

Clair A. Day, 31 Park Dr. Houghton, N.Y. 14744 Pastor:

Phone: 567-2445 (Fillmore Exchange)

Midweek: Wednesday

Pauline White, School St., Machias, N.Y. Treasurer: Sup't.: Mrs. Bert Pepper, R.R.. Franklinville, N.Y.

Oakland (Nunda)

Church: R.R. 1, Nunda, N.Y. 14517

Pastor: Thomas B. Black, R.R. 1. Nunda. N.Y.

Phone: 468-2324

Midweek:

Tuesday 8:00 p.m. Melvin V. Hulin, R.R. 1, Nunda, N.Y. Treasurer: Sup't.: Thomas L. Howe, R.R., Hunt, N.Y.

Olean (Hillside)

Church: 753 Prospect St., Olean, N.Y. 14760

Pastor: H. N. Robinson, 760 Grandview Ave., Olean, N.Y.

Phone: 372-5677

Midweek: Wednesday 7:30 p.m.

Treasurer: Richard George, 612 King St., Olean, N.Y. Sup't.: Richard George, 612 King St., Olean, N.Y.

Silver Creek

Church: 60 Buffalo St., Silver Creek, N.Y. 14136

Oliver J. Dongell, 43 Adams St., Silver Creek, Pastor:

N.Y.

Gary Childs, 64 Buffalo St., Silver Creek, N.Y. Assistant:

934-3725 Phone:

Midweek: Wednesday 7:30 p.m.

Treasurer: John Bartkowski, Hanover Rd., Silver Creek,

Sup't.: Melvin Foxton, Jackson St., Irving, N.Y.

Wellsville (First)

211 West State St., Wellsville, N.Y. 14895 Church Alton J. Shea, 188 West State St., Wellsville-Pastor:

N.Y.

Phone: 1910

Midweek: Wednesday

Treasurer: Lee M. Martin, Box 452, Wellsville, N.Y.

Sup't.: Lillian Simons, Allentown, N.Y.

Wellsville (Hallsport Associated)

Church:

R.R. 2, Wellsville, N.Y. 14895 Arthur Fish, R.R., Wellsville, N.Y. Pastor:

Midweek: Tuesday

F. A. Coats, R.R. 2, Wellsville, N.Y. Treasurer: H. E. Fitch, Box 461, Wellsville, N.Y. Sup't.:

Pennsylvania Churches

Telephone Area Code 814

Bradford

Church: Bishop and Boylston Sts., Bradford, Pa. 16701 David Buck, 51 Hobson Place, Bradford, Pa. Church: 368-7865; Parsonage: 368-7654 Pastor:

Phone:

Wednesday 7:00 p.m. Midweek:

Treasurer: Edward Wills, 182 Rutherford Run, Bradford, Pa. Sup't.: Perry Paul, Jr., 13 Long Lane, Bradford, Pa.

Driftwood (Castle Garden)

Church:

R.R. 1, Driftwood, Pa. 15832 Robert Wolcott, R.R. 1, Driftwood, Pa. Pastor:

546-2863 Phone:

Midweek: Thursday 7:30 p.m.

Mrs. Mary Lessig, Sinnemahoning, Pa. Treasurer: Sup't.: Mrs. Vivian Smith, Driftwood, Pa.

Eldred (McRae Brook

R.R., Eldred, Pa. 16731 Church:

Robert Stone, R.R., Eldred, Pa. Pastor:

Phone: 225-4818

Midweek: Wednesday 7:30 p.m.

Jessie Bell, Eldred, Pa. Treasurer: Ray Goodman, Eldred, Pa. Sup't.:

Emporium (Rich Valley)

R.R. 1, Emporium, Pa. 15834 Church:

Pastor: Nelson G. Owen, R.R. 1, Emporium, Pa.

Phone: 486-4946 Midweek: Thursday

Treasurer: Mrs. Lawrence Jordan, R.R. 1, Emporium, Pa.

Nelson G. Owen, R.R. 1, Emporium, Pa. Sup't.:

Weedville (Medix Run)

Church: R.R. 1, Weedville, Pa.

Robert Wolcott, R.R. 1, Driftwood, Pa. 15832 Pastor:

Phone: 546-2863 (Driftwood) Midweek: Wednesday 7:00 p.m.

Treasurer: Mrs. Blanch Turley, R.R. 1, Weedville, Pa. Mrs. Blanch Turley, R.R. 1, Weedville, Pa. Sup't.:

OUR HONORED DEAD

(Name and date of decease)

J. Locke	1867	Edgar Fuller	1914
Southworth Phinney	1867	George W. Cooper	1918
George Riley	1869	Robert C. McConnell	1919
Henry Norton	1869	Nathan E. Heald	1919
J. Beadle	1870	John L. Benton	1919
E. Bishop	1870	N. F. Robb	1922
H. Bacon	1871	W. A. Hazlett	1924
Jonathan Sibley	1872	George H. Clarke	1929
J. M. Thorp	1873	J. H. Woodhouse	1929
A. Jones	1875	B. S. Laughlin	1930
E. Biglow	1876	J. R. Babcock	1930
David R. Douglas	1881	W. A. Backus	1933
J. R. Jones	1881	George E. Bathurst	1935
Z. T. Petty	1884	Jesse W. Steves	1935
Emory Jones	1886	Francis B. Markell	1936
Daniel W. Ball	1886	Edward L. Elliott	1940
Thomas Osgood	1890	Lynford J. Sicard	1941
J. D. Townsend	1890	Charles H. Dow	1943
James Ireland	1894	Noah R. Shaffer	1946
Willard J. Houghton	1896	D. W. Summers	1947
Anna Perring Clarke	1896	Gertrude Clocksin	1953
W. R. Mearns	1897	Charles Sicard	1953
Jennie Groves	1897	Ira W. George	1955
George F. Porter	1898	Clarence J. White	1957
E. J. Poe	1899	Walter H. Readett	1958
J. A. Thomas	1901	Mae K. Shaffer Moore	1959
Willard C. Boardman	1902	Anna Lucille Fillmore	1960
P. H. Humphrey	1903	William N. Osgood	1961
George W. Steel	1906	Vernon D. Hoffman	1963
Reuben F. Dutcher	1908	Wilbur E. Beers	1964
Alonzo B. Chamberlain	1909	J. R. Pitt	1965

The Reverend J. R. Pitt 1880--1964

Ordained 1902

Pastorates

Canadian Conference 1903--1921 Lockport Conference since 1921 Houghton, East Aurora, Buffalo

"And I heard a voice from heaven saying unto me, Write, Blessed are the dead which die in the Lord from heceforth: Yea, saith the Spirit, that they may rest from their labours, and their works do follow them." Rev. 14:13

STANDING RULES

Conference

Annual Conference

- 1. Time and Place
 The annual session of the Lockport Annual Conference, Inc. shall convene at Houghton, New York on the Tuesday evening preceding the last Thursday of July with adjournment scheduled not later than Friday noon.
- 2. Communion Service The Conference Annual Communion service will be observed on Tuesday evening following the preaching service. The Communion table is to be prepared by the stewards of the Houghton Church.
- 3. Delegate's Credentials It shall be the duty of the pastors to forward to the Conference Secretary by July 1 the church (not missionary) delegate's credentials from his charge.
- 4. Passage of Ministerial Character
 - a. One month before the first day of Conference, the President and his Advisory Board shall appoint a Committee on Ministerial Character.
 - b. All character blanks, filled out in duplicate, shall be mailed to the President's Office not later than two weeks before the opening day of Conference; one shall be returned to the minister, the other given to the Pastoral Relations Committee.
 - c. The pastor shall report as directed by the Discipline (Par. 218), reading only Item 3 of his statistical report. The delegate may also speak briefly of the work and give his testimony.
 - d. It shall be the duty of each minister to be in attendance at the annual conference sessions unless otherwise excused by the Conference or the Committee on Ministerial Character.
- 5. Election of Officers
 There shall be elected on Wednesday morning of Annual Conference a Nominating Committee to submit a slate of nominations in mimeograph form, for all Conference offices not requiring a ballot election. This committee shall consist of three elders and two laymen. They shall submit at least two names for each office.

Conference Finances

- 6. Statistical and Fiscal Year
 June 30 is the closing date of the Conference Statistical
 and Financial year. The quarters of the fiscal year shall
 close September 30, December 31, March 31, and June 30.
- 7. Board of Trustees Report for Final Action Resolved: That all matters involving the expenditures of money to be appropriated from the Conference Treasuries be

referred to the Board of Trustees for their consideration and reported back by them to the Conference for final action.

8. Statistical Report

a. All monies and receipts for budget credit shall be mailed to the Conference Treasurer post marked no later than July 1.

b. The pastor shall mail to the Conference Treasurer both copies of his statistical report made out (except the Budget Item, which the Treasurer will fill in and sign) post marked no later than July 8.

post marked no later than July 8.

c. The Conference Treasurer shall mail the reports to the Auditor of Statistical Reports post marked no later than July 12.

d. In the reporting of financial items, all items shall be reported in round numbers except for the Budget Items which shall be reported in full.

9. Standing Committee on Statistical Reports

- a. The Conference shall elect, to serve at the next annual Conference, an Auditor of Statistical Reports, a Statistician and an Assistant Statistician.
- b. The Auditor of Statistical Reports shall have had experience at least one year as Statistician.
- c. The Statistician, whenever possible, shall have had experience by serving at least one year as Assistant Statistician.
- d. The Auditor shall correct the reports and than pass one copy to the Statistician and one copy back to the pastor. These shall be post marked no later than July 17.
 He shall audit the Statistician's report and send the
 Budget Chairman the membership of the churches and the
 Sunday Schools. The Statistician and Auditor shall
 give pastors opportunity to explain apparent errors
 until the time Conference convenes.

10. Budget Apportionment

- a. The Budget Committee shall base their apportionment of the budget as set by the Board of Administration, except whenever the Conference Pension Sinking Fund goes below \$200, an additional .10 per member shall be added to the Superannuate Minister's Budget.
- b. All Conference Budgets shall be the sum recommended by the Conference Board of Trustees and approved by the Conference.
- c. Items which apply on budget credit shall be so marked by the Conference Treasurer.

11. Standards of Auditing Proceedure

a. Treasurers shall have their books with vouchers to show the source of their receipts and disbursements ready for audit immediately upon the opening of the Conference. Receipts shall have been issued for all money received with record of same.

- b. A certified bank statement shall also be furnished by the Treasurer by the opening date of Conference. This bank statement shall be as recent as possible before the Treasurer leaves for the annual Conference session. The Auditors shall confirm the bank balance.
- c. The Auditors shall test-check receipts and expenditures for a designated period during the Conference year.
- d. The Auditors shall list notes payable and notes receivable and other obligations due or owed by the Conference Trustees, and check on current payment or receipt of interest.
- e. The Auditors shall reconcile the books with the annual report of the Treasurer.
- f. The Auditors shall issue an official certificate of their findings of all Treasurer's books audited.
- g. All Treasurers of Conference organizations, except for the Conference Treasurer, shall report for the statistical year ending June 30.

Conference President

- 12. Duties of the President
 The duties of the President shall be to represent denominational interests on the Conference level; to plan, develop and coordinate projects and enterprises of the Conference; to supervise ministerial service and local church activities which shall entail conducting at least one quarterly Conference on each charge during the Conference year.
- 13. Official Representation

 The President of the Conference shall be the delegate to the annual conventions of the NAE and NHA. The Vice President shall be that alternate.

Conference Boards

- 14. Conference Board of Church Extension and Evangelism
 - a. A Church Extension Secretary shall be elected by ballot by the annual Conference. This is a non-salaried office, receiving remuneration only for travel expenses and time spent away from regular duties in the interest of church extension work. His duties shall include the planning and supervision of the Conference extension work in cooperation with the Board of Church Extension and Evangelism.
 - b. The membership of this Board shall include the Conference President, who shall serve as Chairman, the Conference Church Extension Secretary and three elected elders and three elected laymen, each for a term of three years with one elder and one layman's term expiring each year.
 - c. The duties of this board shall be to survey the Lockport Conference territory to determine the most suitable places for extension projects; to give, along with the Conference President, general counsel as to the

development of pioneer works; to allocate such funds as are received for the proposed designated projects; to publicize throughout the local churches the department's work; to render to the Annual Conference a de-

tailed report of the work of the past year.
d. This Board shall develope the plans for raising the funds for this program with all offerings and contributions received in church extension services going into this fund. A sub-treasurer shall be elected whose duty it shall be to keep the record of receipts and expenditures in accordance with the Conference Auditing system and to report all receipts by churches to the Conference Treasurer at the close of the year. This amount shall be entered in the proper Budget column under Conference Church Extension and Evangelism.

e. All Church Extension works and those organized churches certified to the Board by the President and his Advisory Board shall be considered eligible for assistance. In general, it shall be the policy not to give financial assistance to any work for a period longer than

three years.

15. Campmeeting Board

a. The membership of the Campmeeting Board shall include the Camp President, who shall be Chairman, Vice President, the Conference President, the Conference W.Y. President, the Conference Treasurer, and four laymen, one elected each year for a term of four years. Newly elected officers to the Board shall assume office at the close of the current camp session.

b. The promotion and management of the religious program, the dining hall and rooming management for the Annual Campmeeting of the Lockport Annual Conference shall be

under the control of this Board.

Local Churches

16. Date for Taking Pastoral Vote The pastoral vote shall be taken throughout the Conference on the first Sunday following May 15.

17. Pastoral Support

a. The churches of the conference, in addition to the regular stipulated salary, are urged to pay mileage the use of the pastor's car in church work (based the established rate set by the Conference Trustees for Conference Work), pastor's utilities, Health Insurance premiums and Social Security. The pastor's telephone expense, except for personal long distance calls, shall be considered church incidental expense.

b. Churches which enter into a financial agreement with the pastor shall, when needful, make adjustments of this obligation at each quarterly meeting. When the pastor's salary is adjusted prior to the beginning of the Conference fiscal year (July 1), adjustments shall

- be effective at the beginning of said fiscal year unless agreed otherwise. A full settlement of the pastor's salary shall be made before the time of the annual Conference.
- c. We recommend that each church equip its parsonage with the necessary heating and cooking equipment, because of the variations of requirements in individual parsonages.
- 18. Pastoral Year
 The second Sunday following the last Sunday of Campmeeting shall mark the beginning of the pastor's service year. The churches financial obligations to the pastor shall coincide with the pastoral year and include salary while attending Conference and Camp.
- 19. Pastor's Vacation
 Each charge shall grant to its pastor a two week's vacation
 each year with pay at a time he shall elect.
- 20. Pastor's Moving Expense
 The church calling a pastor to serve them shall pay his moving expenses to the charge, the same not to apply on his salary.
- 21. Election of Local Church Officers

 The church shall elect its officers in the month of June
 and their term of office shall begin on July 1.

Pastoral Duties

22. Pension Plan
All eligible persons are urged to join the Federal Social
Security program.

(Additional Responsibilities - see Items 3, 4b, 4c, 4d, 8a, 8b, 8d, 24)

Miscellaneous

- 23. Building and Remodeling Plans
 The Board of Trustees in carrying out the work of the
 Board of Church and Parsonage Building and Location, shall
 annually appoint an Advisory Committee, consisting of two
 builders or building contractors and two elders with building experience, to which it shall refer building and remodeling plans exceeding \$1,000 in cost. This committee
 shall endeavor to secure catalogs of desireable plans of
 parsonages and churches and any other information to help
 the building committee.
- 24. Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance on Owned Church Property
 - a. It is required that each charge furnish the Chairman of the Board of Trustees a copy of the deed of all church and parsonage properties, and a certificate of insurance on all church and parsonage properties and that this be brought up to date at each insurance renewal.

- b. Further, the Conference highly recommends that each charge obtain Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance on all owned church properties to cover at least 80% of the current appraisal value and it shall be the duty of each pastor to bring this recommendation before the local Board of Trustees.
- 25. General Conference Delegates Resolved: That it is the sense of the Lockport Conference that no person should accept the position as delegate to the General Conference unless he expects to be present during the entire session. The President is required to communicate this resolution to the delegates three weeks before the General Conference begins.

DISTRICT ORGANIZATION

Northern District

Chairman: Rev. Michael F. Schell

Sec. - Treas.: Rev. Fred F. Moore

Third Member: Mr. Charles Worthington

Charges: Appleton (Hess Rd.), Batavia (First), Batavia (N. Pembroke), Blasdell (Big Tree), Cheektowage (Cleveland Drive), East Aurora, Elma (Blossom), Hamburg, Orchard Park (Ellicott), Lockport, Lyndonville (Ashwood).

East Central District
Chairman: Rev. Thomas B. Black Sec. - Treas.: Mrs. Alice McMillen Third Member: Rev. Milton Putnam

Charges: Caneadea (Belleville), Cuba, Fillmore, Freedom (Higgins), Houghton, Machias, Nunda (Oakland)

West Central District

Chairman: Rev. Marvin McDuffey Sec. - Treas.: Harriet Ingraham

Third Member: Rev. Robert Shannon

Charges: Angola, Cattaraugus (First), Cattaraugus (East Leon), Falconer (Levant), Forestville, Leon, Silver Creek, Little Valley.

Southern District

Chairman: Rev. H. N. Robinson Sec. - Treas.: Bessie Cornelius Third Member: Rev. David Buck

Charges: Bradford, Driftwood (Castle Garden), Eldred (McCrae Brook), Emporium (Rich Valley), Weedville (Medix Run), Olean, Wellsville (First), Wellsville (Hallsport Associated)

RELIGIOUS SERVICES

Tuesday Night Service -- July 27, 1965

Dr. Alton E. Liddick brought the Denominational Address. The Sacrament of Communion was observed.

Wednesday Night Service -- July 28, 1965

The annual Church Extension service was in charge of the Conference Church Extension Secretary, the Rev. Paul F. Markell and featuring the newest pioneer church, Angola. Reports were also given by Little Valley and Hamburg. Guest speaker was Everett Gilbert, layman from the Rochester Conference pioneer church at Penfield, N.Y.

Thursday Night Service-July 29, 1965

The Missionary Service was in charge of the Conference WMS with Mrs. Alton J. Shea in charge. Dr. Alton E. Liddick, Executive Secretary of the World Missions department, was the speaker.

Friday Night Service-July 30, 1965

Denominational citations were presented in behalf of the Board of Superintendents by Dr. Alton E. Liddick to the following for their years of service: Dr. Stephen W. Paine for 28 years as President of Houghton College; the Rev. Arthur J. Taylor for 12 years as President of the Lockport Conference; the Rev. Daniel A. Heinz for 5 years as President of the Lockport Conference; to Mrs. Helen Stark for 4 years as President of the denominational WMS (to be delievered to her by Dr. Liddick in Marion, Ind.). Announcement was made that the Rev. Everett E. Elliott received a certificate at the Champlain Conference annual session for 9 years of service as President of the Lockport Conference.

The annual Sunday School Night service was sponsored by the Sunday School Board with the Rev. Oliver J. Dongell in charge. The Lockport Church was declared the winner of the Conference contest and presented the plaque. Guest speaker for the service was Dr. Robert Walker, editor of CHRISTIAN LIFE magazine.

DAILY PROCEEDINGS

The Lockport Annual Conference, Inc. of the Wesleyan Methodist Church of America convened for its 104th session on the Campgrounds at Houghton, New York on July 27, 1965 at 7:00p.m. EDST.

Opening: The President, the Rev. Daniel A. Heinz, called the Conference to order. The Rev. Harold McIntire led in the singing of the hymn, "Praise Him! Praise Him!". The Rev. Arthur J. Taylor led in prayer.

- Roll Call: The roll of ministers was called and 28 were marked present.
- Committee on Credentials: The Committee on Credentials made its report which was accepted. The following substitutions were made: Lloyd Powell for Mrs. Joanna Steele of Levant, Mrs. Mary Robinson for William Kerchoff of Olean, Hazel DeGraff for Helena Sanders of Blossom, Mrs. Audrey Olson for Merlin Jones and Jennie Wolfe for Miles Wolfe of Forestville, Mrs. Alfred Campbell for Marilyn Byerly of Houghton. These were declared the duly elected delegates by the President.

Roll Call: The roll of delegates was called and 19 were marked present.

- Bar of Conference: A motion prevailed that the bar of Conference be the first nine rows of seats in the second, third and fourth sections of the auditorium.
- Presentation: Dr. Alton E. Liddick was presented to the Conference. A motion prevailed that Dr. Liddick serve as cochairman.
- Time of Meetings: A motion prevailed that the time of the opening and closing of the Conference be fixed as follows: the morning meeting opening at 8:30 a.m. and adjourning at 11:00 a.m. for committee work; the afternoon meeting at 1:30 p.m. and closing by the vote of Conference.

Committee on Religious Service: The Committee on Religious Services made its report. Adopted. (See Report No. 1)

- Committee on Temporary Organization: The Committee on Temporary Organization made its report. Moved that the report be adopted with the following addition: that all names added or dropped be reported back to Conference. Seconded. Carried. (See Report No. 2)
- committee on Ministerial Character: The Committee on Ministerial Character made its report. Adopted. (See Report No.3)
- Orders of the Day: The election of Conference Officials was made an Order of the Day for Thursday morning following the devotional service.
- Committee on Courtesy: The Committee on Courtesy presented the Rev. and Mrs. William Knight, pastor of the Raymond Hill Community Church, Lockport, N.Y.
- Communication: Motion prevailed that communications be posted and that the Secretary send greetings to Charles Wilson, Marion Birch, Rev. Frank Taylor, Rev. and Mrs. Price Stark, Glenn W. Barnett, Warren Woolsey, Robert Lytle, Robert Knowlton, C. I. Armstrong, Gordon Thurber and Edward Angell.
- President's Report: Dr. Alton E. Liddick assumed the chair and the President read his report. It was moved to receive the report with thanks. Carried. His official acts and financial statement were approved. (See Report No. 4)
- Adjournment: Rev. Heinz returned to the chair. Adjournment by limitation of time. The Rev. Alton Shea offered the closing prayer.

Wednesday Morning Meeting, July 28, 1965

Opening: The meeting was called to order by the President, the Rev. Daniel A. Heinz. The Rev. Harold McIntire led in the singing of the hymn "Lead On, O King Eternal". Devotions were presented by the Rev. H. N. Robinson.

Roll Call: The roll was called.

Minutes: The minutes were read and approved.

- Nominating Committee: The following were elected from the floor to serve on the Nominating Committee: Elders: Oliver Dongell, Willard Steele, James Redstone; Laymen: Robert Barnett, Willard Smith.
- <u>Delegate:</u> Motion prevailed that the following names be substituted: Lawrence Olson for Mrs. Audrey Olson of Forestville, Lynfred Strong for Van Strong of Hess Road.
- Committee on Courtesy: The Committee on Courtesy presented the Rev. Gerald A. Wolter.
- Treasurer's Report: The Conference Treasurer read his report which was adopted subject to referral to the Auditing Committee. (See Report No. 5)
- Itinerator Report: The report of the Business Manager of the "Itinerator" was read and adopted subject to referral to the Auditing Committee. (See Report No. 6)
- Treasurer of Board of Trustee's Report: The report of the Treasurer of the Board of Trustees was read and adopted subject to referral to the Auditing Committee. (See Report No. 7)
- Pastor's Report: John Colley gave his report.
- Motion: A motion prevailed to substitute the name of the Rev. James Redstone for Miles Wolfe on the Auditing Committee.
- Committee on Courtesy: The Committee on Courtesy presented the Rev. Robert Stone.
- Pastor's Reports: The following pastors gave their report: Oliver Dongell and James Redstone.
- Thanks: A motion prevailed to give the Rev. James R. Redstone a rising vote of thanks for his work in the conference especial in the area of statistics and financial reports.

 Rev. Redstone has accepted a church in another Conference for the coming year.
- Excused: The Pastoral Relations Committee was excused for committee work.
- Pastor's Report: Richard Kaylor gave his report.
- Motion: A motion prevailed to give a rising vote of thanks to Lawrence Olson, contractor for the Angola Pioneer church, for the work done at substantial savings.
- Testimony: Lawrence Olson gave his testimony regarding his contract work on the Angola Church.
- Motion: A motion prevailed that the Secretary be instructed to write a letter of thanks and appreciation to the denominational WMS for the \$12,000. Self Denial offering gift given to the Angola work.
- Pastor's Reports: The following pastors gave their reports:
 Paul Lawrence, Harold McIntire, Glenn McKinley, Paul
 Markell, George Osgood, Nelson Owen and Willard Steele.

Motion: A motion prevailed to delay the Orders of the Day until the Levant Church delegate reported.

Adjournment: Adjourned by the limitation of time.

Wednesday Afternoon Meeting, July 28, 1965

Opening: The meeting was called to order by the President, the Rev. Daniel A. Heinz. The Rev. A Gordon Wolfe led in the Memorial Service for the Rev. J. R. Pitt.

Roll Call: The roll was called.

Recommendation: The Board of Superannuate Minister's Aid presented a memorial to General Conference with reference to the age of retirement. By motion this was referred to the Committee on Resolutions. (See Report No. 8)

- Recommendation: The Board of Superannuate Minister's Aid presented a recommendation regarding ministerial service recognition. The recommendation with its amendment was by motion referred to the Committee on Resolutions. (See Report No. 8)
- Excused: The Pastoral Relations Committee was excused for Committee work.
- Reports: The following pastors reported: Gerald Wolter, Robert Wolcott, A. Gordon Wolfe, Theodore Pagett, Duane Janssen, Philip Birchall, Joyce Smith and Arthur Taylor.
- Committee on Courtesy: The Committee on Courtesy presented
 Dr. Robert Walker, editor of "Christian Life" magazine
 to the Conference.
- Motion: A motion prevailed that we express, by a rising vote of thanks, our appreciation to Dr. Walker for the excellent work he is accomplishing through "Christian Life" magazine, the spiritual emphasis of the magazine, the fair presentation of the Wesleyan Arminian theological position in the current doctrinal series entitled "Great Doctrines of Evangelical Protestantism".

Pastor's Report: Ralph Speas gave his report.

Adjournment: Adjourned by motion. Chaplain Robert Knowlton led in the closing prayer.

Thursday Morning Meeting, July 29, 1965

Opening: The meeting was called to order by the President, the Rev. Daniel A. Heinz. After the singing of the hymn "He Lives", the Rev. Willard Steele presented the devotional message.

Roll Call: The roll was called.

Minutes: The minutes were read, corrected and approved.

Orders of the Day: The time for the Orders of the Day having arrived, the Conference proceeded to the election of Conference Officials. The chair appointed as tellers: Richard Kaylor, Milton Putnam, David Buck, John Colley, Allen Smith, Robert Fiegl, Lawrence Ross and Edward Fuss. Allen Smith was designated as assistant to the secretary. Motion prevailed that the tellers be dismissed to tally the vote. Dr. Alton E. Liddick assumed the chair.

Elections: The following were elected:

COOLOHD . THE YOLLOWING	, note offerer		
Office	Name	<u>Votes</u> <u>Cast</u>	
President Vice President Secretary	Daniel A. Heinz Alton J. Shea Duane H. Janssen George N. Osgood	73 73 70	67 56 67
Conference Board of T Ministerial Lay Member Lay Member	Paul F. Markell Rudolph Nelson	73 70	62 46
Itineracy and Elders	Orders: (term to en Nelson Crowell		1969) 38
Conference Secretary	of Church Extension Paul F. Markell	<u>n</u> : 75	73
Camp Meeting Board: President Vice President Lay Member (term to expire i	Clarence Blackwell	73	60 54 58
Lay Member	Robert Fiegl n 1966, filling the	63 e term o	40 of Archie
Delegates to General 1st Ministerial (see afternoon minu	Conference: Daniel A. Heinz tes for completed		53 1)

Conference Sunday School Secretary Report: The report of the Conference Sunday School Secretary was read and adopted. (See Report No. 9)

Standing Rules Committee Report: The Standing Rules Committee made a partial report which was adopted.

Motion: To meet the requirements of the Standing Rule change a motion prevailed requesting the Nominating Committee to bring in names to be put in nomination for members of the Conference Board of Church Extension and Evangelism.

Pastor's Reports: The following pastors reported: Thomas Black, Fred Moore, Marvin McDuffy, and Cecil Russell.

Special Privilege: Archie Crapo was granted the privilege of speaking on the floor. Brother Crapo's term of office as a member of the Board of Trustees expired this year and he made the statement that his name should not be consider this year because he is living out of the bounds of the Conference apart of the year.

Motion: The President moved that Archie Crapo, a veteran of many years of service to the Conference, his local church (Levant), and to the Denomination as a representative to the General Conference, be given a rising vote of thanks.

Carried.

Motion: A motion prevailed to receive the report of the Nominating Committee before adjournment.

Nominating Committee: A motion prevailed to accept the re-

port of the Nominating Committee. Time was allowed for the marking of the ballots. The tellers were instructed to canvas the ballots following adjournment and to report at the next session.

Adjournment: Rev. Heinz returned to the chair. Adjourned by the limitation of time. Prayer was offered by Dr. Alton E. Liddick.

Thursday Afternoon Meeting, July 29, 1965

Opening: The meeting was called to order by the President, Rev. Heinz. Following the singing of the hymn "Draw Me Nearer", Rev. Philip J. Birchall, president of Houghton Academy, presented the interests of the school.

Roll Call: The roll was called.

Committee on Courtesy: The Committee on Courtesy presented James Mills, Sr., Rev. Roger Bohal and Ted Scott.

Results of the Election: Dr. Alton E. Liddick assumed the chair. The secretary read the result of the morning's balloting. Moved, seconded and carried that the report be received and the members elected.

Tithing Secretary: Robert Wolcott Statistician: Harold McIntire Assistant Statistician: Thomas Black Education Secretary: Ralph Speas Card Call Secretary: Clarence Barnett Blue Cross Secretary: Michael Schell Sunday School Board: Mary E. Bennett, Fred Moore Judiciary Committee: Paul F. Markell, H. N. Robinson, A. Gordon Wolfe, David Shannon Board of Superannuate Minister's Aid: Duane H. Janssen Committee on Vacancies: Elders: Oliver J. Dongell, Philip J. Birchall, Milton Putnam. Laymen: Clarence Blackwell, Robert Barnett.

Auditor Statistical Reports: Richard G. Kaylor Chairman, Budget Apportionment: Theodore Pagett

Chairman, Auditing Committee: Robert Lucky

Sunday School Secretary: Gerald A. Wolter

Committee on "Itinerator": to be appointed by the President. Committee on Conference Entertainment: to be the Camp Meeting Board

Conference Opening Sermon: to be the Denominational Representative.

Secretary of Wesleyan Men: Lawrence Olson Conference World Missions Secretary: A. Gordon Wolfe

Elections: The elections by ballot continued with the following being elected:

		<u>Votes</u>	<u>Votes</u>
Delegates to General	Conference:	Cast	Received
2nd Ministerial	Alton J. Shea	69	38
3rd Ministerial	Paul F. Markell	71	39
1st Lay	Stephen W. Paine	71	40
2nd Lay	Edward Willett	66	35
3rd Lay	Lawrence Olson	63	40

Alternate Delegates	to General Conferen	ce:	
1st Ministerial	Willard Steele	69	59
2nd Ministerial	Oliver Dongell	65	33
3rd Ministerial	Edward Angell	60	48
	Robert Fiegl	72	47
	Clarence Blackwell	72 66	47
	Willard Smith	60	38

Advisory Board: The President nominated the Rev. Oliver J. Dongell and Merwin Ludeman to serve on his Advisory Board and the Rev. George Osgood and Rudolph Nelson as Alternate members. The Conference approved.

<u>Pastoral Relations Committee Report:</u> The first reading of the Pastoral Relations Committee report was read.

Committee of Itineracy and Elder's Orders Report: The report of the Committee of Itineracy and Elder's Orders was read and by motion adopted. (See Report No. 10)

Resolutions Committee Report: The report of the Resolutions Committee was read and adopted. (See Report No. 8)

Board of Trustees Partial Report: A partial report of the Board of Trustees was read.

Motion: A motion prevailed to consider the item of the Bally Day offering as a seperate item from the rest of the report.

Motion: A motion prevailed to adopt the balance of the partial report.

Motion: A motion prevailed to amend the item regarding the Rally Day offering to read: "That a Rally Day offering or an equivalent offering be received for the development of the camp project on the Clark farm and that we utilize Rally Day to promote this project". (See Report No. 11)

Recess: The chair declared a 15 minute recess.

Nominating Committee Partial Report: The Nominating Committee submitted the following names for the Conference Board of Church Extension and Evangelism: Ministerial: Oliver J. Dongell '66; Duane H. Janssen '67; Willard Steele '68; Lay members: Donald L. Meyer '66; Robert Fiegl '67, Merwin Ludeman '68.

Motion: A motion prevailed that the report be adopted and these be elected.

Pastor's Report: H. N. Robinson made his report.

Budget Committee Report: A motion prevailed to adopt and to post the report of the Budget Committee. (See Report No.12) Excused: The Auditing Committee was excused to complete its work.

Blue Cross Treasurer's Report: The treasurer of the Blue Cross Hospitalization Plan gave his report. Adopted. (See Report No. 13)

<u>Statistical Report:</u> A motion prevailed to adopt and post the Statistical Report. (See Report No. 14)

Special Privilege: Rev. Heinz returned to the chair. A special privilege was granted the Rev. Roger Bohal to speak in behalf of "Truth For Youth". Before he spoke, the Conference was lead in the singing of the hymn "Saved To

The Uttermost".

Adjournment: Adjourned by vote. Prayer was offered by the Rev. Robert Shannon.

Friday Morning Meeting, July 30, 1965

Opening: The meeting was called to order by the President, the Rev. Daniel A. Heinz. After the singing of the hymns "I Know Whom I Have Believed" and "He Hideth My Soul", the Rev. Robert Wolcott presented the devotions.

Roll Call: The roll was called.

Minutes: The minutes were read and approved.

- Camp Meeting Board Report: The Camp Meeting Board report was read and adopted with appreciation to the Camp President, the Rev. Alton Shea. (See Report No. 15)
- Recommendations: The Camp Meeting President offered four recommendations for Conference consideration. (See Report No. 15)
- Motion: A motion was made to adopt Recommendation No. 1 with regards to the name to be used in advertising.
- Amendment: A motion prevailed to amend the Recommendation to read "Houghton Camp Meeting and Bible Conference".
- Vote: Following a call for the previous question, the Recommendation as amended was passed 48 to 15 by ballot vote.
- Resignation: Rev. Duane Janssen and Rev. David Shannon offered their resignation as members of the Board of Superannuate Minister's Aid. Moved and seconded that these resignations be accepted. Carried.
- Motion: A motion prevailed to elect the Rev. Robert Wolcott to the three year term on the Board of Superannuated Minister's Aid.
- Motion: A motion prevailed that the Nominating Committee be instructed to bring in a nomination for the additional member for this committee.
- Auditing Committee: By motion, the final report of the Auditing Committee was received and adopted. (See Report No. 16)
- Resignation: The Rev. Nelson Crowell offered his resignation as a member of the Committee of Itineracy and Elder's Orders. By motion, this resignation was accepted and referred to the Nominating Committee to submit a nomination.

Motion: A motion prevailed to suspend the Orders of the Day and adjourn by vote.

- Pastoral Relations Committee Report: A motion prevailed that the final reading of the Pastoral Relations Committee report include only the corrections. By motion, the report was adopted. (See Report No. 17)
- Board of Trustees Report: A motion prevailed to adopt the
 Board of Trustees report as amended to include the name
 of Robert Barnett as a representative to "Truth For Youth".
 (See Report No. 11)
- Motion: A motion was made to adopt Recommendation No. 2 of the Camp Meeting President. After discussion, there was a call for the question. The recommendation was adopted by a 32-23 ballot vote.

- Note: By common consent, it is understood that the adoption of this report is for consideration with final action to be determined by vote of Conference.
- Adjournment: Adjourned by vote. Edward Willett led in the closing prayer.

Friday Afternoon Meeting, July 30, 1965

- Opening: The President, the Rev. Daniel A. Heinz, called the Conference to order. After the singing of the hymn "My Hope Is Built", Dr. Stephen W. Paine spoke in the interest of Houghton College.
- Roll Call: The roll was called.
- Tithing Secretary's Report: The Tithing Secretary gave his report. Adopted. (See Report No. 18)
- Conference Board of Church Extension and Evangelism Report:

 The report of the Conference Board of Church Extension and Evangelism was read and adopted. (See Report No. 19)
- Nominating Committee Report: The Nominating Committee submitted the following names: for the Committee of Itinercy and Elder's Orders, the Rev. David Shannon; for the Board of Superannuate Minister's Aid, the Rev. Milton Putnam. By motion, the report was adopted and the members elected.
- Pioneer Missionary Report: The Conference Pioneer Missionary, the Rev. Richard Kaylor, gave his report. Adopted. (See Report No. 20)
- Standing Rules Committee Report: The Standing Rules Committee made its report which was adopted. (See Standing Rules)
- Motion: A motion was made to adopt Recommendation No. 3 of the Camp Meeting President. Following discussion, the question was called and the Recommendation adopted.
- Motion: A motion prevailed to adopt Recommendation No. 4 of the Camp Meeting President. (See Report No. 11)
- WMS President's Report: The report of the President of the WMS was read and adopted. (See Report No. 21)
- Recommendation Regarding Merger: A motion prevailed to adopt an amended statement regarding merger as "Instructions to our General Conference Delegates". The recommendation reads: "We recommend that the Lockport Annual Conference go on record in the light of present information as favoring early merger with the Pilgrim Holiness Church, and that overtures be made to the Free Methodist Church and to other holiness denominations of like mind".
- <u>Recess</u>: The chair declared a 15 minute recess for District organization.
- District Organization: Motion prevailed that the reports of the Districts be approved. (See front of Minutes)
- Unfinished Business: Motion prevailed that any unfinished business be referred to the President and his Advisory Board.
- Motion: A motion prevailed to give the Rev. George N. Osgood a rising vote of thanks for his service as Secretary of the Board of Trustees for 15 years. His ability, devotion and dedication are sincerely appreciated.

Motion: A motion prevailed that Monday, August 2, be set a-side as a Day of Fasting and Prayer for the Camp Meeting, and that each delegate and minister, whether they are at camp or at home, fast for at least one meal and spend the time in prayer for the Camp services.

Citations: The time for the presentation of Citations to be made by the denominational representative. Dr. Alton E. Liddick in behalf of the Board of General Superintendents was set for Friday evening. (See Religious Services in front of Minutes)

Minutes: The minutes were read and approved.

Adjournment: Adjourned sine die. Rev. Alton Shea led in the singing of the Doxology and then offered the closing praver.

Daniel A. Heinz, President

Juane H. Janssen, Secretary

REPORTS

Report No. 1

COMMITTEE ON RELIGIOUS SERVICES

Tuesday, July 27

8:00 p.m. - Denominational Address - Dr. Alton E. Liddick Communion Service - Rev. Alton J. Shea

Wednesday, July 28

7:00 a.m. - Morning Watch - Rev. Robert Shannon

8:30 a.m. - Devotions - Rev. H. N. Robinson

1:30 p.m. - Memorial Service - Rev. A. Gordon Wolfe

7:30 p.m. - Church Extension Service - Rev. Paul Markell

Thursday, July 29

7:00 a.m. - Morning Watch - Rev. O. Glenn McKinley

8:30 a.m. - Devotions - Rev. Willard G. Steele

1:30 p.m. - Houghton Academy - Rev. Philip J. Birchall

7:30 p.m. - Woman's Missionary Service - Dr. Alton Liddick

Friday, July 30

7:00 a.m. - Morning Watch - Rev. James R. Redstone

8:30 a.m. - Devotions - Rev. Robert Wolcott

1:30 p.m. - Houghton College - Dr. Stephen W. Paine 7:30 p.m. - Sunday School Night - Rev. Oliver J. Dongell

Signed: Daniel A. Heinz Alton J. Shea Stephen W. Paine

Report No. 2

COMMITTEE ON TEMPORARY ORGANIZATION

Committee on Boundries: Jessie Taylor, chairman; Norva Ross

Committee on Pastoral Relations: Daniel A. Heinz, chairman; Milton Putnam, H. N. Robinson, Robert Shannon, Lawrence Ross, Robert Fiegl, Clarence Blackwell

Committee on Budget Apportionment: Theodore Pagett, chairman; Richard George, Lee Martin, Edward Willett

Committee on Auditing: Robert Luckey, chairman; Robert Barnett, Clifford Garrison, Robert Nice, James Redstone

Committee on Post Office: Conference Secretary

Committee on Courtesies: David Shannon, chairman; Paul Markel Committee on Standing Rules: Duane Janssen, chairman; Stephe Paine, Bess Fancher

Committee on Resolutions: Ralph Speas, chairman; Clifford Garrison, Donald Yaxley, Sr.

Respectfully Submitted, A. Gordon Wolfe, chairman David Shannon Carl Schultz

Report No. 3

COMMITTEE ON MINISTERIAL CHARACTER

The Committee on Ministerial Character has examined the Minister's reports presented to them. In reports that were irregular, it has sought to determine the reason, and has referred these irregularities to the Pastoral Relations Committee to discuss the problems with the pastors and the delegate involved. The Committee recommends that the character of all the ministers on the Conference Roll who have reported be passed.

The following ministers have failed to report to Conference according to Standing Rule No. 4d. However, we know of no reason for not passing their Ministerial Character. We believe the Secretary should inform them of their failure to report and remind them of Paragraph 216 in the Discipline.

Those failing to report are: Hudson Hess, Gordon Strong, J. Whitney Shea.

Respectfully Submitted, Daniel A. Heinz, chairman Milton Putnam Carl Aylor

Report No. 4

PRESIDENT'S ANNUAL REPORT

Greetings to the members of the Lockport Annual Conference of the Wesleyan Methodist Church, met in its one hundred and fourth year of service this twenty-seventh day of July, 1965, at Houghton, New York.

This has been our second year with two full time Conference workers. The Lord has honored and blessed our vision and faith. The Pioneer Church at Angola continues to be a miracle of the Lord. The first unit of the Church is completed. The bid price for the 32' by 74' basement, first floor sanctuary, and a 16' by 16' entrance was a low \$31,500. An additional \$2000 worth of landscaping, painting and finishing was requested by the local congregation. The total cost including the additional work came to \$31,375. We greatly appreciate the dedication of our contractor, Lawrence Olson, his foreman, Nelson Crowell and the Angola volunteers for their work.

The Denominational Woman's Missionary Society gave \$12,000 to the Conference for Church Extension. The Trustees designated the gift to the Angola Church. Because of this gift, our Angola Church indebtedness is only \$20,000. The local congregation has assumed this responsibility along with some of the pastoral expenses.

On Easter Sunday, the first service in the new church, the attendance was another encouragement. There were 78 in Sunday School, 135 in Morning Worship and 50 in the Evening Service. We appreciate the untiring efforts of Pastor and Mrs. Kaylor. A full report of the Pioneer work will be given by our Church Extension Secretary.

The Conference Pioneer Work continues to be the challenge and hope of the Conference. We greatly appreciate the prayers and support given this home missionary outreach.

Almost every church presents an encouraging outlook. Attendance, finances and spiritual depth seem to be at a high point. How we thank God for this. We are grateful for faithful pastors and laymen, but we all know that without the Lord's help, we labour in vain. Let us continue to humble ourselves before the Lord!

We find it difficult to know how to report our activities. Some reports list almost a day by day account. We have been of the opinion that you wanted primarily a listing of such acts that are truly official in that they required either Trustee or Advisory Board action.

We have endeavored to be faithful to our various responsibilities. In addition to the regular visitation of the church es, we have represented the Conference interests on the local Board of Trustees of Houghton College, as a Director for the Houghton Academy, the Leaders' Conference at Marion, Indiana, the National Holiness Association, the Area National Associa-

tion of Evangelicals, and the Asbury Ministerial at Asbury Theological Seminary.

A view of the statistics reveal the following facts: full membership 1340, a gain of 36; total membership 1920 a gain of 59; total Sunday School enrollment 4252, a gain of 93; a gain of 49 in the average attendance of the Sunday School; total assets \$1,906,800., total liabilities \$319,215.; an increase in pastors salaries of \$11,345. All but six churches reported the General and Conference Budgets assigned were paid in full.

During this past Camp Meeting Rev. Joseph R. Pitt was called to his eternal reward. His scholarly ministery influenced the lives of many as pastor of the Houghton Church and other churches of our Conference and in Canada.

The Church Builders Foundation continues to grow. The Rally Day offering was \$832.25. During this past year, another of our faithful members told us that they were including the Conference in their will. Gifts and bequests to this Fund will form a continuing service to the Church.

Personally, we wish to thank each one for your kindness, consideration and cooperation. Differences of opinions are only natural in a conference of our size, but your spirit or brotherly love and understanding is sincerely appreciated.

We thank God for His blessing in the material areas of the Conference, but most of all we appreciate the outpoured blessing in the lives of His people. Spiritual progress is always challenged by the Arch Enemy, but this is to be expected by the mature. The Christians of the first century were criticized and martyred for their faith, yet their refusal to compromise inspired others to take up their cause. In spite of the crafty opposition of the Devil, we sense a desire for spiritual awakening and deepening throughout the Conference. In some areas, true revival has already begun. Our prayer is for this Spirit to continue and grow. Holiness of heart and life is objective of each true follower of the Lord. Let us so live and labor that in that final day we will hear His, "Well done, thou good and faithful servant."

Respectfully submitted, Daniel A. Heinz

OFFICIAL ACTS OF THE PRESIDENT FOR 1964-65 My Advisory Board concurred in the following actions:

1964

- Aug. 10 Approved the election of the Wesleyan Youth officers.
- 2. Aug. 10 Elected Robert Janssen and David Wolfe to receive the Conference Scholarship at Houghton.

- 3. Aug. 15 Received a letter of transfer for Rev. Gerald A. Wolter from the Iowa Annual Conference of the Wesleyan Methodist Church. Adv. Board approved.
- 4. Aug. 16 Dedicated the remodeled Oakland Wesleyan Methodist Church.
- 5. Aug. 31 Signed a Show Cause Order for a Court Order to clear property sold by the Levant Wesleyan Methodist Church in 1912.
- 6. Sept. 27 Officiated at the Ground Breaking Service for the Angola Pioneer Church.
- 7. Sept. 28 Received a check for \$12,000 from the Church Extension Department of the Denomination for the Building Fund for the Angola Pioneer Church.
- 8. Oct. 12 Signed a petition for a Court Order for a Mortgage for the Angola Church Building as authorized by the Conference Board of Trustees.
- 9. Oct. 12 Signed a Bond and Mortgage for \$20,000 at 6% interest, with monthly payments of \$168.78 for 15 years, with the Marine Trust Company of Western New York in behalf of the Angola Church. This action was authorized by the Conference Board of Trustees.
- 10. Oct. 26 Received the resignation of Rev. Larry L. Lutz as pastor of the McCrae Brook Wesleyan Methodist Church effective October 30. Rev. Lutz resigned for the purpose of continuing his education. He requested that he be listed on the Unstationed List of Elders until a more definite appointment could be made.
- 11. Oct. 26 Listed Rev. Larry L. Lutz in the Unstationed List of Elders at his request.
- 12. Nov. 2 Signed a property and right-away agreement with Allegany County regarding road land on our Rushford Lake property for the sum of \$500. This action was authorized by the Conference Board of Trustees.
- 13. Nov. 12 Appointed Arthur Fish, Supply Pastor of the McCrae Brook Wesleyan Methodist Church. My Advisory Board and the local Church concurred in this action.
- 14. Nov. 15 Dedicated the new parsonage at the Lockport Wesleyan Methodist Church.
- 15. Nov. 20 Granted the Hess Road Church permission to call Rev. Charles Palmer, an E.U.B. Evangelist for special services.

1965

16. Jan. 10 - Received the resignation of Rev. Joyce Smith as pastor of the North Pembroke Wesleyan Methodist Church. Appointed Rev. Joyce Smith as Conference Evangelist.

- 17. Jan. 10 Appointed John VanValin and Richard Lofgren as student supply pastors of the North Pembroke Wesley-an Methodist Church.
- 18. Feb. 2 Granted the Houghton Church permission to call Dr. Joe Blink and Dr. Henry Demen as Evangelists.
- 19. Feb. 3 Met with the Middle States Evaluating Committee at Houghton College regarding the continued accreditation of the College.
- 20. Feb. 24 The Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees approved the request of the Hamburg Church to purchase land 82' by 300' adjoining present property at Newton Road for the purchase price of \$2500.
- 21. March ll Signed a petition for a court order for the sale of some property as requested by the Silver Creek Wesleyan Methodist Church and as authorized by the Conference Board of Trustees.
- 22. March 11 Signed a deed in the transfer of the above mentioned property as requested by the Silver Creek Church and as authorized by the Conference Board of Trustees.
- 23. March 12 Granted the Oakland Church permission to call Rev. John Carlson as Evangelist.
- 24. April 12 Signed a petition for a Court Order in behalf of the Olean Wesleyan Methodist Church for permission to sell land as authorized by the Executive Committee of the Conference Board of Trustees. The money received will be used to pay existing notes and bonds.
- 25. April 27 Signed a Sales Contract in behalf of the Hamburg Wesleyan Methodist Church with Mrs. Lillian H. Greenoff for the purchase of land at a cost of \$2500 as authorized by the Conference Board of Trustees.
- 26. May 3 My Advisory Board made the following appointments for Annual Conference:
 - Committee on Ministerial Character: Conference President, Milton Putnam, Carl Aylor
 - Committee on Temporary Organization: Gordon Wolfe, David Shannon, Carl Schultz
 - 3. Committee on Itineracy and Elders Orders: Allen Smith. Clarence Blackwell, Lawrence Ross
 - 4. Committee on Entertainment: Camp Board
 - 5. Opening Sermon for Conference: Dr. Alton Liddick
- 27. May 14 Signed an on demand note in behalf of the Silver Creek Wesleyan Methodist Church for \$16,000 at a rate of interest not to exceed 5½% per annum as authorized by the Conference Board of Trustees.
- 28. June 2 At the request of the Olean Church Board of Stewards and Trustees and the Conference Board of Church Extension, declared the Olean Church a Pioneer Church.

- 29. June 8 At the request of the Conference Board of Church Extension, the Executive Committee of the Conference Board of Trustees gave the Olean Wesleyan Methodist Church \$1428. for three months mortgage payments. This grant of \$1428. is to be repaid to the Church Builders Foundation at the rate of \$150. per month, beginning September 1965 from the Conference Pioneer Fund.
- 30. June 25 Signed a Demand Note in behalf of the Silver Creek Wesleyan Methodist Church for a total indebtedness of \$42,000. at 6% interest with the Manufactures and Traders Trust Company of Silver Creek, N.Y. as author-1zed by the Conference Board of Trustees.
- 31. June 25 At the request of the Olean Wesleyan Methodist Church, the Conference Board of Trustees authorized the borrowing of \$1000. from the Church Builders Foundation for current indebtedness and that this amount be repaid from an Olean Assistance Budget of \$1.00 per member in addition to the present Olean Assistance Budget of \$1.00 per member.
- 32. June 25 The Conference Board of Trustees authorized the Oakland Wesleyan Methodist Church to purchase land adjacent to their present property and to borrow \$1000. for the purchase of it.
- 33. June 30 Granted the McCrae Brook Wesleyan Methodist Church permission to call Robert Stone as pastor. Mr. Stone is a Conference Preacher in the Rochester Conference of the Wesleyan Methodist Church.
- 34. July 22 Signed an Installment Promissory Note jointly with the Hamburg Wesleyan Methodist Church with Mrs. Lillian H. Greanoff for \$2400 at 4% interest for property on Newton Road. This action was authorized by the Conference Board of Trustees.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT Conference Year 1964-1965

Telephone 202.51 Postage 97.57 Office Expense 231.66 Receipts: Salary \$5200.00 Parsonage 780.00 Utilities 425.18 Gifts 307.00 Blue Cross Insurance Premiums 129.47 Social Security 259.20	Expenses: Miles Traveled: 21,726 @ .07	•	1.00 40
Postage 97.57 Office Expense 231.66 Receipts: Salary \$5200.00 Parsonage 780.00 Utilities 425.18 Gifts 307.00 Blue Cross Insurance Premiums 129.47 Social Security 259.20		₽	
Office Expense 231.66 Receipts: \$ 2052.56 Receipts: \$ 5200.00 Parsonage 780.00 Utilities 425.18 Gifts 307.00 Blue Cross Insurance Premiums 129.47 Social Security 259.20			
Receipts:			
Receipts: Salary Parsonage Viilities Gifts Blue Cross Insurance Premiums Social Security 5200.00 780.00 425.18 307.00 129.47	Office Expense		
Salary \$5200.00 Parsonage 780.00 Utilities 425.18 Gifts 307.00 Blue Cross Insurance Premiums 129.47 Social Security 259.20		\$	2052.56
Salary \$ 5200.00 Parsonage 780.00 Utilities 425.18 Gifts 307.00 Blue Cross Insurance Premiums 129.47 Social Security 259.20	Receipts:		
Parsonage 780.00 Utilities 425.18 Gifts 307.00 Blue Cross Insurance Premiums 129.47 Social Security 259.20		d.	5200.00
Utilities 425.18 Gifts 307.00 Blue Cross Insurance Premiums 129.47 Social Security 259.20		4	
Gifts 307.00 Blue Cross Insurance Premiums 129.47 Social Security 259.20			
Blue Cross Insurance Premiums 129.47 Social Security 259.20			
Social Security 259.20			307.00
	Blue Cross Insurance Premiums		129.47
	Social Security		259.20
\$\$ 71DU.00	•	<u>\$</u>	7100.00

Signed: Daniel A. Heinz President

Report No. 5
REPORT OF THE TREASURER 1964--1965

Budget Items	Beginning of year	Cash Receipts	Total Cash Receipts	Disburse- ments	Balance on Hand
World Missions Australia Brainerd Indian School Church Ext. & Evang.		96.13 129.35 134.40 1382.45	129.35 134.40 1382.45		
Superannuated Administrative Gen Conf. Ent. & Travel Bd. Mtng. Exp. Orphanage Gen. S.S.	270.93	4529.50 2173.80 641.00 199.90 156.22 904.76	2173.80 641.00 199.90 156.22 904.76	2173.80 641.00 199.90 156.22 904.76	236.43
Education Wes. Seminary Camp Meeting Conf. Pres. Sal. Conf. Work Conf. Ent.	848.52 982.60 1910.04	5160.00 16932.18 634.50	386.15 9446.22 6142.60 18842.22 634.50	386.15 8241.85	2577.10
Conf. S.S. Conf. Property Camp Development Olean Assist. TOTALS	628.96 869.33 5510.38	361.90 621.50 319.00 1179.00 47836.33	621.50	}	990.86 597.30 1188.33 7816.99

Approved: Auditing Committee

Signed: George N. Osgood, Treas.

Report No. 6 ITINERATOR REPORT

Circulation No. of paid copies mailed to churches No. of paid copies mailed to individuals No. of complementary copies Total copies circulated per issue

Financial		
Bal. on Hand, July 27, 1964	\$	34.53
Receipts from churches	•	285.45
Receipts from individuals		3.00
Total receipts plus balance	\$	322.98
Disbursements:		
Cost of printing		195.95
Postage		24.05
Total Disbursements	\$	220.00
Bal. on Hand, July 24, 1965	•	102.98

Approved, Auditing Committee

Respectfully Submitted, Carl Aylor, Business Mgr.

REPORT NO. 7

TREASURER OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Receipts: Cash on Hand, July 28, 1964 Builder's Foundation Fund Rally Day Offerings Buffalo Bradford Little Valley Cleveland Drive Angola Olean Interest on Monies invested Conference Treasurer Total Receipts	5,124.56 352.00 852.60 2,502.50 1,200.00 275.00 350.00 31,643.00 80.00 198.24 1,120.00	43,697.90
Disbursements:	19 55	
Builder's Foundation Fund Exp. Board Meeting Travel Expense	18.55	
Bradford Note Principal & Interest	29.12 1,200.00	
Lora Crowell Estate - Note Principal		
and Interest	1,934.58	
Cleveland Drive - Note Principal &	19904000	
Interest	279.00	
Little Valley - Note Principal & In		
Edith Hall - Note Principal & Int.	1,050.00	
Olean Loans	2,428.00	
Angola Project	31,571.60	
Total Disbursements	\$	38,520.85
Balance on Hand, July 26, 1965		5,177.05
Annual de Annual de Committe de la C		

Approved: Auditing Committee

Respectfully Submitted, Rudolph C. Nelson, Treas.

BUILDER'S FOUNDATION FUND

BUILDER'S FOUNDATION F	מאט
Receipts: Balance on Hand, July 28, 1964 Trans. from Bflo. Acc't. 1964 Rally Day Offering Buffalo Payments Gifts Interest on Monies invested Olean Note interest Conference - Note principal & Int. (Clark Farm Project) Cleveland Drive - Int. on Conf. note Total Receipts	\$ 829.06 3,101.77 852.60 2,502.50 352.00 198.24 80.00 1,120.00 120.00 \$9,156.17
Disbursements: Advertising Expense Loans to Little Valley Loans to Olean Total Disbursements Balance on Hand, July 26, 1965	\$ 18.55 2,900.00 2,428.00 \$5,346.55 3,809.62
LOANS UNDER BUILDER'S FOUNDA	TION FUND
Houghton Camp Association Houghton Camp Association Little Valley Little Valley Olean Olean 2/4/64 3/7/64 11/10/64 6/8/65 6/30/65	1,000.00 1,900.00 1,000.00 1,428.00
Receipts on above notes: Houghton Camp Association Balance of Outstanding Notes	\$\frac{1,000.00}{7,328.00}
Respectful	ly Submitted,
Rudolph C.	Nelson, Treas.
CONFERENCE NOTES RECEIV July 26, 1965	ABLE
Olean Cleveland Drive Houghton Camp Association Little Valley Buffalo - Mortgage Total Notes Receivable	\$ 5,428.00 3,000.00 2,000.00 2,700.00 7,000.00 \$ 20,128.00
CONFERENCE NOTES PAYAB July 26, 1965	rr F
Bradford Cleveland Drive Little Valley Cleveland Drive	7,664.93 1,800.00 500.00 1,800.00 \$ 11,764.93

Approved Auditing Committee Respectfully Submitted, Rudolph C. Nelson, Treas.

Report No. 8

1. We recommend the following resolution:

"We the members of the Lockport Annual Conference gathered at its 104th annual session do reaffirm our faith in the doctrines of the Wesleyan Methodist Church as set forth in the book of Discipline, and do hereby express our loyalty to the denomination, its General Superintendents, the Boards of Administration, and the departmental leaders.

"We further dedicate ourselves to the Quadrennial emphasis 'Evangelize Now' through World Missions, Wesleyan Youth and the local Church."

2. We support the resolution recommended to General Conference by the Board of Superannuate Minister's Aid to be added in line four after the word "required" of Paragraph 446, Article 1,, of the "Wesleyan Methodist Discipline" stated:

"The minimum age of retirement shall be 65 years at full pension. If retirement is taken before 65 years of age, but not earlier than 62 years of age, there shall be a loss of quarterly benefits of 6 2/3% for each year of retirement taken earlier than 65 years of age."

3. We further recommend:

"In the event Federal Social Security requirements alter by the time of the session of General Conference in 1966, we suggest changes in eligibility for pension benefits that would be in alignment with the current Federal Social Security regulations."

4. We make the following recommendations on the Superannuate Minister's Aid recommendation referred to this committee:

"That an alphabetical listing of all elders in the Lockport Conference continue to appear in the Conference Minutes and that the chronological listing be deleted for reasons of efficiency.

"That we support the plan developed by the Board of General Superintendents which provides recognition for ministerial service in favor of a Conference program of pastoral recognition to avoid a duplication of this same service."

Respectfully Submitted, Raiph Speas, Chairman Donald W. Yaxley Cliff Garrison

Report No. 9

SUNDAY SCHOOL SECRETARY

During the past year the secretary was responsible for three mailings to pastors keeping them informed on Sunday School developments on the Conference and General levels. Also it was the privilege of the Secretary to speak to several local teachers and officers gathering around the Conference. Perhaps the most time consuming duty was the planning for and direction of the Crusader Youth Camp. Though a heavy burden, the experiences of CYC were rewarding. A full report will appear in next year's minutes.

We are happy to note that both Sunday School enrollment and average attendance showed gains for the past year in the Conference. These, however, are not at all what they should be. It seems that the combined efforts of all our churches ought to produce more results. May God never let us become content with what we have done, but keep us actively involved in stretching for higher goals.

"Since we did not have a special convention or rally on the conference level this year, our financial report is quite minimal.

Receipts:

Balance on Hand, July 15, 1964 Offering for Conf. S.S. Night - 1964 Total Receipts	\$ 59.49 <u>136.25</u> \$ 195.74
Disbursements: Telephone calls Mileage	\$ 5.00 10.00
Postage and Mailings Total Disbursements Balance on Hand, July 15, 1965	\$\frac{9.80}{24.80}\$ 170.94

Approved: Auditing Comm.

Respectfully Submitted, Oliver J. Dongell

Report No. 10 COMMITTEE ON ITINERACY AND ELDER'S ORDERS

Your Committee respectfully recommends the following:

- 1. That Marvin McDuffee, Thomas Black, Fred Moore be continued to study and travel under the direction of the conference and that they receive authorization papers.
- 2. That Ralph Speas be continued to study and travel under the direction of the conference and that he receive authorization papers upon completion of requirements.
- 3. That Robert Stone and Arthur Fish be received to study and travel under the direction of the conference and that they receive authorization papers.
- 4. That J. Whitney Shea be returned to his quarterly conference.
- 5. That Barry Ross be transferred to the Champlain Conference.
- 6. That Richard Wolfe, Bruce Hess, Donald Dayton, Roger Crassi and Gary Noyes be continued to study preparatory to travel under the direction of the conference.

- 7. That all those now studying under the direction of the conference be acquainted with the intention of the committee to follow the Disciplinary requirements regarding the Course of Study and Reading Course. In case of the granting of authorization papers, the time limit for completion of requirements shall be within three months after the rise of Conference or Presidential appointment.
- 8. That all Conference Preachers report in person each year or in writing to this committee in regard to the pastoral and/or evangelistic services engaged in and that they pass two books in the Course of Study and read two books in the Reading Course.

Signed: Willard G. Steele
George N. Osgood
Daniel A. Heinz
Nelson Crowell
Clarence Blackwell
Allen Smith

Report No. 11 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The Board of Trustees of the Lockport Annual Conference meeting in regular session at Houghton, New York, July 27-30, 1965, respectfully present to the Conference now in session the following recommendations:

- 1. That the Conference Entertainment Budget be assigned to the Camp Meeting Committee, and that until further action all bills pertaining to the Conference Entertainment be paid by the Camp Meeting Committee.
- 2. That the budget for Conference Work be at the rate of \$3.75 per member.
- 3. That the budget for Conference Entertainment be at the rate of .50 per member.
- 4. That the budget for Conference Sunday School work be at the rate of .10 per member on the basis of the number enrolled in the main school.
- 5. That the budget for Conference President's Salary be at the rate of \$4.00 per member.
- 6. That a special budget item of \$1.00 per member be assigned to assist the Olean Church meet the following General Budgets: Superannuate, Administrative, General Conference Expense and Entertainment, Board Meeting, Education, Seminary, Conference President's Salary, Conference Work and Conference Entertainment.
- 7. That an additional special budget item of \$1.00 per member be assigned to repay a \$1,000 loan from the Church Build-

ers! Foundation in behalf of the Olean Church.

- 8. That the Conference President's salary be at the rate of \$105.00 per week with .07 per mile for car travel, plus house, office expenses, all utilities, all Social Security taxes. and Blue Cross insurance premiums.
- 9. That the Annual Conference Secretary and the Annual Conference Treasurer be paid the sum of \$125.00 each, plus office expenses, for the year ending 1966.
- 10. That we continue the "Itinerator" on the subscription basis at the rate of .40 per subscription.
- 12. That the schedule of meal rates for Camp Meeting be: Breakfast .50. Dinner \$1.00. Lunch .70. Sunday Dinner \$1.10.
- 13. That the Camp Committee be authorized to promote a Camp Meeting Sunday in each local Church at which time there shall be a special offering for the Camp Meeting.
- 14. That a campground development committee be appointed consisting of the Camp President, the Conference President, the W.Y. President, the Conference Treasurer, Robert Fiegl, Douglas Burke, and Merwin Ludeman.
- 15. That we grant the request of the College to use the Tabernacle for a Physical Education teaching station.
- 16. That the Advisory Committee for Building and Remodeling Plans be as follows: Lawrence Olson, Robert Fiegl, Oliver Dongell and George N. Osgood.
- 17. That the Advisory Committee for Building and Remodeling Plans, study and recommend a policy concerning the maintenance and future use of the Conference Parsonage.
- 18. That we authorize the third year's payment of \$600.00 on the Louis Clark farm out of Camp Meeting funds.
- 19. That the Camp Meeting Development Budget be at the rate of .25 per member.
- 20. That a Rally Day offering or an equivalent offering be received for the development of the camp project on the Clark farm and that we utilize Rally Day to promote this project.
- 21. That the Conference Parsonage Development budget be at the rate of .50 per member.
- 22. That Charles Worthington and Robert Barnett be appointed Conference representatives for Truth for Youth and that our churches include Truth for Youth in their benevolent program.
- 23. That we authorize the Chairman of the Board to execute a lease on Dow Hall to the College for student and guest occupation as of September 1, 1965 through June 7, 1966.

- 24. That 650 copies of the minutes of this session of Conference be distributed to the several charges and that the Conference President, Secretary of the Board of Trustees, and or the Conference Secretary be authorized to use the Conference seal on all legal papers.
- 25. That the Rev. Daniel A. Heinz be chairman of the Board of Trustees; that Dr. Stephen W. Paine be secretary; that Mr. Rudolph C. Nelson be treasurer; that the Executive Committee be composed of the officers of the Board.

Signed:
Daniel A. Heinz
Rudolph C. Nelson
George N. Osgood
Alton J. Shea
Archie R. Crapo

Paul F. Markell Stephen W. Paine Robert R. Luckey Oliver J. Dongell

Report No. 12

BUDGET APPORTIONMENT COMMITTEE
See Budget Apportionments pages 72 - 73

Report No. 13 BLUE CROSS MINISTER'S FUND

Receipts:
Balance Brought Forward
Received from Pastors
Total Receipts

\$ 259.96 3403.30 \$ 3663.26

Disbursements:
Premiums and Postage
Checks Returned
Total Disbursements
Balance on Hand, July 28, 1965

\$ 3381.64 59.03 \$ 3440.67 222.59

Approved:
Auditing Committee

Respectfully Submitted, Michael F. Schell, Treas.

Report No. 14
STATISTICAL REPORT
See Statistics pages 60 - 71.

Report No. 15 CAMP MEETING BOARD

With praise to God and our Lord Jesus Christ, report is ade to this body of the camp meeting and related enterprises. e Camp Meeting Board has worked with enthusiasm and harmony is year in promoting the annual camp meeting and managing

the dining hall. It has been active in a study of future developments in summer activities for our growing constituecy. The annual gathering of the churches at Houghton for Camp Meeting continues to constitute one of the major enterprises of our Conference. The health and well-being of this annual pilgrimage is of vital importance to the onward progress of our total endeavor.

We look forward to the coming week and the ministries of the following: Dr. David A. Seamands, Dr. Wilbur T. Dayton, Rev. Roger C. Rounds, Rev. Sam Allred, Mrs. Robert Smith and others of our local brethren.

In recognising the many who make Houghton Camp possible, including the cordial hospitality of Houghton College, I list our helpers as they served the past year: Secretary, Ralph Speas; Dining Hall Manager, Gordon Wolfe; Assistant, Milton Putnam; Custodian, Maurice Gibbs; Assistant, Clair Day; Room Managers, Rev. and Mrs. Harold McIntire; Ushers, James Hurd and Paul Gilmore; Publicity, Mary Bennett; Public Address system, Allen Smith. Mr. Robert Miller has given invaluable service in the sound system also.

May God grant that as the darkness gathers over the earth preceding the glorious coming of our Lord, Houghton Camp may see increasing numbers receiving blessing from the preaching and teaching of full salvation here.

Office supplies, mileage and meals of the Camp Meeting Board's President totals \$42.08.

During Conference, July 27-30, 150 persons were supplied lodging. Meals served in the dining hall totaled 1829.

- I submit the following recommendations:
- 1. That the main week of Camp Meeting be known in advertising as Houghton Camp Meeting and Bible Conference.
- 2. That consideration be given to the idea that the Bible Conference be moved in the near future to the main campus of the College using Wesley Auditorium, East Hall, and classrooms and facilities adjacent.
- 3. I recommend the adopting of the report of the Camp Board on development of the Clark Farm as beginning of new camping programs for children and youth of our constituency.
- 4. I recommend that the report of the Camp Meeting Treasure be printed in the Conference Minutes.

Respectfully Submitted, Alton J. Shea, Chairman Camp Board

DEVELOPMENT OF CLARK FARM CAMPING AREA

1. The Conference shall proceed to develop camping facilities on the Clark Farm adjacent to College properties.

- 2. The College will be asked to cooperate in developing the youth program on a portion of this camp.
- 3. The East side (house side) will be developed for youth. The West side (barn side) will be developed for adult camp. The Adult side will eventually have tent and trailer and cottage areas laid out.
- 4. Youth Camp will be for enrollment of 120 to 200 ages 8-18 under the schedule:
 - a. Acquire adjoining property to the North for lake
 - b. Work toward construction of six cabin areas
 - c. Construct dining hall, recreation building combination
 - d. Plan for lake
 - e. Construct Administration building
- 5. Adult Camp will aim for:
 - a. Tent areas
 - b. Trailer areas, access roads. (No permanent trailers)
 - c. Cabins constructed according to approved plan, and to be the property of the Conference.
- 6. Timetable

Youth camp to begin operation in the summer of 1966. It will be under supervision of the Lockport Conference Trustees. Start with four weeks with 60 youth each week.

7.	Cost estimates and program of financing	1
	a. Raise \$5,000 in 1965-66. Wesleyan	
	Camp Mee	ting 1,000.
	Rally Da	y Offering 1,000.
	Interest	ed Friends 2,000.
	Total	\$5,000.
	b. Immediate Costs	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
	Property Aquisition	\$2,000.
	Five waterless sanitation	250.
	Tents on platforms @ \$20 per pers	on 1,200.
	Electricity and water to dining a	rea 500.
	Wash area	200.
	Road to cabin areas	500.
	Advertising	200.
	Miscellaneous	150.
		\$5,000.

- c. Long range costs for youth program
 Lake (from \$5,000. to \$20,000.)
 Dining-Recreation hall
 Administration Building
 Eventual cabins for tents
 Sanitation system
- 8. This is understood as a youth program development ages 8-18. Bible Conference is to continue in the forseeable future on the present property.

Houghton Camp Board

CAMP MEETING TREASURER'S REPORT

Receipts:	
Balance on Hand Beginning of year	\$ 848.52
Offerings	2,797.43
Meals	516.80
Youth	686.00
Room Rent	227.00
Gifts	252.50
Pledges	1,058.00
Trailer Parking	2.00
Lease	10.00
Rent - Clark Farm	965.00
Haiti Relief	274.72
Food Sales	25.00
Milk Reimbursement	104.35
Dow Hall Rent	300.00
Refunds on Insurance	244.40
Rushford Lake Property Road change	500.00
Conference Entertainment	634.50
Total Cash Receipts	\$ 9,446.22
<u>-</u>	4), 110000
Disbursements:	A 446 00
Caretaker	\$ 146.75
Maintenance	61.37
Printing and Advertising	189.00
Utilities	118.74
Insurance	505.60
Evangelists and Workers	1,050.00
Food and Kitchen Supplies	2,356.60
Kitchen Help	777.85
Miscellaneous	543.09
Clark Farm Expense	475.85
Payment on Clark Farm*	900.00
Payment on Loan for Modernizing Clark Farm	1,120.00
Total Disbursements	\$ 8,241.85
Balance on Hand	1,204.37
*Principal \$444.00; Interest: \$456.00	

Signed: George N. Osgood, Treas.

Report No. 16 AUDITING COMMITTEE

We have audited the books of the Conference President, the Conference Treasurer, the Board of Trustees Treasurer, the Sunday School Secretary, and the Wesleyan Youth Treasurer, and have found them in order.

The report of the "Itinerator" was in order, although no bank statement was furnished.

For the books of the Blue Cross Treasurer and the Pioneer Fund, we found that the books balanced and reports checked.

However in the light of the newly proposed Standing Rule, we were unable to verify the source of record from pastor or church or find copy or stub to indicate receipts issued.

Respectfully submitted,
Robert Luckey, chairman

Report No. 17

PASTORAL RELATIONS COMMITTEE

- 1. How many elders are in the Conference? 59
- 2. Who of the elders are on the stationed list? See Conference Roll.
- Who of the annual conference preachers are on the stationed list? See Conference Roll.
- 4. Who of the elders are on the reserve list? None.
- Who of the elders are on the unstationed list? See Conference Roll.
- Who of the elders are on the superannuate list? See Conference Roll.
- 7. Who of the elders have been deposed this year? None.
- 8. Who of the elders have withdrawn this year?
 - (1) by voluntary withdrawal None.
 - (2) by letter of standing None.
- 9. Who have joined the Conference this year?
 - (1) by ordination None
 - (2) by transfer Gerald A. Wolter, Iowa Conference.
 - (3) by credentials from some other religious body? None.
- 10. Who of the elders have died this year? J. R. Pitt.
- 11. Who of the annual conference preachers have died this year? None
- 12. Who of the annual conference preachers have transferred this year? None
- 13. How is the work supplied?

(NOTE: Listing by Post Office, Church Name, Pastor)

New York Churches

Appleton, Hess Road Batavia, First

Batavia, North Pembroke
Buffalo Suburban Churches:

Angola Blasdell, Big Tree Cheektowaga, Cleveland Drive

Fred J. Moore A. Gordon Wolfe Roger Crassi, assistant Bichard Lofgren, supply

Richard G. Kaylor Theodore R. Pagett Robert McCarthy, supply

East Aurora Elma, Blossom Hamburg Orchard Park, Ellicott Caneadea, Belleville Cattaraugus, First Cattaraugus, East Leon Cuba Falconer, Levant Fillmore Freedom, Higgins Forestville Houghton

Leon Little Valley Lockport Lyndonville, Ashwood Machias Nunda, Oakland

01ean Silver Creek Wellsville, First

Michael F. Schell O. G. McKinley Duane H. Janssen Paul F. Markell
Arthur J. Taylor, supply
Paul S. Lawrence Marvin McDuffee Harold McIntire Willard G. Steele David Shannon Milton R. Putnam Robert Shannon Edward D. Angell Gerald A. Wolter, assoc. Geneva M. Pritchard George N. Osgood John W. Colley Ralph F. Speas Clair A. Day Thomas B. Black Eldyn Simons, assistant H. N. Robinson Oliver J. Dongell Alton J. Shea

Pennsylvania Churches

Bradford Driftwood, Castle Garden Eldred, McCrae Brook Emporium, Rich Valley Weedville, Medix Run

David Buck Robert Wolcott Robert Stone Nelson G. Owen Robert Wolcott

Other Appointments

President of the Conference Administrative Assistant for World Missions General President, Woman's Missionary Society General Evangelist President, Houghton Academy Houghton College: Chairman, Div. of Theology Sec., Public Relations Office Mary E. Bennett Instructor of Bible Carl Schultz Chaplain Taylor University: Professor of Bible U. S. Army Chaplain Supplying: Wellsville, Hallsport Assoc. Macomb, N.Y. Wes. Meth. Conference Evangelists

Church Builder

Daniel A. Heinz

Robert N. Lytle

Helen F. Stark Price P. Stark Philip J. Birchall

Bert H. Hall Gerald A. Wolter

Charles Wilson Robert Knowlton

Arthur Fish James R. Redstone S. I. McMillen Alice McMillen Nelson Crowell

Representative, Inter. Students
Missionaries - Wesleyan Fields:
Africa

Haiti
Missionaries - Other Fields:
Haiti (O.M.S.)
San Blas Islands
Phillipines (C.M.A.)
Conference Missionary working
under direction of the Conf.
Board of Church Extension

Joyce M. Smith

Marion Birch Warren Woolsey Glenn W. Barnett

Hudson Hess Peter D. Miller Gordon Strong

Richard G. Kaylor

Respectfully Submitted, Daniel A. Heinz, Chairman Milton Putnam Robert Shannon Robert Fiegl Lawrence Ross Clarence Blackwell

Report No. 18

The Discipline of the Wesleyan Methodist Church, Par. 89, states, in part, "Since God is a God of system and order in all of His doing, we believe the mind of the Spirit, as taught in the Word, to be that all Christians should faithfully tithe and present offerings for the support and furtherance of the Gospel. We recommend that such tithes and offerings be brought into the storehouse (church) for their proper and systematic distribution".

Par. 90 reads in part, "We therefore recommend:
(1) That all our people pay to God at least one tenth of all their increase as a minimum financial obligation, and free will offerings in addition as God has prospered them. The tenth is figured upon the tither's gross income in

salary or net increase when operating a business.

- (2) That the storehouse plan be adopted as the general financial plan of the church. The local church is regarded as the storehouse into which our people should bring their tithes.
- (3) That each church elect a tithing secretary who shall cooperate with the Conference Tithing Secretary. His duty shall be to keep a list of members who tithe, to secure and distribute provided information and literature on the subject of tithing and the Storehouse Plan, and to take the responsibility to arrange with the Pastor at least one public service each year presenting the Storehouse Plan.

The report of the Committee of Tithing and Stewardship of Life which was adopted by the General Conference in 1963 says: "We recommend that two Sundays per year be used to promote the Storehouse Tithing Plan in the local church and that one of these Sundays be designated as denominational Tithing Sunday.

In a questionnaire, I inquired if the pastors had preached Storehouse Tithing this year. Of these, 24 reported they had, 5 reported that they had not, and 4 reported they had preached tithing, but not Storehouse Tithing. Also, 16 churches were reported to be operating on the Storehouse Plan while 17 are not. The number of tithers reported was 1015.

Respectfully Submitted, Robert Wolcott

Report No. 19

CONFERENCE CHURCH EXTENSION SECRETARY

Church Extension continues to be the life line of our Conference. Twenty-nine and four-tenths percent of the existing churches have been started since 1950. These Churches have registered a gain of 325 members in contrast to a 151 member gain by the existing Churches over the same period.

There is much reason for us to say "To God Be The Glory" as we consider what has been done this past year in our Pioneer Churches. Significant gains materially and spiritually have been made and we are grateful for God's evident blessing upon our Church Extension efforts.

The highlight of the year, doubtless, was the completion of the new chapel at Angola. A very adequate first unit has been erected by the Olson Construction Company at a cost which is minimal. It was a great thrill to have 37 people from Angola at our Church Extension service on Wednesday evening.

Due to crowded facilities at Hamburg, they too are about to launch a building program. Let us pray that God will continue to supply their needs as they step out in faith. We are grateful for the solid foundation that is being laid in this community for a strong Church.

Little Valley reports an increase of Sunday School attendance of 11 and a record Bible School enrollment of 107. The financial picture at Little Valley has brightened considerably this past year.

We are grateful to the denominational Women's Missionary Society for the 1964 Self Denial Offering designated for our Conference. The total received was \$12,000 which has been used in the building program at Angola.

We salute our Pioneer Pastors and their wives for their untiring efforts. May God grant an increasing measure of strength to them as their Churches continue to grow.

We are also grateful for the way the Churches of the Conference have continued their loyal support of our program. As our expenses have increased so have the contributions from the Churches. Let us continue to attempt great things for God and expect great things from Him. God is waiting to be gracious. Let us afford Him the opportunity by our continued faith and obedience.

PROPOSED BUDGET 1965-66

Little Valley: Monthly for notes Monthly for Pastor's Salary Monthly for Mortgage Payments Total per year for Little Valley	\$ 25.00 40.00 100.00 \$ 1,980.00
<u>Hamburg:</u> <u>Monthly for Morgage Payments</u> Total per Year for Hamburg	80.00
Angola: Weekly for Pastor's Salary Weekly for Travel Total per year for Angola (The Angola Church is to assume: Weekly for rent \$20.00 Weekly for utilities \$10.00	80.00 10.00 4,680.00
Olean: Monthly for Payment of Loan Total per year for Olean	125.00
Working Fund	380.00
TOTAL PROPOSED BUDGET	\$ 9,500.00

Respectfully Submitted, Paul F. Markell

PIONEER FUND TREASURER'S REPORT July 1, 1964 - June 30, 1965

Receipts:	
Balance on Hand, July 1, 1964	955.11
Ashwood	300.57
Batavia	994.50
Belleville	85.00
Blossom	30.00
Bradford	258.00
Castle Garden	93.90
Cattaraugus	22.50
East Aurora	67.34
East Leon	81.49
Ellicott	1,360.00
Fillmore	320.00
Forestville	181.24
Hamburg	200.00
Hess Road	120.43
Higgins	171.00

Houghton Leon Levant McCrae Brook Machias Oakland Olean Silver Creek Wellsville Conference Wesleyan Youth Conference W.M.S. Denominational Self Denial Gift Conference Pioneer Offering Individual Contribution Total Receipts	3,225.00 25.00 216.25 25.00 26.00 43.00 82.00 465.00 15.00 22.90 154.00 12,000.00 137.57 20.00
Disbursements Rev. Kaylor (Conference Missionary) Hamburg Church Little Valley Church Office Expense Angola Church Miscellaneous Total Disbursements	\$ 5,550.00 1,260.00 1,800.00 189.50 12,000.00 50.00 \$ 20,849.50
Totals Balance on Hand Total Receipts Grand Total Total Disbursements Balance on Hand, June 30, 1965	\$ 955.11 20,742.69 21,697.80 20,849.50 \$ 848.30

Approved:
Auditing Committee

Respectfully Submitted, Ralph F. Speas, Treas.

Report No. 20

CONFERENCE PIONEER SECRETARY

God has been gracious to the Angola Pioneer Church this past year. His Hand upon both the physical building and the people has been very evident.

Since last Conference we have erected a beautiful building. The total cost of the building was \$29,896.23, lot development \$1,478.81; for a total investment of \$31,375.04.

Included in this cost is an additional \$725.00 in labor and material which was donated by our contractor, Mr. Larry Olson, South Dayton, N.Y. In addition, the building was completed at a cost of \$1,500.00 below the bid price. In other words, we received a building costing \$33,725. for \$29,900., which in effect means a gift of \$3,825 from the contractor.

This wonderful financial blessing is second only to the spiritual blessings which God has given.

Many have found the Lord as Saviour this past week - most recent of which were 20 decisions for the Lord during V.B.S. A number of our people are making wonderful progress in the area of becoming aware of the need of a personal relationship with Christ.

The Lord has seen fit to send in some trained people to help. We now have three Houghtonites, one lady who has been serving for the past 18 years as a Captain in the Salvation Army, and another man who has taught Sunday School for 40 yrs. and who has moved to our area from Buffalo.

A sub-division of 149 homes has been started on the other side of the road from the church. Offerings have increased 40% and attendance has increased 27% since we occupied the building. The future for the church looks exceedinly bright.

The congregation is fast developing a loyalty to the Conference and they are fully aware of and are grateful to the Conference for the help that has been given to them. The fine group which appeared Pioneer Night during Conference is an evidence of this.

The local church has taken over all financial responsibilites with the exception of the pastor's salary.

The Conference Board of Church Extension has asked us to continue on as Conference Pioneer Missionary in Angola. Outside promotional work this year has been at a minimum, because of the heavy work schedule on the building.

We personally appreciate the backing of the Conference and your confidence in us in this work.

Continue to pray for us as we endeavor to serve the Lord and the Church.

Respectfully submitted, Richard G. Kaylor Conf. Pioneer Missionary

Report No. 21 WOMAN'S MISSIONARY SOCIETY

We are thankful for the growing interest in missions throughout the churches of the Conference as has been evidenced by an increase in the total missionary giving in the Conference by \$9,443 over last year. We are thankful to the Lord for all who are honoring Him in missionary giving.

This year the Conference has been privileged to have Dr. John Edling, medical missionary to Haiti, tour our Conference Dr. and Mrs. Edling's sacrificial spirit of dedication has been a challenge to all of us.

We continue to support Ella Woolsey who with her husband Warren are ministering at the Bible College of Sierra Leone. May we continue to pray for God's direction and blessing on their work.

We have had the blessing of having Rev. and Mrs. Daniel Ferdinand at Houghton these last few years. He is the former Conference President of the Haitian Conference. He has ministered in many of our churches. We feel honored to have these servants of the Lord in our midst for this brief time. A love offering was received for them in the evening W.M.S. service in the amount of \$160. Our prayers shall follow them as they return to Haiti.

This year we have been especially grateful to have Dr. and Mrs. Liddick visit our Conference and share their concern for missions around the world. We are thankful to the Lord for the tremendous growth of the overseas churches in recent years. We wish to express our appreciation to Mrs. Liddick and Mrs. McMillen for their ministry to us in the morning sessions.

The W.M.S. report may be summarized as follows:

Members: Honorary 132, Active 598 Magazine Subscriptions: 580 Total Disbursements: \$21,965.07 New Balance on Hand: \$610.36

Respectfully submitted, Geraldine Heinz, President, W.M.S.

Item I. Pastor's	Labo	ors		<u> </u>	It	em I	[.]	er	Lod	[ca]	s									
	Local Preachers	No. App'ts.	No. Churches	Time (Mos.) Employed	Wes. Meth. taken	Wes. Miss. taken	Wes. Youth taken	Dev. Qtly.	Adult Tchr.	Sr. Youth	Jr. Youth	Junior	Primary	Alder. K.	Alder. N.	Alder. Ad.	Banners	Stenals	Ir, Journey	Friend
Appleton, Hess Rd. Batavia, First Batavia, E. Pemb'k. Angola Blasdell, B. Tree	2	1 1 1 1	1 1 1	10 12 10 12 12	17 37 17 19	17 33 1 13	13	х	xxx	X X X X	x x x	xxx	X X X	x x	x	x	x x x	x	x	x x x x
Cheektowaga,C.Dr. East Aurora Elma, Blossom Hamburg Orchard Park, Ell.	1	1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1	12 12 12 12 12	28 10 15 41	2 14 9 23 25	2 3 1	x	x x x	x	x x	x	X X	x		X	XXX	X X X	x	X X
Caneadea, Belleville Cattaraugus, First Cattaraugus, E. Leon Cuba Falconer, Levant	1	1 1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1	12 12 12 12	24 20 19 40	9 13 18 37	8	X X X	XXX	x	x	XXXX	XXX	x x	XXX	x	XXXX	X X X	XXXX	X X X X
Fillmore Freedom, Higgins Forestville Houghton Leon	1 1 5	1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1	12 12 12 12 12	27 21 17 110 7	18 16 11 117 117	15 7 8 12 2	x x x	X X X	X X	x	x x	x	x	x		x x	x x x	x x	x
Little Valley Lockport Lyndonville, Ashwood Machias Nunda, Oakland	2	1 1 1	1 1 1 1	12 12 12 12 12	6 12 8 6	10 10 13 6 7	10 9	x x	X X X X	x	x	x	X X	X X X	x x x	x	X X X	x x x	x	x x x
Olean Silver Creek Wellsville, First Wellsville, Hallsp't,		1 1 1	1 1	12 12 12 12	10 60 25 1 35	26 33 16 12 22	30 11	X X	X X X	X X X	X X X	x x x	x x	x	x x	4	x x x	x x x	X	X X X
Bradford Driftwood, C. Gd'n. Eldred, McCrae Brk. Emporium, R. Valley Weedville, Medix Run	1 1 1	11111	1 1 1 1	12 12 12 12 12	35 14 3 2	11 1 1 3	25 2	x x x	X X X	x	X X	x x	x x x	x x	х	X	XXXX	X X X	XXXX	X X X
Totals	19	34	31	404	662	567	171	22	33	22	23	25	25.	21	16	5	32	25	25.	26

	•	ı
٠	J	٦
	_	ı
•		

	Item	Π	+	Membe																		
	Full Members re. Last Yr.	Rec'd. Prof.	į;	Total Full Members	Expelled F	Discontinued	Died	Granted Ltrs	Members Lost	Present Full Members	Associate Members	Junior Members	Total Present Members	Total Members Re. Last Year	Gain in Mbrs. for Year (or)	1 4	orio Srs	Baptized	Infants Ded.	No. of Family Altars	Membership Tithing	Card Call
Appleton Batavia, 1st Batavia, E.P. Angola Blasdell	29 73 7 14	1	8	31 82 7 14		4	2	2 3 1	4	27 78 4	4		30 151 4	32 140 8	11	2 4 2	14 6 6 6	4	3	3	50 1 7	
Cheek'ga. E. Aurora Elma,Blsm. Hamburg Orchard Pk	21 24 24 35 78	8	4	21 24 24 39 86	1	2	1	2 2 1	3 322	18 24 21 37 84	16 16 7 4 23	18	39 58 28 48 118	34 56 28 46	5 2 2 6	j	10 10 50	5	15 2 3 5 12	6 12 10 13 14	12 12 20 26 56	22
Caneadea Cat'gus.,1st Cat'gus.,E.Leon Cuba F'nerLev't,	26 73	12	1	17 39 31 26 85		4	1 1 1	6 1 3	11 1 4	17 28 30 22 84	2 6 11 2	2 : 10 4	19 36 41 34 88	19 51 42 38 77	11	15 1 4	4 56 8 15	7	1 1 6 4	6 10 10 10 24	12 14 24 12 58	27
Fillmore Freedom Forestville Houghton Leon	45 35 33 302 9	3 3 8	1 28	49 38 36 338 9		2 1 1	24	1 2 15	3 2 5 19	46 36 31 319	13 6 29 2	. 8 11 2 50	67 53 33 398 11	67	34		21 20 12	6	65342	24 15 15 122	24 24 24 275 8	12
Little Valley Lockport Lyndonville Machias Nunda	28 20 10 25	13 6		30 33 10 31		2	1	5	1 8	30 32 10 23	10 19 1 7	16 3 2 4	56 54 13 34	53 36 13 30	3 18 4		20 10 5	1	2 4 1 1	10 10 5 9	15 20 28 10 20	.10 3 1 2
Ol e an Silver Creek Wellsville,1st W'ville,Halls	64 70 42	5 6 3	2	71 76 45				2	2	66 76 43	16 20 16	31 35	113 131 62	114 128 62	3	1	4 30	3	8	23 20 8	56 60 20	5 6 3
Bradford Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	90 11 21 7 3	2 8 1	1	92 19 22 8		1	3	. 6 . 2	1 2	83 19 21 6	27 4	14 10	124 33 21 6	134 26 28 7 3	7	10 7 1	15 40 5	5 11	3	25 9 2 2	45 18 4 3	5 3
Totals	1304	84	48	1436	1	17	18	60	96	1340	312	268	1920	1861	106	47	1144	40	02	422	968	153

,	C	۲
1	Ñ	3

·	Lte	em IV	Sun	day :	Schoo						_		_				ν.	1
	No. 1n S.S.		Pupils Enrolled	Officers and Teachers	Pot. Reg. Att. (Pupils + Off.)	I₫.、	Jep't List	Total Enroll. (Pot. + CB+HD)	No. Pupils Join Church	Standard of Achleve. Score	Teachers Train.	WETT Cr. Cards Earned	No. CYC Chp'ts.	Total CYC Members	Enrollment DVBS	Average Attendance DVBS	No. of Locals	
Appleton Batavia, 1st Batavia, E. Pem. Angola Blasdell	1 1 1 1	95 110 26 50 39	94 93 17 53 41	21 35 4 10 9	115 128 21 63 50	1 5 9	5	116 138 21 72 50	11	42					48 80	35	1	
Cheektowaga E. Aurora Elma, Blsm. Hamburg Orchard Pk.	1 1 1 1	70 82 52 83 234	73 90 77 104 255	15 12 10 14 45	102 87 118 300	24 9 6 11		92 142 96 124 311	9 3 11		2	12	3	24	64 101 98 249	75 93	1	
Caneadea Catt'gus., 1st Catt'gus., E. Leon Cuba Faloner. Levant	1 1 1 1	27 49 66 67 165	29 58 56 57 194	7 11 28 17 18	74	4 2 4 3 15	9 4 8	49 75 96 77 227	12	64 56	1	8	1	32	55 72 87		1	
Fillmore Freedom Forestville Houghton Leon	1 1 1 1	83 81 73 488 24	93 76 83 517 30	30 16 28 50 6	123 92 101 567 36	11 7 6 22	8 12 1 14	142 111 108 603 36	9 1 57	80 63 70	2	15	3	26 26	105 72 118	66 110	1 1 2	
Little Valley Lockport Lyndonville Machias Munda	1 1 1 1	64 86 77 18 48	73 102 85 30 58		84 114 100 39 68	10 3 13	2	88 126 103 39 81	17	90 71 44	.2		1	15	107 105 80	95 95 70	1	
Olean Silver Creek Wellsville, 1st Weelsville, Halls. Bradford	1 1 1	71 219 92 75	112 150 138 108	16	128 280 149 120	5 15 10		133 280 204 130	? 9	89. 73	4 4	25 18	2	20	65 182 181 55	· 57 128 115 53	1 1	
Bradiord Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	11111	142 44 38 23 4	184 53 52 30 2	20 6 7 3 2	204 59 59 33 4	8 3 5	52	217 64 59 38	1 7	68	2	21 7	3	15	120 71 27	99 65 25	1	
TOTALS	34	2965	3367	540	3907	219	126	4252	162	863	19	110	14	140	2134	1803	14	ľ

15,000

Church Property

જ

11

5,000

2,000

46,000

7,000

15,000

10,000

253,544 999,500 29 368,300 65,671 288,350 103,088

6,500

8,000

10.000

279

00 00

Item VI

 $_{
m Bldg}$

1

13,600

125,000

434,800

4.000

Emporium, Rich Valley

Camp & Conference Property

Weedville, Medix Run

Total

Item '	/II. Dis	burse	lfór	Pasto					Item.	VIII.		Church
	Salary	Parsonage Rent and Utilities	Special Services-Gifts	Donations	Allowances Becd Travel & or Car	Pastor's Unad- justed Gross Ministerial Rec	Amt. Spent for Church Travel & Car Exp.	Net Ministerial Income	Other Evangel- istic Help	Sunday School Expense	Promotion Exp. () of Sux. Org.	Building (Do not inc. borrowed funds)
Appleton Batavia, 1st Batavia, E.Pem. Angola Blasdell	3500 4420 50 3640 3380	1020 1432 1560 900	75 50 90	140 562 123	350 230 520	5085 6464 280 5720 4493	350 1670 230 593 857	4735 4794 50 5127 3636	100 225 200	1039 40 184 206		1060 1110
Cheektowaga E. Aurora Elma, Blsm. Hamburg Orchard Park	3100 3120 3120 4372 3796	465 945 1336 1600 1435	40 207 40 100 290	407 120 563	260 344 936	3605 4939 4960 6072 7020	880 1109 1300 1200 1112		25 147 398 263 1029	2061 591 544 707 1249	140 416	331 132 347 1142
Caneadea Catt'gus., 1st Catt'gus., E. Leon Cuba Falconer, Levant	1690 2985 3380 2600 4420	1200 1275 941 1024	15 15 165 33 150	67 110 440 27 421	780 260 520	1772 4310 6040 3861 6535	480 865 320 520	1772 3830 5175 3541 6015	195 425 20 289	215 336 640 311 887	20	1167
Fillmore Freedom Forestville Houghton* Leon	3790 3720 2860 7250 956	805 858 949 1650	50 168 85 740 100	58 440 294	300 400 520 1250	5003 5146 4854 11184 1056	1169 840 1570 1250	3834 4306 3284 9934 1026	150 346 390 980	1024 318 622 1421 163	376 126 186	3656 979
Little Valley Lockport Lyndonville Machias Nunda	2619 3120 2500 579 2925	950 960 1197 790	30 100 15 65	780 128 450 45 250	300 500	4379 4508 4747 639 4030	500 600 905	3879 3908 3842 639 3730	70 89 295 5	393 809 482 178 463	75	1025 1120 852
Olean Silver Creek Wellsville, 1st Wellsville, Halls.	3900 5300 2695 1800	960 1150 800 600	632 100 1371 65	300 91	480 300 800 260	5972 7150 4866 3356	610 300 700 672 668	5362 6850 4166 2684 4856	30 625 390	604 1350 1152 201	100	435 1000 303
Bradford Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	3640 2420 2600 929 732	1279 730 420 300	187 49	158 263 143	260	5524 3462 3020 1229 875	300	3162 3020 1229 575	170 265 60 76	1379 302 258 357 154	585 75	
Totals	101908	29531	4027	6380	9310	152156	22200	129956	7489	19640	2218	14659

*Pastor \$7384; Associate \$2550

ı	Į		,	í	١
١					
٦	۰	۰			۰

Di	sburse	ed for	Church	(Cont	(,,)		Item IX Budget						
	Repairs (Do not inc. borrowed funds	Amount Paid on Indebtedness	Amount Paid on Expense of Indebtedness	Church Incidental Expense	Amt. Spent by Pastor for Church Travel	Total for Church	World Missions Assigned	World Missions Raised	Australla <u>and</u> Brainerd <u>both</u> Assigned same		Brainerd Raised		
Appleton Batavia, 1st. Batavia, E.P. Angola Blasdell	760 452 232 376	2696 414 440	160	1875 2130 643 674	1670 593	3085 9272 272 2944 2056	58 146 14 28	279.06 849.04 45.00 53.86	_	10.00 18.25	310.00		
Cheektowaga E. Aurora Elma Hamburg Orchard Pk.	60 654 58	1200 2000 344 1002 5032	50 304 826 4738	611 3017 853 2042 5035	880 1109 1300 1200 1112	3786 7445 4529 6445 19753	42 48 48 70 156	44.00 266.41 48.98 192.60 638.35	5.25 6.00 6.00 8.75 19.50	5.25 6.00 6.00 8.75 20.85	12.48 30.00 6.00 8.75		
Caneadea Cat'gus. 1st. Cat'gus. E.Leon Cuba Pal'rLev't.	387 140 158 731	750 551	40 110	192 1219 730 1061 1025	480 865 320	407 3784 3590 2551 2931	32 76 62 52 146	73.61 76.00 81.27 30.00 462.60	4.00 9.50 7.75 6.50 18.25	5.00 9.50 7.75 18.25	5.00 9.50 7.75 5.00 18.25		
Fillmore Freedom Forestville Houghton Leon	99 1558 628 380 218	619 984 1424	62 388	1044 568 928 13360 16	1169 840 1570 1250 30	7518 4376 5184 20368 427	90 70 66 604 18	635.38 170.78 710.13 5296.34 25.00	11.25 8.75 8.25 75.50 2.25	11.25 8.75 8.25 75.50 5.00	11.25		
Littlye Valle Lockport Lyndonville Machias Nunda	50 2450 459 46	1500 4423	477	575 1276 1030 459 271	500 600 905 300	3163 8699 6282 1101 2164	56 40 20 50	28.13 213.81 46.00 69.60 50.00	7.00 5.00 2.50 6.25	7.00 7.00 5.00 5.00	3.00 7.00 5.00 5.00		
Olean Silver Creek Wells'le. 1st Wells'le. Halls.	1000	4666 3300 2175	4192 1700 375	1909 6550 1049 244	610 300 700 672	12446 15975 6213 1117	128 140 84	234.69 1678.80 204.48 55.00	16.00 17.50 10.50	16.00 17.50 10.50	16.00 17.50 35.50		
Bradford Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	101 40 30	793 381	407 382	2392 189 125	300 300	6394 1232 1061 572 530	180 22 42 14 6	406.50 122.84 28.00 8.60	22.50 2.75 5.15 1.75	22.50 2.75 5.00 2.00	66.00 2.75 5.00 2.00		
Totals	11077	34694	14211	53092	20593	177673	2608	13124.86		330.35	745.98		

	Item IX.	Disbur	sed for	General	Budget					
	Church Ext. & Evangelism Assigned	Church Ext. & Evangelism Raised	Pension Plan Assigned	Pension Plan Baised	Church Administration Assigned	Church Administration Raised	General Conference Assigned	General Conference Raised	Board Meeting Expense Assigned	Board Meeting Expense Raised
Appleton B'via. 1st. B'via. E.P. Angola Blasdell	43.50 109.50 10.50	61.80 114.50	101.50 255.50 24.50	101.50 255.50	49.39 124.10 11.90 23.80	49.30 124.10 23.80	14.50 36.50 3.50 7.00	14.50 36.50	4.35 10.95 1.05	4.35 10.95
Cheekt'ga. E. Aurora Elma Hamburg Orchard Pk.	31.50 36.00 36.00 52.50	31.50	73.50 84.00 84.00	73-50	35.70 40.80 40.80 59.50 132.60	35.70 40.80 40.80 59.50	10.50 12.00 12.00 17.50 39.00	10.50 12.00 12.00 17.50 39.00	3.15 3.60 3.60 5.25	3.15
Caneadea C'gus. 1st. C'gus. E.Ln. Cuba FalcLv't.	24.00 57.00 46.50 39.00 109.00	25.00 67.00 46.50	56.00 133.00	56.00 133.00 108.50 81.00	27.20 64.60	27.20 64.60 52.70 25.00 124.10	8.00 19.00	8.00 19.00 15.50 9.00 36.50	2.40 5.70 4.65 3.90 10.95	2.40 5.70 4.65
Fillmore Freedom Forestville Houghton Leon	67.50 52.50 49.50 453.00 13.50	77.50 54.50 49.50 453.00 19.57	157.50 122.50 115.50 1057.00 31.50	157.50 122.50 115.50 1057.00	76.50 59.50	76.50 59.50 56.10 513.40 15.30	22.50 17.50 16.50 151.00 4.50	22.50 17.50 16.50 151.00 4.50	6.75	10.95 6.75 5.25 4.95 45.30
L. Valley Lockport Lyndonville Machias Nunda	42.00 30.00 15.00 37.50	3.50 52.00 30.00 17.75 37.50	98.00 70.00 35.00 87.50	98.00 70.00 35.00 87.50	47.60 34.00 17.00 42.50	47.60 34.00 17.00 42.50	14.00 10.00 5.00 12.50	14.00 10.00 5.00 12.50	4.20 3.00 1.50 3.75	4.20 3.00 1.50 3.75
Olean Silver Cr. W'ville. 1st Bradford	135.00		224.00 245.00 147.00 315.00	245.00 147.00 315.00	108.80 119.00 71.40 153.00		32:00 35.00 21.00 45.00 5.50	35.00 21.00 45.00	9.60 10.50 6.30 13.50	10.50 6.30 13.50
Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	16.50 31.50 10.50 4.50	5.00	38.50 73.50 24.50 10.50	73.50 24.50	18.70 35.70 11.90 5.10	18.70 35.70 5.10	5.50 10.50 3.50 1.50	5.50 10.50 1.50	1.65 3.15 1.05 .45	1.65
Totals					2216.80	2065.00	652.00	609.00		

	Item	IX. Di	sburs	ed for G	eneral	Budget	(Con't.	7		
	Hephzibah Assigned	Hephzibah Baised	Education Assigned	Education Raised	Seminary Assigned	Seminary Raised	General Sunday School Assigned		Total General Budget Assigned	Total General Budget Balsed
Appleton Batavia ist Batavia, E.P. Angola Blasdell	10.15 25.55 2.45	10.15 25.55	116	116.00 292.00	8.70 21.90 2.10	8.70 21.90	28.75	28.75 35.00	449.25 1093.50 107.00 17.50	694.11 2093.29 62.50 246.36
Cheektowaga E. Aurora Elma Hamburg Orchard Pk.	7.35 8.40 8.40 12.25 27.30	8.00 10.00 8.40 15.86 31.00	96. 96. 140 312	84.00 96.00 96.00 140.00	6.30 7.20 7.20 10.50 23.40	12.35 7.20 7.20 10.50 23.40	23.25 23.00 15.50 24.50 68.75	23.25 23.00 15.50 24.50 68.75	327.75 371.00 363.50 532.00	343,68
Caneadea C'gus. 1st C'gus. E. Ln. Cuba Fal'r.,Lv't. Fillmore	5.60 13.30 10.85 9.10 25.55	13.50 10.85 8.00 30.55	64, 152 124, 104 2 92	64.13 152.00 124.00 60.00 292.00	4.80 11.40 9.30 7.80 21.90	4.80 11.40 9.30 7.80 21.90	9.50 22.50 26.75 20.00 54.00	9.50 22.50 26.75 20.00 54.25	241.50 573.50 476.25 397.00 1112.75	288.64 583.70 495.53 257.00 1434.85
Freedom Forestville Houghton Leon Valley	15.75 12.25 11.55 105.70	15.75 12.25 11.55 105.70 8.00 3.00	180 140 132 1208 36	180.00 142.00 132.00 1208.00 36.00	13.50 10.50 9.90 90.60 2.70	13.50 10.50 9.90 90.60 2.70	31.25 22.50 22.50 140.50 9.00	31.25 22.50 22.50 140.50 9.00	683.75 530.00 501.00 4519.50 139.50	1239.13 634.78 1145.15 9211.84 163.52
Lockport Lyndonville Machias Nunda	9.80 7.00 3.50 8.75	9.80 8.00	112, 80 40 100	112.00 126.07 40.00 100.00	8.40 6.00 3.00 7.50	8.40 6.00 3.00 7.50	23.75 23.00 6.25 16.25	23.75 23.00 6.25 16.25	378.75	64.23 597.56 366.07 213.10 378.75
Silver Cr. Wellsville 1st W'ville. Halls. Bradford	24.50 14.70 31.50	23.50 14.70	280 168 360	296.80 168.00	21.00 12.60	21.00 12.60 27.00	56.25 38.50	56.25 38.50	962.00 1071.25 647.50	509.67 2626.85 799.98 55.00 1628.50
Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	3.85 7.35 2.45 1.05	31.50 9.40 8.00 14.34 5.00	44 84 28 12	44.00 73.25 24.55 18.00	3.30 6.30 2.10 .90	3.30 .90	51.50 13.75 11.25 8.00 .75	51.50 13.75 11.25	173.25 315.75 109.50 44.25	300.60 255.20 63.39 60.10
Totals	456.40	491.40	5216	5151.98	391.26	367.55	918.25	905.26	33849.55	30217.66

T I	tem I	х. г	isbursed	for Cor	ference	Budget.	(Con't.	.)	
	Pres. Salary Assigned	Pres. Salary Raised	Conference Work Assigned	Conference Work Baised	Conference Extension Work Baised	Conference S.S. Work Assigned	Conference S.S. Work Baised	Conference Entertainment Assigned	Conference Entertainment Raised
Appleton Batavia, First Batavia, N. Pem. Angola Blasdell	116 191 28	116 191 56	108.75 173.75 26.25	108.75 273.75 52.50	120.43 994.50	11.50 14.00 2.20 7.00 7.00	11.50 14.00 7.00 7.00	14.50 36.50 3.50 7.00	14.50 36.50
Cheektowaga East Aurora Elma, Blossom Hamburg Orchard Park	84 96 96 140 312	84 96 96 140 312	79.75 90.00 90.00 131.25 292.50	78.75 90.00 90.00 131.25 292.50	67.34 30.00 200.00 1360.00	9.30 9.20 6.20 9.80 27.50	9.30 9.20 6.20 9.80 27.50	10.50 12.00 12.00 17.50 39.00	10.50 12.00 12.00 17.50 39.00
Caneadea Cattaraugus, 1st Cattaraugus, E. Leon Cuba Falconer, Levant	64 152 124 104 292	64 152 124 104 292	60.00 142.50 116.25 97.50 273.50	60.00 142.50 116.25 97.50 273.50	85.00 22.50 81.49 216.25	3.80 9.00 10.70 8.00 21.70	3.80 9.00 10.70 8.00 21.70	8.00 19.00 15.50 13.00 36.50	8.00 19.00 15.50 13.00 36.50
Fillmore Freedom Forestville Houghton Leon	180 140 132 1208 36	180 140 132 1208	168.75 131.25 123.75 1132.50	168.75 131.25 123.75 1132.50 33.75	320.00 171.00 181.24 3225.00 25.00	12.50 9.00 9.00 56.20 3.60	12.50 9.00 9.00 56.20 3.60	22.50 17.50 16.50 151.00 4.50	22.50 17.50 16.50 151.00 4.50
Little Valley Lookport Lyndonville Machias Nunda	112 80 40 100	112 80 40 100	105.00 75.00 37.50 93.75	105.00 75.00 37.50 93.25	300.57 26.00 43.00	6.80 9.50 9.20 2.50 6.50	6.80 9.50 9.20 2.50 6.50	14.00 10.00 5.00 12.50	14.00 10.00 5.00 12.50
Olean Silver Creek Wellsville, 1st Wellsville, Hallsp't.	256 280 168	280 168	240.00 262.50 157.50	262.50 157.50 15.40	82.00 465.00 15.00	13.60 22.50 15.40	13.60 22.50 15.40	32.00 35.00 21.00	35.00 21.00
Bradford Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	360 44 84 28 12	360 44 84	337.50 41.25 78.25 26.25 11.25	337.50 41.25	258.00 93.90 25.00	20.60 5.50 4.50 3.20	20.60 5.50 4.50	45.00 5.50 10.50 3.50 1.50	45.00 5.50 1.50
Totals	5216		4890.00		8408.22			_	602.50

		ò	,	
١	7	•	١	
		۰	۰	

Item IX. Disbursed for Conference Budget (Cont.)										
Trem In. Dispursed for Conterence Budget (Cont.)										
	Camp Development Assigned	Camp Development Raised	Olean Assist. Assigned	Olean Assist. Baised	Conf. Property Maintain. Assigned	Conf. Property Maintain. Baised	Total Conference Budget Asslgned	Total Conference Budget Balsed	Total Budget Assigned	Total Budget Balsed
Appleton B'via, 1st B'via,E.P. Angola	7.25 18.25 1.75	7.25 18.25	29 73 7	29 73	14.20 36.50 3.50	14.20 36.50	301.50 744.00 72.20 7.00	421.93 1738 50 7.00		1116.04 3831.79 69.50
Blasdell	3.50	3.50	14	14	7.00	7.00	147.00	147.00	367.50	393.36
Cheek'ga. E. Aurora Elma Hamburg O. Park	5.25 6.00 6.00 8.75 19.50	5.25 6.00 6.00 8.75 19.50	21 24 24 35 78	21 24 24 35 78	10.50 12.00 12.00 17.50 39.00	10.50 12.00 12.00 17.50 39.00	219.30 249.20 246.20 359.80 807.50	219.30 316.54 276.20 559.80 2167.50	547.05 620.20 609.70 891.80 2007.25	562.98 933.08 640.68 1225.01 3925.85
Caneadea C'gus.1st ".E.Leon Cuba	4.00 9.50 7.75 6.50	4.00 9.50 7.75	16 38 31 26	16 38 31	8.00 19.00 15.50	8.00 19.00 15.50	163.80 389.00 320.70	248.80 411.50 402.19	405.30 962.50 796.95	537.44 995.20 897.72
Falc.Lv't.	18.25	6.50 18.25	73	73	13.00	36.50	268.00 751.70	229.00 967.95	665.00 1864.45	486.00 2402.80
Fillmore Freedom F'ville. Houghton Leon	11.25 8.75 8.25 75.50 2.25	11.25 8.75 8.25 75.50	45 35 33 301	45 35 33 302	22.50 17.50 16.50 151.00 4.50	22.50 17.50 16.50 151.00 4.50	462.50 359.00 339.00 3076.20 93.60	782.50 530.00 520.24 6301.20 118.60	1146.25 889.00 840.00 7595.70	2021.63 1164.78 1665.39 15513.04
L. Valley Lockport L'ville. Machias Nunda	7.00 5.00 2.50 6.25	7.00 5.00 2.50 5.25	28 20 10 25	28 20 10 25	14.00 10.00 5.00 12.50	14.00 10.00 5.00 12.50	6.80 289.50 209.20 102.50 256.50	6.80 289.50 509.77 128.50 299.50	23.80 719.25 522.20 253.75 635.25	71.03 887.06 875.84 341.60 678.25
Olean Silver Cr. W'ville,1st	16.00 17.50 10.50	17.50 10.50	70 42	70 42	32.00 35.00 21.00	35.00 21.00	589.60 722.50 435.40	95.60 1187.50 450.40 15.40	1551.60 1793.75 1082.90	605.27 3814.35 1250.38 70.40
Bradford Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	22.50 2.75 5.25 1.75	22.50 2.75 1.75 .75	90 11 21 7 3	90 11 3	45.00 5.50 10.50 3.50 1.50	45.00 5.50 1.50	920.60 115.50 214.50 73.20 30.30	1178.60 209.40 113.50 1.75 30.30	2277.10 288.75 530.25 182.70 74.55	2807.10 510.00 368.70 65.14 90.40
Totals	326.00	303.00	— <u>-</u> -		652.00		13343.30			51094.93

	Item X	_	Disb	ursed	for	Benev	olen	ces					_
	World Missions	Australla	Brainerd	Church Ext. & Evangelism	Hephz1bah	Education	Seminary	Conference Work	Wesleyan Youth	Bally Day	Thanksglving	Other Objects	
Appleton Batavia, 1st Batavia, N.Pem Angola	832 1877 145			118						33 40	43 42 16	60	İ
Blasdell	21				<u>L</u>	10	4	L		13	12	28	L
Cheektowaga East Aurora Elma, Blossom Hamburg Orchard Park	388 136 1325 200		12 75	10 69 43 22 250	8 94 55 141	10 310 38	15 2	7 16 22	14 12		60 36 37 112	124 788 74 305 2200	İ
Caneadea Cattaraugus, 1st Cattaraugus, E. Leon Cuba	93 48 69 239 245	4	10	62	1 120	5 14		- 22	22	15		407 145 315 58	
Falconer, Levant. Fillmore Freedom Forestville Houghton	838 299 29825			48 8 45		175 22 68 18142	11	26 305	28 24 25 1979	16	73 44 20 36 209	389 1291 167 3949 645	-
Leon Little Valley Lockport Lyndonville Machias Nunda	80 45 72 86	5	5	301 26 48	5	243 5 1 5	3	8	60 32	15 8 22 8 26	10 27 8 24	496 203 210 300 79 42	
Olean Silver Creek Wellsville, 1st Wellsville, Hallsport	81 1330 150 139		100 25	21		45 127	75	23	11 40 10	31 60 19	81 17	344 2000 1030 38	
Bradford Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	491 93 12 10		20	27 29 8	14	25 10		16	204	25 10	25 12 6	64 166	
MEGGATITE	10		L	1153	<u> </u>	4				5	11	25 15942	_

	Item XI	Disbursed	Make 1 -		
	TOOM VI	DISDUISED	TOURIS		
·	Totals for Pastor	Totals for Church	Totals for Budget	Totals for Benevolences	Totals for All Purposes
Appleton, Hess Boad Batavia, First Batavia, N. Pembroke Angola Blasdell, Big Tree	4735 4794 50 5127 3636	3085 9272 272 2944 2056	1116.04 3831.79 69.50 393.36	908 1959 323 88	9844.04 19856.79 312.00 8463.50 6173.36
Cheektowaga, Clev. Dr. East Aurora Elma, Blossom Hamburg Orchard Park, Ellicott	2725 3830 3660 4872 5908	3786 7445 4529 6445 19753	562.98 933.08 640.68 1225.01 3925.85	253 1466 329 2054 3080	7325.98 13674.08 9158.68 14596.01 32666.85
Caneadea, Belleville Cattaraugus, 1st Cattaraugus, E. Leon Cuba Falconer, Levant	1772 3830 5175 3541 6015	407 3784 3590 2551 2932	537.44 995.20 897.22 486.00 2402.80	607 248 448 562 958	3323.44 8857.20 10110.22 7140.00 12307.80
Fillmore Freedom, Higgins Forestville Houghton Leon	3834 4306 3284 9934 1026	7518 4376 5184 20368 427	2021.63 1164.78 1665.39 15513.04 282.12	1419 1127 4379 51150 754	14792.63 10973.78 14512.39 96965.04 2489.12
Little Valley Lockport Lyndonville,Ashwood Machias Nunda, Oakland	3879 3908 3854 639 3730	3163 8699 6282 1101 2164	71.03 887.06 875.84 341.60 678.25	320 329 679 219 226	7433.03 13823.06 11678.84 2300.60 5798.25
Olean Silver Creek Wellsville, First Wellsville, Hallsport Bradford	5362 6850 4166 2684 4856	12446 15975 6213 1117 6394	605.27 3814.35 1250.38 70.40 2807.10	562 3813 1226 200	18975.27 30452.35 12855.38 4071.40
Driftwood, Castle Garden Eldred, McCrae Brook Emporium, Rich Valley Weedville, Medix Run	3162 3020 1229 575	1232 1061 572 530	510.00 568.70 65.14 90.40	877 340 40 59	14934.10 5244.00 4849.70 1906.14 1254.40
Totals	129956	177673	51094.93	80339	439062.93

BUIDET APPORTIONMENT Charge	World \$2 Missions,	Australia .25	Brainerd	Church Extension \$1590	Pension Plan \$3.50	Church Adm. \$2	General Conf.	General Board Exp.	Hephzibah •35	Education \$4
Appleton, Hess Road Batavia, First Batavia, E. Pembroke Angola	54 156 8	1.00	1.00	117.00 6.00	273.00 14.00	1 <i>5</i> 6 8	13.50 39.00 2.00	4.05 11.70 .60	27.30 1.40	108 312 16
Blasdell, B. Tree Cheektowaga, C. Dr. East Aurora Elma, Blossom Hamburg Orchard Pk., Ellicott	26 36 48 42 74 168	6.00 5.25 9.25	3.25 4.50 6.00 5.25 9.25 21.00	27.00	63.00 84.00 73.50 129.50	36 48 42 74 168	9.00 12.00 10.50 18.50 42.00	2.70 3.60 3.15 5.55	6.30 8.40 7.35 12.95	52 72 96 84 148 336
Caneadea, Belleville Cattaraugus, First Cattaraugus, E. Leon Cuba Falconer, Levant	34 56 60 44 168	7.50 5.50 21.00	4.25 7.00 7.50 5.50 21.00	25.50 42.00 45.00 33.00 126.00	105.00 77.00 294.00	60 44 168	11.00 42.00	4.20 4.50 3.30 12.60	9.80 10.50 7.70 29.40	68 112 120 88 336
Fillmore Freedom, Higgins Forestville Houghton Leon	92 72 62 638 18	7.75	11.50 9.00 7.75 79.75 2.25	46.50 478.50	108.50 1116.50	72 62 638	159.50	5.40 4.65 47.85	10.85 111.65	184 144 124 1276
Little Valley Lockport Lyndonville, Ashwood Machias Nunda, Oakland	60 64 20 46	8.00 2.50 5.75	7.50 8.00 2.50 5.75	45.00 48.00 15.00 34.50	112,00 35.00 80.50	64 20 46	16.00 5.00 11.50	4.80 1.50 3.45	11.20 3.50 8.05	120 128 40 92
Olean Silver Creek Wellsville Bradford	132 152 86 166		16.50 19.00 10.75 20.75	99.00 114.00 64.50 124.50	266.00 150.50 290.50	152 86 166	41.50	11.40 6.45 12.45	15.05 29.05	264 304 172 332 76
Driftwood, C. Garden Eldred, McBae Brook Emporium, Rich Valley Weedville, Medix Run	38 42 12 6	5.25 1.50	4.75 5.25 1.50 .75		73.50 21.00	42 12	10.50 3.00	3.15 .90	7.35 2.10	76 84 24 12
Total	2680	335.00	335.00	2010.00	4690.00	2680	670.00	201.00	469.00	5360

BUDGET APPORTIONMENT Continued	Wesleyan Seminary	eral day ool.25	Pres.	Conf. Property Maintain.	\$3.75	14 01.10	Conf. Entertain.	.op-	n st.\$2	δί
Charges	Wesle	General Sunday School	Conf.Pr Salary	Conf Prope Maint	Conf. Work	Conf. Sunday School.	Conf. Enter	Camp Develo	Olean Assis	TOTALS
Appleton	8.10		108	13.50	101.25	11.60	13.50	6.75	54.	737-20
Batavia, First	23.40	34.50	312	39.00	292.50	13.80	39.00	19.50	156	2060.70
Batavia, N. Pem.	1.20	5.25	16	2.00	15.00	2.10	2.00	1.00	8	110.55
Angola		18.00				7.20		ŀ		25.20
Blasdell	3.90	12.50	52	6.50					26	352.90
Cheektowaga East Aurora	5.40	23.00	72	9.00	67.50	9.20			36	496.60
Elma Blossom	7.20	35.50	96 84	12.00		14.20		6.00	48	668.90
Hamburg	6.30 11.10	24.00 31.00	148	10.50	78.75		10.50	5.25	42	575-40
Orchard Park	25.20	31.00 77.75	336	18.50	138.75	12.40	18.50	9.25	74	998.00
Caneadea	3.10	12.25	68	42.00	315.00	31.10		21.00	168	2276.05
Catt'gus., First	8.40	18.75	112	8.50 14.00	63.75	4.90	8.50	4.25	34 56	455.75
Catt'gus., E.L.	9.00	24.00	120	15.00		7.50	14.00	7.00	50	748.65
Cuba	6.60	19.25	88	11.00	112.50	9.60 7.70	15.00	7.50	60	807.60
Falconer, Lev't.	25.20	56.75	336	42.00	82.50 315.00	22.70	11.00 42.00	5.50	44	594.55 2246.65
Fillmore	13.80	35.50	184	23.00	172.50	14.20		21.00	168	4640.05
Freedom, Hgns.	10.80	27.75	144	18.00	135.00	11.10	18.00	11.50 9.00	92 72	1236.50
Forestville	9.30	27.00	124	15.50	116.25	10.80	15.50	7.75	62	967.65 837.60
Houghton	95.70	150.75	1276	150.50	1196.25	60.30	159.50	79.75	638	8441.25
Leon	2.70	9.00	36	159.50 4.50	33.75	3.60	4.50	2.25	18	244.80
Little Valley		22.00	-/-		7/51/	8.80	7.0	E . E . J		30.80
Lockport	9.00	31.50	120	15.00	112.50	12.60	15.00	7.50	60	818.10
Lyndonville, Ash	9.60	25.75	128	16.00	120.00	10.30	16.00	8.00	64	861.65
Machias	3.00	9.75	40	5.00	37.50	3.90	5.00	2.50	20	271.65
Nunda Oakland	6.90	20.25	92	11.50	86.25	8.10	5.00 11.50	5.75	46	621.75
Olean	19.80	33.25	264	33.00	247.50	13.30	33.00	16.50		1617.35
Silver Creek	22.80	70.00	304	38.00	285.00	28.00	38.00	19.00	152	2058.80
Wellsville	12.90	51.00	172	21.50	161.25	20.40	21.50	10.75	86	1180.80
Bradford	24.90	54.25	332	41.50	311.25	21.70	41.50	20.75	166	2217.35
Driftwood, C. G.	5.70	16.00	76	9.50	71.25	6.40	9.50	4.75		512.60
Eldred, M. Bk.	6.30	14.75	84	10.50	78.75	5.90	10.50	5.25	38 42	562.45
Emporium, R. V.	1.80	9.50	24	3.00	22.50	3.80	3.00	1.50		168.10
Weedville, M.Run	•90	1.00	12	1.50	11.25	.40	1.50	•75	12 6	78.80
Total	402.00	1030.50	5360.	670.00.	5025.00	412.20	670.00	335.00	2548	35882.70

MINUTES

of the Seventy Second Annual Session of the

WOMAN'S MISSIONA-RY SOCIETY

of the Lockport Conference

Held at HOUGHTON CAMPGROUNDS

HOUGHTON, NEW YORK

July 28-30, 1965

STANDING RULES

- 1. Temporary Organization:
 - The Committee on Temporary Organization shall consist of the Executive Committee of the Conference Society. (President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Superintendent of Y.M.W.B.)
- 2. Election of Officers:
 - The election of Conference Society officers shall be held on Thursday afternoon of Conference. The election of local officers: the annual meeting for the election of the local officers shall be held during the month of June. The local officers shall take office July 1.
- 3. Missionary Funds:
 - All money raised by the Societies shall be used for missionary work, and no money shall be paid out without the vote of the local societies. All missionary monies shall be remitted once quarterly to the Conference Treasurer through the local treasurer using the official remittance blanks. The quarters shall close Sept. 15, Dec. 15, March 15, June 15. Remittances shall be sent to the Conference Treasurer by the 20th of each quarter to count on the previous quarter. June 15 shall be the end of the fiscal year.
- 4. Membership Dues:
 - The dues of \$1.00 per member, both active and honorary, shall be remitted directly to the Conference Treasurer through the local treasurer. Each society shall also send to the Conference Treasurer the amount equal to sixty cents per active member reported the preceding year, for the Conference Working Fund.

5. Benevolent Credit:

All benevolent receipts that are acceptable shall be sent to the Conference Treasurer, if they are to be included in the Annual Report. Benevolences include: Card Calls, Offerings for projects, for which appeals have been made through the society. To obtain credit where no receipt is available, a statement shall be sent to the Conference Treasurer, of the items and amounts, signed by the local president and secretary.

6. Closing Books and Annual Reports:

Each local treasurer's book shall close following the June meeting, but not later than June 15. All monies and vouchers shall be in the hands of the Conference Treasurer by June 20. Any remittance received after June 20 shall be credited to the new year. The Conference Treasurer shall fill in all disbursements on both copies of the Annual Report blanks, after her books close, and send them to the local treasurers who shall immediately fill in the rest of the report and return one copy before July 1 to the Conference Treasurer to be checked. When correct the Conference Treasurer shall send it to the Statistician. The other copy is to be retained by the local society for the delegate to read at the first meeting of the society following conference.

7. Y.M.W.B.

All money orders and checks for the YMWB shall be made out to the order of the Young Missionary Worker's Band and sent to the Conference YMWB Superintendent. Three cents per member shall be sent to the Conference Superintendent as desk fund. Each local YMWB shall close their books on June 15 and shall send all money to the Conference Superintendent, who shall close her books by June 20.

8. Local Magazine Solicitors:

The president of each local society shall report the name and address of the local solicitor to the Conference Solicitor by July 1.

9. Appointments:

The Executive Board shall appoint a statistician, and an auditor, who shall audit the books of the Treasurer and the YMWB Superintendent before Conference.

10. Credentials:

It shall be the duty of the incoming local President to attend Conference. The name of the new President and Delegates credentials shall be sent to the Conference Secretary at least two weeks prior to the Conference.

11. Fasting and Prayer:

The Friday before Conference shall be observed as a day of fasting and prayer.

12. Conference Body:

The voting body of the Annual Conference Society shall consist of the Conference Officers, Presidents and Delegates from each local society. Lady pastors, pastor's wives, YMWB Superintendents and Missionaries shall be granted honorary seats, and shall have the privilege to speak.

13. Memorials:

Memorials shall be special offerings given, or dues paid in memory of someone.

Signed: Ruth Hudson Doris Merriam Helen Redstone

IN MEMORIAM

Active Members

Ashwood Gertrude Verbridge
Blossom Maude Getchel
Cattaraugus Anna Hall
Cuba Olive Strmple
Forestville Bernice Gould
Emily Ivett
Lora Crowell

Houghton Anne Hampe

Honorary Members

Cuba Harry Huntington
East Aurora Charles Smith
Houghton Willard Ortlip
J. R. Pitt

DIRECTORY 1965

	דת	RECTORY 1965	
President:	Mrs. Ma Rd., Bu	rion A. McKinley, 1281 Seneca Cree ffalo, N.Y. Tel. 674-7245	:k
Vice President:	Mrs. Ai Wellsvi	leen Shea, 188 West State Street, lle, N.Y. 14895 Tel. 1910	
Secretary:	Mrs. Ge Cuba, N	rtrude Boeske, 20 Prospect Street, .Y. 14727 Tel. 229W	
Treasurer:	Mrs. Ne 14065	llie Stickle, R. B. 1, Freedom, N. Tel. (Fillmore Exch.) 567-8223	Y.
YMWB Sup't.:	Miss Ha Silver	rriet Ingraham, 13 Newton Street, Creek, N.1. 14136 Tel. 934-4724	
Reading Course			
Secretary:	Mrs. Do Tel. 56	rothy Angell, Houghton, N.Y. 14744 7-8339	•
Magazine Sol.:	Mrs. No 14065	rma Putnam, R. R. 1, Freedom, N.Y. Tel. (Fillmore Exch.) 567-8204	
World Fellow-			
ship Sec.:	Mrs. Ru Orchard	th Markell, 7305 Ellicott Bd., Park, N.Y. 14127 Tel. 662-5792	
		CAL SOCIETIES	
(Note: The first	name is	the President; second, the delega	te)
Society		York Societies	rol1
			call
LIY Appleton, Hes	ss Kd.:	Mrs. Jean Dressler, 6296 Dale Rd., Newfane, N.Y. 14108 Hazel Mead	6
L 2 Batavia, Firs	st:	Mrs. Dorothy Cade, S. Main St.Rd. Batavia, N.Y. 14020 Irene Worthington	'0 6
(Buffele Sub	mbow)	J	
(Buffalo Subu L 4 Blasdell, Big		Mrs. Grace Moore, Gowanda State	
,	,	Rd., Eden, N.Y. 14219 Myrtle Friend	0 4
L10 Cheektowaga, Cleveland I	orive:	Mrs. Jo Berk, 79 Applewood, Cheektowaga, N.Y. 14225 Doris McCarthy	4 2
L12 East Aurora:		Mrs. Buth Hudson, 472 Main St., East Aurora, N.Y. 14052 Helen Hurlburt	5
L 5 Elma, Blosson	1:	Mrs. Sally Davis, 51 Garfield Ave., Lancaster, N.Y. 14086 Marion McKinley	6
L32 Hamburg		Mrs. Laura Garrison 213 E. Prospect Ave., Hamburg, N.Y. 14075 Ouida Janssen	1 2

L14	Orchard Park, Ellicott:	Mrs. Helen Schwedt, 29 N. Buffalo St., Orchard Park, N.Y. 14127	6
	(End of Buffalo Subu	Sadie Booth rban listing)	0
L 3	Caneadea, Belleville:	Mrs. Elsie Taylor, Rushford, N.Y. 14777 Mabel Taylor	0 5
L 9	Cattaraugus, First:	Miss Ethel C. Fiebelkorn. 84 Sout St., Cattaraugus, N.Y14719	h 3
L13	Cattaraugus, East Leon:	Mrs. Edna Ackley R.R. South Dayton, N.Y. 14138 Emma Pritchard	4 6
L11	Cuba:	Mrs. Gertrude Boeske, 20 Prospect St., Cuba, N.Y. 14727 Mable Chamberlain	6
L21	Falconer, Levant:	Mrs. Louanne Ames, 80 Chambers St Jamestown, N.Y. 14701 Florence Olafson	• 0 6
L15	Fillmore:	Mrs. Edna Aylor, Fillmore, N.Y. 14735 Nina Spencer	1 5
L17	Freedom, Higgins:	Mrs. Nellie Stickle, R.R. 1, Freedom, N.Y. 14065 Hazel Miller	4 5
L1 6	Forestville:	Mrs. Betty Crowell, Forestville, N.Y. 14062 Mary Wolfe	3
L18	Houghton:	Mrs. Dorothy Angell, Houghton, N.Y. 14744 Esther Smith	6
L20	Leon:	Mrs. Clara Harmon, R.R. 2, Cattaraugus, N.Y. 14719 Edna Benham	2 2
L26	Little Valley:	Mrs. Sarah Osgood, 704 Erie St., Little Valley, N.Y. 14755 Dorothy Fuss	6
L22	Lockport:	Mrs. Jean Colley, 7417 Chestnut Budge, Lockport, N.Y. 14094 Barbara Edmister	6
L 1	Lyndonville, Ashwood:	Mrs. Gloria Yaxley, W. Center Extension, Medina, N.Y. 14103 Lucille Nice	0 2
L23	Machias	Mrs. Olive Day, 31 Park Dr., Houghton, N.Y. 14744 Emma Armstrong	4 6
L27	Nunda, Oakland:	Mrs. Ethel Simpson, Dalton, N.Y. 14517 Autho Black	6

L28	Olean:		6						
L30	Silver Creek:		5 5						
L31	Wellsville, First:		5						
Pennsylvania Societies									
L 6	Bradford		0						
L 8	Driftwood, Castle Garden:	Mrs. Martha Wolcott, R.R. 1, Driftwood, Pa. 15832 Phyllis Billings	5 5						
L24	Eldred, McCrae Brook:		2						
L 33	Weedville, Medix Run		6 0						
		Respectfully Submitted, Almyra Lovel							

Executive Board Meeting, July 27, 1965

Emma Pritchard Helen Miller

It was decided to give an honorarium of \$25. to Dr. Alton Liddick, our public speaker for the evening meeting.

It was decided to give an honorarium of \$15. to Mrs. Ruth Liddick, our devotional speaker for the morning sessions.

It was decided to pay Helen Redstone \$12. for the Treasurer's filing cabinet and \$30. as an honorarium for her services.

It was decided to continue the support of Ella Woolsey.

It was decided to pay the expenses of the Conference of-ficers.

It was decided to pay the pre-registration fee of \$30. (plus travel expenses) of the President, Secretary, T reasurer, and Y.M.W.B. Superintendent to the Eastern Area Convention.

It was decided to assesss .60 per member for Working Fund.
Signed: Gertrude Roeske, Sec.

DAILY PROCEEDINGS

Wednesday Morning, July 28, 1965

The Seventy-second Annual Conference of the Women's Missionary Society of the Lockport Conference convened in the Auditorium of the boy's dormitory on the Houghton Campgrounds. Alleen Shea, Vice President, assisted Geraldine Heinz in presiding over the meetings.

Marian Shannon led in the singing, with Vonnie Dongell presiding at the piano. The society sand, "I Love to Tell the Story", after which Dorothy Angel brought a very timely message in song, "Go Labor On".

The Bar of Conference was set as the first seven rows of seats.

Roll Call was taken: 18 Presidents and 25 delegates were present.

Ruth Liddick, veteran missionary to India and wife of our World Missions Executive Secretary, Dr. Alton Liddick, led devotions; her message on prayer was very inspirational. She closed with prayer.

The President's report was read and accepted.

The Committee on Temporary Organization's report was read.

The report of the Executive Committee was read and accepted.

Helen Redstone reported a very successful Southern District Convention.

Marian Shannon reported on the East Central District Convention.

Dorothy Angell, Reading Course Secretary, made an announcement of the literature she has on display.

Ruth Markell, W.W.F. Secretary, also announced her workshop table.

The adjusted report of Temporary Organization was read and the society adjourned for committee work. Closing prayer by June Wolfe.

Wednesday Afternoon, July 28, 1965

The afternoon session opened with the society singing, "The Call for Reapers", followed by a ladies trio singing "So Send I You".

Ruth Markell led the society in prayer following a moment of silent prayer in which each one present prayed for a different missionary or cause.

The roll call was taken: 18 Presidents and 25 delegates were present.

The minutes were read and approved.

A letter from Ella Woolsey was read and the Secretary was instructed to send her greetings from the Conference. Greetings were also to be sent to Norva Crosby, Opal Gibbs, Aimee Ortlip. Grace Moore and Gloria Yaxley.

Dorothy Angell held a Reading Course workshop and reviewed the Reading Course books.

The Courtesy Committee presented Rev. Philip Birchall, President of Houghton Academy. He brought greetings and rejoiced in the revival the Academy had experienced in the past year. He told of the vital need of more dormitories and expressed appreciation for all financial aid received.

Helen Wolter, wife of the Associate Pastor at Houghton, was presented to the society and she brought greetings.

The Treasurer brought her report and held a workshop. The report was accepted with a rising vote of thanks.

It was moved to adjourn, closing prayer by Vonnie Dongell.

Thursday Morning, July 29, 1965

Several songs from a YMWB song sheet were used in opening the morning session. This was followed by a solo "Who'll Take the Gospel Light?" by Buth Miller from the Fillmore Church.

Ruth Liddick's topic for devotions was "Missionary Intercession". She brought a challenge to all to become a member of this great commission of intercessory prayer. After a period of silent prayer, Mrs. Liddick closed with prayer.

Roll Call was taken: 19 Presidents and 27 delegates were present.

The Minutes were read and approved.

Harriet Ingraham, YMWB Superintendent, held a very interesting workshop. She was assisted by Marilyn Byerly and Mary Bennett from Houghton, and Ruth Hilliker from Silver Creek in bringing forth ideas for conducting a good YMWB program. The report of the YMWB Superintendent was accepted.

The society recessed to meet with the Conference body for a photograph.

Adjourned on motion, closing prayer by Mary Wolfe.

Thursday Afternoon, July 29, 1965

Opening songs, "The Banner of the Cross" and "Lead Me to Some Soul Today" were sung. Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Ferdinand favored the society with a duet, "It Took a Miracle".

Prayer by Aileen Shea.

Roll call was taken: 19 Presidents and 26 delegates were present.

The Courtesy Committee presented Mrs. Knowlton, wife of Chaplain Robert Knowlton, who greeted the society and brought

a brief and interesting report of their work and requested our prayers.

Time for the Orders of the Day having arrived, the following tellers were appointed: Sally Davis, Norma Putnam, Hazel Miller, and Doris McCarthy. The report of the Nominating Committee was read and accepted and the procedure of the election of officers took place. (See directory)

The following were elected as Delegates to General Conference: 1st delegate: Nellie Stickle; 2nd delegate, Aileen Shea; 1st alternate delegate: Harriet Ingraham; 2nd alternate delegate, Gertrude Roeske.

Buth Markell was reelected W.W.F. Secretary.

A workshop was held by the W.W.F. Secretary. Her report was read and approved. She presented many helpful ideas for promoting prayer in the societies. Betty Crowell offered prayer.

Georgianna Sentz, Art Teacher at Houghton College, gave a report of the judging of the posters and held a short Art class. First prize was won by Mary Robinson of Olean; secong prize by Deloris Kameck of Cuba; third prize by Mary Jo Fleming of Forestville. Honorable mention went to Vonnie Dongell of Silver Creek.

On motion, we adjourned, closing prayer by Marion McKinley.

Thursday Evening, July 29, 1965

The public meeting was held in the main auditorium on the Campground.

Aileen Shea chaired the meeting. Rev. Alton Shea led the congregation in singing two numbers in song, "Jesus Saves" and "Make Me a Blessing". Prayer was offered by Daniel Ferdinand.

Bernice Knowlton, wife of Chaplain Robert Knowlton, gave her testimony and brought a message in song, "The Breaking of the Bread".

Mrs. Shea announced the names of the Honor Societies as follows: Caneadea, Belleville; Elma, Blossom; Cattaraugus, First; East Aurora; Cattaraugus, East Leon; Orchard Park, Ellicott; Fillmore; Hamburg; Houghton; Falconer, Levant; Machias; Eldred, McCrae Brook; Olean; Silver Creek and Wellsville.

Alton Shea sang a solo, "Shall I Empty Handed Be".

Dr. Liddick was introduced and brought a very stirring and and informative message. He enthusiastically told of the work and progress, as he fount it, on each mission field. He requested more money for the General Fund and faithful praying for the mission fields. He also asked for special prayers for Daniel Ferdinand and family as they soon return to Haiti to work among their own people. He closed with prayer.

Gordon Wolfe made the appeal for funds for the support of Ella Woolsey and a love offering for the Ferdinands. The amount of cash and pledges were as follows: Cash for Daniel Ferdinand, \$155.; Cash and paid pledges for Ella Woolsey, \$160.21; Unpaid pledges for Ella Woolsey \$1,467.; Unpaid pledges for Church Extension and Evangelism \$80.; Unpaid pledge for William Davis \$600.

The closing song was "Are You Able, Said the Master", and the closing prayer was offered by Dr. S. I. McMillen.

Friday Morning, July 30, 1965

The society sang "Rescue the Perishing" in opening the meeting.

Chaplain and Mrs. Robert Knowlton sang "My Wonderful Lord".

Our veteran missionary and Bible teacher, Mrs. Alice McMillen, ied the devotions and gave a short and interesting Bible study on Malachi, closing with prayer. Silent prayer was led by Buth Markell after which she led in prayer.

The Statistical Report was read and accepted. A question and answer period followed.

Norma Putnam, the new Magazine Solicitor, addressed the society in the absence of Belle Parks.

The Committee on Magazines reported 85 subscribers of the magazine and 3 who promised to subscribe from their local solicitor. This report was accepted with thanks.

The report of the Committee on Standing Rules was read and accepted.

The question on who were to be considered active and who honorary members was clarified. Active being all women, and honorary, the men.

The Committee on Plan of Work gave their report and it was accepted after it was amended.

Dr. Alton Liddick, our World Missions Executive Secretary, brought greetings to the Society from Headquarters and also from the many mission fields which he had recently visited. He answered many questions from the ladies. Gifts of appreciation were presented to our retiring officers, Geraldine Heinz, President, and Helen Redstone, Treasurer.

On motion the meeting was adjourned with closing prayer by Vonnie Dongell.

Friday Afternoon, July 30, 1965

The society sang the choruses "Only Believe" and "Lord Lay Some Soul Upon My Heart". Marion McKinley offered prayer.

The roll was taken and the Minutes read and approved.

Report of the Committee on Memoriam was read and approved.

Report of the Committee on Addresses was read and approved.

Report of the Committee on Resolutuions was read and approved.

The society recessed to select their Area Chairmen. The following were chosed: Northern: Ouida Janssen; Southern: June Slocum; East Central: Autho Black and Norma Putnam; West Central: Evelyn Kaylor and Vonnie Dongeil.

 ${\tt A}$ short period of sharing ideas for missionary meetings was held.

The Literature Committee reported sales amounting to \$59.86.

A special prayer was offered for the officers of the Society for the coming year by Geraldine Heinz.

On motion, the society was adjourned; closing prayer by Esther Smith.

Signed: Gertrude Roeske Secretary

REPORTS

Report No. 1

COMMITTEE ON TEMPORARY ORGANIZATION

Committee on Plan of Work: Emma Armstrong, Irene Worthington, Doris McCarthy.

Committee on Standing Rules: Ruth Hudson, Doris Merriam, Helen Redstone.

Committee on Nominations: Marion McKinley, Hazel Miller, Forence Olafson.

Committee on Resolutions: Edna Aylor, Mary Wolfe, Sally Davis.

Committee on Addresses: Helen Miller, Almyra Lovel, Emma Pritchard.

Committee on Literature: Dorothy Angell, Francis Spurr.

Committee on Magazines: June Slocum, Clara Harmon, Dorothy Fuss.

Committee on Memoriam: Zada Huff, Hazel Mead, Martha Wolcott.

Committee on Posters: Aileen Shea, Jean Colley, Autho Black

Committee on Courtesies: Esther Smith, Ruth Markell.

Report No. 2

To the members of the 72nd annual session of the Lockport Conference Woman's Missionary Society convening on this 28th day of July, 1965, at Houghton Campground:

Greetings in the Saviour's name. We are thankful to the Lord for the blessings He has given to us throughout the

years. In looking over the Conference report for total missionary giving, we were glad to see that our missionary giving for all purposes has increased from \$43,281 for last year to \$52,724 for this year. This is an increase of \$9,443. We are thankful to the Lord and to all who honored Him in their giving.

This year the Conference has been privileged to have Dr. John Edling, medical missionary to Haiti, speak in our churches. His sacrificial spirit of dedication has been a challenge to all of us. Mrs. Edling is improving in health and they plan to return to Haiti in the fall.

We continue to contribute to the support of Ella Woolsey, who with her husband Warren, is teaching in the Bible College of Sierra Leone. May w continue to pray for God's guidance and blessing on their work.

Many of our churches have been privileged to hear Rev. Daniel Ferdinand who is completing his college work at Houghton this summer. He is the former President of the Haitian Wesleyan Conference. We feel honored to have had this man of God, his wife and little son in our area for this time of further training for the Lord's service.

We have continued to send boxes of clothing for Christian Outreach. Mr. Alexander would like to make two trips e year for these boxes, in the spring and in the fall. Let us continue to support this worthy project.

This year we feel especially grateful to have Dr. and Mrs. Alton Liddick visit our Conference to share with us their concern for missionary work around the world.

We wish to express our appreciation to Mrs. Liddick and Mrs. Alice McMillen, who will speak to us in our morning sessions.

We are sorry to lose our efficient W.M.S. Treasurer, Mrs. Helen Redstone. She will be going with her husband to pastor in the Champlain Conference. We appreciate the many years of faithful service she has given to the W.M.S. Our prayers shall go with them as they go to this new area of service for the Lord.

May I express my personal appreciation to Mrs. Aileen Shea for her assistance and to all of you who have worked to make this session a time of blessing and inspiration.

Respectfully submitted, Geraldine M. Heinz W.M.S. President

Report No. 3

COMMITTEE ON RESOLUTIONS

1. Resolved: That the WMS express our sincere appreciation to our Conference Officers for their efficient service this

year, with special thanks to our retiring President, Geraldine Heinz and our Treasurer, Helen Redstone for her 10 years of faithful service. We pledge to our new officers our prayers and cooperation.

- 2. Resolved: That we emphasize, along with the General Society, the need for a closer walk with God, for a better understanding of God's will through His Word, for a greater knowledge of mission needs and more power in prayer and for more help by the Holy Spirit in service and witnessing.
- 3. Resolved: That we emphasize the need for upholding the standards of our beloved church, not only by the example of Christian living in the home and by establishing family altars, but also by encouraging our youth to find the answer to their problems in the Word of God and Christian literature. We urge parents to carefully supervise all means of communications in the home, including TV and radio programs as well as literature.
- 4. Resolved: That we include in our programs more specific praying for our missionaries, pastors and denominational leaders, the needs of our Headquarters and Publishing House, also for the heads of our Nation, for the men and boys in the service of our Country, and for the evangelization of the world.
- 5. Resolved: That we encourage the teaching of the principles of freedom in our democracy, thus establishing a guard against the infiltration of Communism in the minds of the youth, enlarging their appreciation of their American heritage.
- b. Resolved: That we express our appreciation for the excellent meals and fine entertainment during Conference and to the College for the use of Shenawana Dormitory.

Respectfully submitted, Mary Wolfe Sally Davis

Report No. 4

W.M.S. TREASURER'S ANNUAL REPORT

Conference Working Fund Assignments

Appleton (Hess Rd.), \$15.00; Batavia \$16.20; Blasdell (Big Tree). \$4.80; Cheektowaga (Cleveland Drive) \$7.20; East Aurora, \$12.60; Elma (Blossom) \$9.00; Hamburg, \$9.00; Orchard Park (Ellicott), \$22.80; Caneadea (Belleville), \$8.40; Cattaraugus (First), \$10.80; Cattaraugus (East Leon), \$12.00; Cuba, \$17.40; Falconer (Levant), \$27.60; Fillmore, \$11.40; Freedom (Higgins) \$9.00; Forestville, \$10.80; Houghton \$43.80; Leon, \$6.00; Little Valley, \$7.80; Lockport, \$6.60; Lyndonville (Ashwood), \$7.80; Machias, \$3.60; Nunda (Oakland), \$3.00; Olean, \$22.20; Silver Creek, \$9.00; Wellsville (First) \$9.00; Bradford, \$17.40; Driftwood (Castle Garden), \$7.20; Eldred (McCrae Brook), \$10.20; Weedville (Medix Run), \$1.80.

June 30, 1964 to June 30, 1965

Items	Balance on Hand June 30,1964	Receipts	Disburse- ments	Balance on Hand June 30,1965
World Missions American Indians Australia Jewish Work Medical Missions Mission Equip. Fund White Christmas Off. Church ExtEvang. Self Denial Off. Hephzibah Budget Hephzibah Gifts Educational Budget Honorary Enrollment Education Gifts General Gues Conf. Working Fund Conf. Extension Community Missions Local Church Other Objects	\$ 581.54	\$11,944.12 349.58 216.00 125.39 115.89 180.50 1,098.24 1,049.13 311.05 382.30 1,015.44 86.80 534.00 431.00 431.05 734.00 431.05 734.00 1,026.98 182.98 1,359.95 761.65	349.58 216.00 125.39 115.89 180.50 1,096.02 893.13 311.05 382.30 1,015.44 86.80 532.67 734.00 402.38 226.98 182.98 1,359.95	610.36
Totals	\$581.54	\$21,993.89	\$21,965.07	\$610.36

Approved: Auditing Committee Helen Redstone, Conference WMS Treasurer

Report No. 5 CONFERENCE WWF SECRETARY REPORT

Name of Conference	Lockport
Number of Prayer Circles	24
Number of Prayer Partners	426
Number of World Missionaries Chosen	722
Number signing WWF Covenant	96
Number participating in Bible Study	26
Number of Societies observing monthly Prayer & Fast	Days 7
Number of YMWB Prayer Partners	175

Respectfully submitted, Ruth W. Markell, Conf. WWF Sec.

Report No. 6 PLAN OF WORK

We recommend:

- 1. That we secure every woman in the church a member of the society or achieve a gain in membership.
- 2. That a Women's World Fellowship Secretary be elected by the local society who shall promote the General Women's World Fellowship Program of prayer circles, prayer partners, monthly prayer and fast days and encourage every member to use the prayer calendar requests in the WESLEYAN MISSIONARY.
- 3. That each society use the Penny-a-meal Plan for General World Missions; the Foot of Dime Strips for Mission Field Equipment; and send these funds to the Conference Treasurer; and promote a Community Missions Program.
- 4. That each society gather reusable discards of clothing and household items and sent to Christian Outreach, Detroit, Michigan, or as directed by our Conference WMS President.
- 5. That we assume the field support of Ella Woolsey in Sierra Leone.
- 6. That each society contribute annually at least \$3.00 to Medical Missions; \$10.00 for General Church Extension and Evangelism; \$8.00 for Hephzibah Childrens Home; \$5.00 to Australia; \$5.00 to Brainerd Indian School, and a special offering for the Houghton Academy Scholarship Fund to help our missionary children.
- 7. That each society elect a Card Call Secretary to promote the plan and collect the stubs to be sent to the Conference Treasurer for benevolent credit.
- 8. That each society promote the Honorary Student Enrollment Plan of Houghton College, sending pledge cards to the College and monies to the Conference Treasurer.
- 9. That we observe WESLEYAN MISSIONARY Subscription Campaign month in January; World Day of Prayer in February; Self Denial during Lent; Education Day in October, White Gift Christmas in December; and one month to study and pray for the needs of the Jewish work.
- 10. That the Conference Standing Rules and the Plan of Work be read in each society at least once a year.
- 11. That each society make arrangements with the pastor for one prayer meeting each month, stressing missionary needs.
- 12. That each society send cash equivalent to a case of fruit or vegetables for Conference and Camp use to the Conference Treasurer not later than the third quarter remittance.
- 13. That each society contribute at least .60 per member to the Conference Working Fund to help provide additional equipment for the Camp Kitchen and meet other Conference Society expenses.

Respectfully Submitted, Emma Armstrong Irene Worthington Doris McCarthy

	Memi	ersl	nip		Misc		aneou	18	Tota	als	Re	ceipts		
WMS STATISTICAL REPORT Name of Society	Active	Honorary	Gain		Total No. Mtngs.	Subs. W.Miss.	Effic.St. Rate %	MISSION. Support	No. Boxes	No. Pounds	Member. Dues	Offer- ings	Memor- ials	Voucher Receipts
Appleton, Hess Rd. Batavia Angola Blasdell	25 27 8 12	6	1 1 4	2	14 19 12	17 33 13	70 76 65		1,8_ 1	_ 208-	31 27 8 12	346.59 351.95 309.66 76.38 165.37		80.01 706.00 24.35
Cheektowaga Rast Aurora Elma, Blsm. Hamburg Orchard Pk. Caneadea	21 15 15 38 14	10 9 21 7	უ 6ფ2	1	16 53 17 19	14 9 23 25	95 85 86 91 85	1	12 5 10 120 3	12	31 24 36 45 19	1057.09 326.66 594.82 452.76 202.62		293.13 29.90 227.24 596.37 42.32
Cat'gus, 1st Cat'gus. E.Leon Cuba Falconer, Lvt. Fillmore	17 20 29 46 19	6 7 7 8 7	3	4	16 18 12 24 21	10 13 18 37 28	90 85 75 92 88	-46	9 13 5 6	20 9 16½ 10	27 27 36 54 26	240.05 166.69 418.17 861.09 919.61		10.00 66.98 13.00 99.00 51.00
Freedom Forestyille Houghton Leon Little Valley	15 18 73 10	10 4 6	5	2 54	6 17 36 21	16 11 117 11 10	- 50 74 90 83 69	1 1	4	24	15 28 77 16 13	160,49	5.00 218.00	141.05 124.25 284.17 431.05 4.00
Lockport Lyndonville Machias Nunda Olean	11 13 6 5 37	2 4 6	1 5	1	14 15 23 12 18	9 13 7 7 26	80 67 88 47 96		16 8 9	24	13 136 9 43	387.50 507.43 224.97 177.56 581.66	6.00	19.50 10.80 7.00 65.30
Silver Creek Wellsville, 1st W'ville, Hallspt.	15 15		1		30 13	33 16 12	95 87	to.	23 51	19 1326	15 15	2878.97 346.48 157.76	11.00	100.59
Bradford Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	29 12 17	3	526		29 11 17	22 11 8	90 78 85		12	9 15	31 15 17	728.87 145.51 133.85 12.00 78.40	4.00 8.00	123.34 26.00 9.11
Totals	598	132	59	66	544	582		4호	345	1807	730	17474.70	252.00	3588.46

NOTE: Societies listed by Postoffice. For name of church see Directory)
N.B.: Add under Misc. 1 Missionary Supported; \$309.66 Offerings and Grand Total

		Disb	ursements					
Name of Society	Total Receipts for the Year	Old Bal. from Last Yr.	Grand Total	World Missions General	Amer. Indian (Brainerd)	Austral- ia	Jewish Evangel- ism	Medical Missions
Appleton Batavia Angola Blasdell Cheektowaga	457.60 1084.95 309.66 108.73	6.99 6.99 .95	464.31 1091.94 309.66 109.68 210.53	240.94 791.63 190.96 19.55 59.00	10.00 5.00 3.50 12.48	10.00 5.00 3.50 5.00	10.00	5.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
East Aurora Elma, Blsm. Hamburg Orchard Pk. Caneadea	1381.22 380.56 858.06 1094.13 263.94	2.75 10.97 147.58 52.55 22.26	1383.97 391.53 1005.64 1146.68 286.20	547.63 229.00 251.37 527.11 106.00	10.00 5.00 13.75 15.00 15.00	6.00 5.00 13.75 10.00	10.00 5.00	0.00 5.00 6.00 3.00 3.00
Cat'gus. ist Cat'gus.,E. Leon Cuba Falconer,Levant Fillmore	288.75 260.67 467.17 1014.09 996.61	4.83 10.00 21.80 9.11 11.14	298.58 170.67 488.97 1023.20 1007.75	55.70 30.00 129.30 291.00 651.72	5.00 7.75 5.00 18.25 25.00	5.00 7.75 5.00 18.25 5.00	5.00 20.00	3.00 3.00 3.00 7.70 3.00
Freedom Forestville Houghton Leon Little Valley	630.93 1077.52 3034.18 841.50 177.49	6.98 24.83	630.93 1077.52 3041.16 841.50	158.00 743.10 2227.70 30.00 57.30	8.75 5.00 5.00 5.50	8.75 5.00 5.00 5.00	10.00 13.67 5.00	3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Lockport Lyndonville Machias Nunda Olean	400.50 539.93 247.77 193.56 689.96	6.86 17.00 .18	407.36 556.93 247.95 193.56 689.96	254.91	5.00 5.00 5.25	5.00 5.00 5.00 6.25	10.00	3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Silver Creek Wellsville, 1st W'ville, Hallsport	2896.97 372.48 258.35	54.05 1.44	2951.02 373.92 258.35	2732.50 106.70 206.96	5.00 10.50 28.00	5.00 10.50	3.00 13.72	3.00 2.00
Bradford Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	887.21 186.51 167.96 12.00 83.40	9.48 11.00	896.69 197.51 167.96 12.00 83.40	356.50 72.00 28.00 12.00 8.60	66.00 17.75 5.00	22.50 2.75 5.00 2.00	10.00	3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Totals	22060.86	472.62	22533.48	11944.12	349.58	216.00	125.39	115.8

ADD, Misc.

156.93

		Disbur	sements				
	Mission Equip. Fund	White Christ- mas Off.	Church Extension Evangel- ism.	Self Denial Offering	Hephzi- bah	Educa- tion Budget & Œifts	Honorary Enroll- ment
Appleton Batavia Angola	10.00 25.10	38.00 101.24 8.00	16.00	52.25 36.70 118.70	10.15 8.00	5.00	
Blasdell Cheektowaga			10.00	3.61	14.90 8.00	15.00	
East Aurora Elwa Hamburg Orchard Park Caneadea	31.60	25.00 25.00 5.00 63.42 17.00	52.00 18.00 59.50 35.00 22.00	27.00 22.00 107.10 9.25		66.36 10.00 140.00 62.50 15.00	
Cat'gus, 1st Cat'gus, E.Leon Cuba Falconer, L _e vant Fillmore	15.30 1.70 10.50 13.80	23.40 19.71 34.39 40.25	13.00	20.00 18.25 28.00 50.10 60.00	8.00 8.00	40.00 22.00 20.00 140.00 30.00	
Freedom Forestville Houghton Leon	6.70	50.00 31.87 173.31 12.00	60.50 90.00 52.17	20.00 14.00 89.40 5.93 8.62	12.25 8.00 8.00	140.00 35.00 157.77 251.00	52.00 8.00
Little Valley Lockport Lyndonville Machias Nunda	6.80 6.80	14.03 30.43 52.45 20.00 17.00	17.00	12.40 40.75 21.30	23.00 8.00 8.00 8.75	10.60 56.07 10.00 5.00 71.90	# 00
Olean, Silver Creek Wellsville, 1st W'ville, Hallsport	13.60 3.40 2.00	20.00 40.05 31.50		20.40 39.00 23.21	14.00 20.00 14.70	15.00 25.35	4.00 20.80
Bradford Driftwood Eldred Emporium	10.20 1.70 4.00	84.64 10.05 7.00	14.15	27.00 13.16 5.00	26.50 5.00 8.00	115.00 15.31 59.25	
Weedville	3.40	3.50	9.00		5.00	14.00	2.00
Totals	180.50	1098.24	1046.02	893.13	693.35	1548.11	86.80

		Dis	burseme	nts						
	Name of Society	General Dues	Conf. Working Fund	Conf. Extens.	Community Missions	Local Church Work	Other Objects	Total Disburse- ments	New Balance on Hand	Grand Total
	Appleton Batavia Angola Blasdell	31 31 8	16.80 15.60 4.20			16.65	19.35	309.66 109.00	19.84 .68	464.31 1091.94 309.66 109.68
	Cheektowaga East Aurora Elma Hamburg Orchard Park Caneadea	31 24 36 45 19	4.80 10.80 8.40 9.00 21.60 7.80	25.00 50.00	5,00	65.56 379.65 10.90 61.81 25.82 12.89	3.00 78.67 11.00 58.43 24.43 14.10	186.45 1313.61 391.30 800.36 1118.70 260.22	24.08 70.36 .23 205.28 27.98 25.98	1383.97 391.53 1005.64 1146.68
93	Cat'gus, 1st Cat'gus, E. Leon Cuba Falconer, Levant Fillmore	23 27 36 54 26	12.60 12.00 15.60 27.60 10.80	50.00	51.98	19.52 15.30 12.40 16.55 4.00	26.63 12.21 22.50 52.30 14.60	259.45 260.65 473.19 1021.05 1002.92	18.43 10.01 15.78	277.88 270.67 488.97 1023.20
	Freedom Forestville Houghton Leon Little Valley	15 18 77 16 13	6.00 11.40 72.60 5.40 7.80	10.00 10.00	67.50 45.00	14.55 19.25 55.90 348.66 53.88	122.00 34.14 7.98	607.30 1075.62 3020.35 841.50 195.11	23.63 1.90 20.81 7.21	630.93 1077.52 3041.16 841.50 202.32
	Lockport Lyndonville Machias Nunda Olean	13 13 6 9 43	6.00 4.80 4.20 3.00 22.80		13.50	14.90 15.55 26.40 13.50 53.75	1.35 7.74 37.22	193•29 689•96	.29 18.00	407.36 556.93 247.95 193.56 689.96
	Silver Creek Wellsville, 1st W'ville, Hallsport Bradford	15 15 31 15	9.00 8.40	2.00 79.98		65.71 14.10 9.36	5.00 19.90 9.29 10.00	2933.75 366.19 258.35 891.28	17.27 7.73 5.41	2951.02 373.92 258.35 896.69
	Driftwood Eldred Emporium Weedville	15 17 5	6.00 6.60 1.80			3.64 4.11 5.64	7.00 11.00 8.00	167.96 12.00 72.94		197.51 167.96 12.00 83.40
	Miscellaneous	201	62.20		100.00			219-13		219.13
	Totals	734	431.20	226.98	182.98	1356.95	761.65	21993.89	539 • 59	22533.48

.

Y.M.W.B. STATISTICAL REPORT	Active Mbrs.	Honorary	Total Members	Meetings	Rating	World Missions	Church Extension	Education	Hephzlbah	
Appleton, Hess Road Batavia, First Blasdell, Big Tree Cheektowaga, Clev. Dr.	35 18 50	54	35 72 50	12 12 12	70 95 70	202.62 48.59 33.86	4.00		10.00	
East Aurora Elma, Blossom Hamburg	17 12 17	27 38 33 34	44 50 50	12 13 17	8 <i>5</i> 100 50	104.26 64.54 44.80		7.00 7.00		
Orchard Park, Ellicott Caneadea, Belleville Cattaraugus, 1st Cattaraugus, East Leon	28 11 16 26	14	45562567 45562567	13 13 7 13 7	100 90 35 100	65.39 41.77		5.00 13.13 6.72 13.73	9.06 9.50	
Cuba Falconer, Levant Fillmore	44	86	· .	7 13	100 70	177.60 12.72	10.00 10.00	30.00 10.00 5.00	5.00 5.00	
Freedom, Higgins Forestville Houghton Little Valley	18 13 58 7 19	9 25 156	130 13 21 38 214 7	13 13 13 30	100	33.85 37.37 185.07 13.13	6.06	54.00 4.56 1.00	4.00 12.59 14.39	
Lockport Lyndonville, Ashwood Machias Nunda, Oakland	19 10 3 14	9 5	7 28 10 8 14	13 12 12 12	90	233.59 16.20 25.10 8.45	2.04 1.00 2.75	5.46 1.00 2.00	2.09	
Olean Silver Creek Wellsville, First	50 50 29	15 10	50 65 39	7 13 13 13	90 100 100	85.42 78.80 88.75	5.00 1.00 2.00	10.18 1.80 44.05	1.93 8.76	
Bradford Driftwood, Castle Garden Eldred, McCrae Brook Houghton Childrens Camp Desk Fund	55 10 5	15 110 1	70 120 6	13 13 11	90	95.00 92.84 9.87 15.20 3.37	7.96 1.00	45.00 4.38 1.00	5.00 4.40	
Totals	619	665	1284	345		2180.56	136.54	306.78	124.46	

	Servicemen	American Bible Soc.	Other	Specials - World Missions	Specials - Church Extension	Total Band Credit	Non- Cred1t	Grand Total
Appleton, Hess Boad Batavia, First Blasdell, Big Tree Cheektowaga, Clev. Dr. East Aurora Elma, Blossom Hamburg Orchard Park, Ellicott Caneadea, Belleville Cattaraugus, 1st Cattaraugus, East Leon Cuba Falconer, Levant Fillmore Freedom, Higgins Forestville Houghton Little Valley Lockport Lyndonville, Ashwood Machias Nunda, Oakland Olean Silver Creek Wellsville, First Bradford Driftwood, Castle Garden Eldred, McCrae Brook Houghton Childrens Camp Desk Fund		2.00	3:00	26.00 36.430 34.001 15.002	6.00 3.00 9.52 8.75 2.90 2.00 22.73	289.22 93.36 38.86 164.31 117.54 599.42 122.87.85 30.00 217.60 508.50 286.60 368.54 250.22 318.45 115.75 94.03 115.75 94.03 115.75 94.03 116.35 117.32 117.87 117.32	2.16 2.00 1.32 1.50 8.00 1.35 1.41 107.10 9.42 1.146 21.21 2	290.27 95.52 40.86 165.63 119.04 59.41 307.82 124.17 87.026 30.00 324.70 119.04 30.00 324.70 128.92 287.99 128.92 250.88 117.66 189.00 196.00 158.10 125.00 158.10 125.00 13.37
Total	3.34.	2.00	5.00	701.53	68.46	3528.67	214.08	3742.75

MINUTES

of the Thirty Third Annual Conference

of the

WESLEYAN YOUTH

OF THE LOCKPORT CONFERENCE

held at the Houghton Campgrounds

Houghton, New York

July 31, 1965

STANDING RULES

- 1. Conference Dues:
 - Each local society shall pay into the Conference W. Y. treasury the sum of fifty cents per active member. Such money shall be used to carry on the work of the Executive Council.
- Date of the Annual Convention:
 The date of the Annual W.Y. Convention of the Lockport Conference shall be left in the hands of the Executive Council.
- 3. Closing Treasurer's Books:
 - The Conference W.Y. treasurer is hereby authorized to close all books July 5. Therefore, all monies and receipts should be in her hands by that time if credit is desired on the Statistical Reports.
- 4. Delegates' Credentials:
 - The secretary of each local shall forward to the Conference secretary, not later than one week before the Annual W.Y. Convention, delegate credentials from the local.
- 5. Youth Camp:
 - 1. President of Youth Camps W.Y. President
 - 2. Director of Youth Camp Appointed by Executive Council.
 - 3. Director of Youth Adult Camp Appointed by Executive Council.
- 6. Nominating Committee:
 - The Executive Board shall be the Nominating Committee for the District Chairman and all Conference Officers except the President.
- 7. Pastors:
 - All pastors shall be entitled to a vote and a seat within the bar of the Annual Convention.

- 8. Pioneer Secretary:
 - All organized W.Y. should elect a local pioneer secretary to promote and support the Conference Church Extension program.
- 9. Executive Council:

The District Chairmen shall be included in the Executive Council.

10. District Organization:

Following his election, the District Chairman shall call his district into official session at the Convention to elect the remaining members of his committee, and the committee shall meet and plan the year's activities. (for the W.Y. budget apportionment see the report of the budget apportionment committee of the Annual Conference.)

W.Y. DIRECTORY

OFFICERS

President: Rev. Ralph Speas, Platten Rd., Lyndonville, N.Y. V. President: Rev. Richard Kaylor, Lake Shore Rd., Angola, N.Y. Mrs. Rosene Speas, Platten Rd., Lyndonville, N.Y. Secretary: Mrs. Evelyn Kaylor, Lake Shore Rd., Angola, N.Y. Treasurer:

LOCALS

(Note: Number in parenthesis indicates Roll Call responses, and "Adult" indicates Adult Counselor)

New York Locals

Appleton (Hess Road) - 2510 Hess Rd.
Pres.: Van Strong, 4293 Orangeport Rd., Casport, N.Y. (0)

Treas.: Jean Dressler, 6296 Dale Rd., Newfane, N.Y. Adult: Rev. & Mrs. F. Moore, 2514 Hess Rd., Appleton, N.Y.

Sharon Strong (1); Sue Ranney (0) Del.:

Buffalo Suburban Locals:

Elma (Blossom) - Main St. (Blossom) (Directory Information not provided)

Hamburg - 110 Sharon Ave.

Pres.: Duane Janssen, 110 Sharon Ave., Hamburg, N.Y. (1)
Treas.: Henry Cassell, 186 Sowles Rd., Hamburg, N.Y.
Adult: Mr. & Mrs. D. Meyer, 15 Carlton Dr., Hamburg, N.Y.
Del.: Bruce Cook (1); Paula Jones (0)

Cattaraugus (First) - 45 South St. (Temporarily Unorganized)

```
Falconer (Levant) - Lindquist Dr.
 Pres.: Patricia Giddy, 20 Kimball Ave., Falconer, N.Y. (2)
Treas.: Lawrence Giddy, 20 Kimball Ave., Falconer, N.Y.
          Mrs. Edith Goon, Daybrook Rd., Falconer, N.Y. Paulette Powell (2); Eugene Holley (2)
 Adult:
 Del.:
Fillmore - 20 East Main St.
          LaVerne Cronk, R.R.1, Fillmore, N.Y. (1)
 Pres.:
 Treas.: Roger Miller, Houghton, N.Y.
           Mrs. David Shannon, Box 8, Houghton, N.Y.
 Adult:
 Del.:
           Sherril Scutt (2); Karen Gillette (1)
Freedom (Higgins) R.R., Freedom
Pres.: Mary Wilday, R.R. 1, Houghton, N.Y. (1)
 Treas.: Wayne Miller, R.R. 2, Fillmore, N.Y. Adult: Mrs. Hazel Miller, R.R. 2, Fillmore, N.Y.
           Dawn Fiegl (2); D'Arcy Hotchkiss (2)
 Del.:
Houghton (College) - Houghton College
          Lynn Cairns, Houghton College, Houghton, N.Y.
 Pres.:
Houghton (Senior Hi) - River Rd.
           Jonathan Sentz, 10 Centerville Rd., Houghton, N.Y.
 Pres.:
 Treas .: David Ries, Houghton, N.Y.
 Adult:
          Rev. Myron Miller, Houghton, N.Y.
 Del.:
           Jonathan Sentz (2); Janet Smith (2)
Lockport - 7417 Chestnut Ridge Rd.
          Bonnie Belson, 4806 Wilson Rd., Lockport, N.Y. (1)
 Pres.:
 Treas.: Charleen Brown, McNall Rd., Gasport, N.Y.
           Steven Edmister, 8449 Dale Rd., Gasport, N.Y.
 Adult:
 Del.:
           Raedel Aker (1)
Olean (Hillside) - 753 Prospect
 Pres.: Winifred F. Gowan, 129 South 17th St., Olean, N.Y. (2) Treas.: Don Loomis, Steam Valley Road, Olean, N.Y.
 Adult:
           Richard George, 612 King St., Olean, N.Y.
           Don Loomis (2); Gail Salvan (2)
 Del.:
Silver Creek - 60 Buffalo St.
          John Ludeman, Babcock St., Silver Creek, N.Y. (0)
 Pres.:
 Treas.: Marie Ludeman, Babcock St., Silver Creek, N.Y.
 Adult: Gary Childs, 64 Buffalo St., Silver Creek, N.Y.
Wellsville (First) - 211 West State St.
           Calvin Squires, 24 Chamberlain St., Wellsville, N.Y. (2)
 Pres.:
 Treas.: Norma Jean Ketchner, R.R., Wellsville, N.Y.
 Adult:
          Lillian M. Simons, Box 113, Allentown, N.Y.
          Roxanne Miller (1); Rodney Miller (1)
 Del.:
                        Pennsylvania Locals
Bradford - Bishop and Boylston Sts.
 Pres.: Perry Paul, Jr., 13 Long Lane, Bradford, Pa. (0)
Treas.: Jackie Paul, 13 Long Lane, Bradford, Pa.
Adult: Mrs. Anne Bates, 120 Derrick Ed., Bradford, Pa.
Del.: Sally Hogue (2); Edna Wagner (2)
```

Eldred (McCrae Brook) - R.R. 1

Pres.: Mrs. Marie Palmer, Box 304, Duke Center, Pa. (0) Treas.: Mrs. Janice Palmer, B.B. 1, Eldred, Pa.

Barbara Fish (2); Linda Fish (2)

DISTRICT ORGANIZATION

Northern District

Rev. Fred Moore, 2514 Hess Rd., Appleton, N.Y.

Sec .- Treas .: Lynn Bowman, Orchard Park, N.Y.

3rd Member:

Mark Sakowski, Lyndonville, N.Y. Appleton (Hess Ed.), Hamburg, Lyndonville (Ash-Locals: wood), Lockport

East Central District

Rev. Harold McIntire, 11 North Park, Cuba, N.Y. Chairman:

Sec .- Treas .: Mary Wilday, R.R., Houghton, N.Y.

Jonathan Sentz, 10 Centerville Rd., Houghton, N.Y. 3rd Member:

Locals: Fillmore, Freedom (Higgins), Houghton

West Central District

Chairman: Rev. W. G. Steele, Linguist Dr., Falconer, N.Y.

Sec .- Treas .: Paulette Powell, Falconer, N.Y. 3rd.Member:

D'Ann Wilde, Silver Creek, N.Y. Cattaraugus (First), Falconer (Levant), Little Locals:

Valley, Silver Creek

Southern District

Chairman: Rev. David Buck, 51 Hobson Pl., Bradford, Pa. Sec.-Treas.: Winifred Gowan, 129 South 17th St., Olean, N.Y.

3rd Member: Sally Hogue, Bradford, Pa.

Locals: Bradford, Olean, Eldred (McCrae Brook)

DAILY PROCEEDINGS

The Annual Convention of the Lockport Conference Wesleyan Youth convened for its thirty-third session on the Campgrounds at Houghton, N.Y. on July 31, 1965 at 10:00 a.m.

Opening: The President, Rev. Ralph Speas, called the Conference to order.

Bar of Conference: The Conference Bar was set as follows: the first 12 rows of seats in the second and third sections of the auditorium.

Roll Call: The roll was called and 21 delegates and 7 Presidents were marked present.

Orders of the Day: The election of officers was set for 2:00 p.m.

Treasurer's Report: The Treasurer's report was read and approved.

- President's Report: The Vice President assumed the chair. The President read his report which was accepted.
- <u>Vice President's Report:</u> The President returned to the chair.

 The Vice President gave his report which was accepted.
- Local Reports: Reports were received from local Presidents and their delegates.
- New Business: A motion prevailed to have a Budget Apportionment Committee of three members. The following were elected to this committee: The Rev. David Buck, chairman; Jonathan Sentz, Patricia Giddy.
- Motion: A motion prevailed that a Statistical Committee of two members be elected. The following were elected: Janet Smith, chairman; Sally Hogue
- Report: A report on the listing of the Lockport Conference
 W.Y. locals was read. The organizational date of each
 local was given. (See Report No. 4)
- Adjournment: Adjourned by limitation of time. The closing prayer was offered by the Rev. Richard Kaylor.

Afternoon Meeting 2:00 p.m.

- Opening: The President, Rev. Balph Speas called the Conference to order.
- Roll Call: The roll was called with 20 delegates and 3 Presidents marked present.
- Orders of the Day: The time having arrived for the Orders of the Day, the Conference proceeded to the election of officers and delegates. The chair appointed Jonathan Sentz, head teller; Eugene Halley and Bodney Miller as tellers.

Election: The following were elected:

Office	<u>Name</u>	Votes	Votes
- 11 - 1 - 1		Cast	Rec'd.
President	Ralph Speas	24	21
Vice President	Richard Kaylor	24	21
Secretary	Rosene Speas	24	17
Treasurer	Evelyn Kaylor	25	16
W.Y. Bus. Mgr.	David Buck	24	17
General Conf.			-
Delegate	Sally Hogue		
Alternate	Janet Smith		

Report: The Statistical Committee report was read and by motion adopted. (See Report No. 5)

<u>Report:</u> A motion prevailed to accept the Budget Apportionment Committee's report. (See Report No. 6)

New Business: A motion prevailed that local Presidents report directly to the Conference President each quarter with the first three reports covering the preceding quarter and the last report covering the entire year.

- New Local: The request of the Little Valley youth group to become an organized local under the Wesleyan Youth of the Lockport Conference was granted by the body.
- Camp Information: The Rev. Alton Shea announced the passage of the Camp Meeting Board resolution in the Lockport Conference, Inc., relative to the Clark Farm development and spoke concerning the vital part the Wesleyan Youth should have in the progress of this project.
- <u>District Organization:</u> The Districts met for election and business after which the reported the same to the body. The reports were accepted. (See District Organization)
- <u>Unfinished Business:</u> A motion prevailed that all unfinished business be reffered to the Executive Council.
- Adjournment: The Conference adjourned Sine die at 3:35 p.m. with the Rev. David Buck offering the closing prayer.

(Mrs.) Rosene Speas Conference Wesleyan Youth Sec.

W.Y. REPORTS

Report No. 1

W.Y. Treasurer's Report

Receipts: Balance Brought Forward		\$ 485 .3 5
Conference Dues	\$159.00	
General Dues	483.50	
Youth Project (H.P.H.)	25.00	
Youth Week (Operation Asbury)	134.36	
Education	2.00	
World Missions	66.41	
Church Extension	24.09	
Total Receipts	\$894.36	
Total Receipts plus Balance	•	\$1,379.71
Disbursements:		
Conference Expense	\$158.83	
General Dues	483.50	
Youth Project	25.00	
Youth Week	134.36	
Education	2.00	
World Missions	66.41	
Conference Church Extension	24.09	
Total Disbursements	\$894.19	
Balance on Hand in Conference Fund	\$485.52	
Savings Account	76.61	
Total Monies on Hand		\$ 562.13

Approved: Auditing Committee Respectfully Submitted, Evelyn Kaylor, Treasurer

Report No. 2

W.Y. President

Greetings to the Wesleyan Youth members of the Lockport Conference meeting at its thirty-third annual session.

This past year has been one of blessing and increase in the Conference. Several groups have indicated higher efficiency standard achievement and while some have reported a decrease in membership, other Locals have offset the deficit with an increase that has netted 44 new members.

Your President has again represented Wesleyan Youth on the Camp Meeting Board as secretary, on the Conference Board of Church Extension and Evangelism as treasurer, and over Labor Day week end, he managed the details of accomodations, decorations and registration of the Area Youth Convention at Houghton College.

He has mimeographed and sent out report blanks and the <u>Newzsheet</u> each quarter except one when an untimely fire in the parsonage destroyed all the materials ready to be sent.

He met twice with the Conference Executive Council and twice with the Area Executive Council.

He has written to unorganized locals and encouraged each one to apply for certificate of organization.

Your president has been encouraged with the evident increase of Conference-wide cooperation and the willingness of local presidents to report and communicate with him.

There is without doubt a sincerity and spiritual hunger on the part of youth everywhere as never before. It is your President's opinion that spiritual awakening and revival will begin in the hearts of the young.

Thank you for this opportunity to serve you and carry on the multiple duties associated with my position in this fine organization.

Respectfully submitted, Balph Speas

Report No. 3

WAY. VICE PRESIDENT

Greetings in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ.

I have appreciated the opportunity of serving in the capacity of Wesleyan Youth Vice President this past year.

Once again all of my duties and efforts have been in the planning of Youth Camp 1965. This is a responsibility that I consider very wothwhile.

We are expecting a wonderful camp with the cooperation of each camper.

Respectfully submitted, Richard G. Kaylor

Report No. 4 ORGANIZED LOCALS

The following Locals, together with the date of organization, are officially listed at International Headquarters, Marion, Indiana:

Locals	Date of Organization
New York Local Appleton (Hess Road) Buffalo Suburban Locals:	<u>s</u> March 1, 1945
Elma (Blossom)	February 24, 1960
Hamburg	December 7, 1962
Cattaraugus (First)	February 17, 1945
Falconer (Levant)	May 9, 1949
Fillmore	March 4, 1945
Freedom (Higgins)	March 30, 1945
Houghton	July 20, 1945
Little Valley	April 11, 1964
Lockport	May 21, 1946
Lyndonville (Ashwood)	December 17, 1953
Olean	March 12, 1945
Silver Creek	May 10, 1956
Wellsville	March 21, 1945
<u>Pennsylvania</u> <u>Lo</u>	
Bradford	February 20, 1945
Eldred (McCrae Brook)	October 27, 1950

Report No. 6

Name of Local Appleton (Hess Road)	Gen. Dues \$ 25.00	Conf. Dues	Total \$ 37.50
Elma (Blossom)	5.00	2.50	7.50
Hamburg	5.00	2.50	7.50
Cattaraugus (First)	,,,,,	,,,	1474
Falconer (Levant)	19.00	9.50	28.50
Fillmore	18.00	9.00	27.00
Freedom (Higgins)	9.00	4.50	13.50
Houghton	50.00	25.00	75.00
Lockport	26.00	13.00	39.00
Lyndonville (Ashwood)	25.00	12.50	37.50
Olean	7.00	3.50	10.50
Silver Creek	20.00	10.00	30.00
Wellsville	6.00	3.00	9.00
Bradford	25.00	12.50	37.50
Eldred (McCrae Brook)	17.00	8.50	25.50
Totals	\$ 253.00	\$ 126.50	\$ 379.50

W.Y. BUDGET

Respectfully submitted David J. Buch, Ch. Pat Giddy Jonathan Sentz

Report No. 5 W.Y. Statistics	Active Members	Associates	YOUTH Subs.	Read. Club	Bating Eff. Stand.	General Dues	Conference Dues	Conference Church Ext.	Education	World Missions
Appleton (Hess Rd.) Elma (Blossom)	21	Γ	14	Г	В	30.00	10.00	38.40		39.56
Hamburg Cattaraugus	5	10	1	l		9.00	3.00			40.00
Falconer (Levant)	19	5				8.00				
Fillmore Freedom (Higgins)	18	2	25 7	l	В	18.00 12.00			26.57	4.76
Houghton.	50 26	60	12		С	35.00		i	10.00	19678.56
Lockport	26	2	12 10		В	45.00	15.00	16.00		13.50
Lyndonville (Ashwood) Olean	25 7	1	9	1	В	24.00			1.23	44.75
Silver Creek	20	اد	9 30 11	2	В	14.00 30.00		ł	5.00	1 45 00
Wellsville	6		11			12.00			2.00	
Bradford	25		25	5	В	52.50			~	l "'"
Eldred (McCrae Brook)	17	2	14			18.00	6.00	14.09	l	13.39
Totals	253	87	137	10		307.50	421.50	71.49	44.80	19858.22

	1965 Youth Wk Offering	Local	Other Items	Houghton Youth Conf.	Total Recipts plus Balance	Total Disburse. Ments	Cash on on Hand
Appleton (Hess Rd.) Hamburg Falconer, (Levant) Fillmore Freedom (Higgins) Houghton Lockport Lyndonville (Ashwood) Olean Silver Creek Wellsville Bradford Eldred (McCrae Brook)	16.60 9.20 75.00 2.00 4.55 6.36	30.00 13.24 24.60 39.50 304.90 25.00 228.32 10.00 44.50			471.74 27.14 161.79 67.85 23455.93 114.50 306.50 47.14 189.00 77.50 291.91	391.50 82.00 49.24 96.53 64.70 21624.51 114.50 306.30 227,50 160.00 72.20 275.78	7.90 65.26 3.13 1831.42 19.63 22.00 5.30 16.13
Totals			25.70	1596.05		23393.81	